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Hornby Plc

The Group's principal business is the
development, production and supply

of hobEy and toy products. The Group
distributes its products through a network
of specialist and multiple refailers
throughout the UK and overseas.
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Highlights 2014

“Homby has been through a difficult period. Whilst | am
under no illusion that there will be challenges ahead,
} am confident that | can lead the group successfully
during this next phase of our development. It is an
important time for Homby as the business strives to
reach its full potential.”

: Revenue Underlying' operating loss
| {2013: £57.4m) {2013: £0 7m profit)

£51.6m £(0.7)m

Underlying' loss before taxation Underlying' loss after taxation

{2013: £0.15m profif) {2013: £1 Om profit)
Reported loss before taxation Reported loss after
(2013: £3.4m loss) taxation {2013: £2.5m loss)

cl4.6)m £(4.4)m

Total dividend per share
(2013: Op)

Op

Underlying basic loss per share
(2013: 0.5p eamings}

3.4)p

Reported loss per share
(2013: 6.4p loss)

(11.4)p

! Underbying hguies are before amornsation of intangibles ond net forergn exchange adjusiments on infercompany loans,

restruchinng costs and imparment of goodwill
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Chairman’s Statement

Personal perspectives

in April 2013 | took on the role of Executive Chairman
and commenced the search for our next business leader.
Throughout the year, | have been steadfast in my resolve
to find the right person for the role no matter how long
that process might take. This was consistent with the
commitment fo build a long-term platform for growth.

02 Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

The transformation of Homby 15 o
challenging, but equally rewarding
proposition and | am delighted that we have
secured Richard Ames to ?eod the business
through these exciting imes Richard has
Ffenry of expenence of working In consumer
ocused businesses As a result of this
appoiniment on 28 Apnl 2014, | have now
resurned the role of NorExecutve Chairman

We have also appanted two new
NonExecutive Directors, Charlie Caminada
and David Adams They have o wedlth of
relevant expenence and they are alieady
making a significant contribution as we
manage the Group



(2013: £2 2 million)
® Renegotiation of banking faciliies to end of December 2015

Revenue of £51 6 million (2013 £57.4 millon)

Like for like revenues excluding london 2012 down by 2%
Underlying loss' £1 14 million {2013: £015 million profi]
Net debt at 31 March 2014: £73 million

Statutory loss after tax £4 5 million (2013: £2.5 million loss)

i Stated belore amorhsahon of inangibles net foreign exchange odjustments an ntercompany loans re-structunng costs and imperrment of geodwall

From a trading perspective, this year has
once agan been one dominated by the
continued supply chain disruption Dunng the
year, we evenludlly agreed the basis for a
managed ext from our principal manufaciurer
in China The process of recognising the true
scale of the 1ssue and then formulating and
executing a nsk managed plon lo concude
thet relaonship has been lengthy and
complex But | am confident that we are now
cn the other side The corollary of this 15 the
imperalive to develop balanced partnerships
with a portfolio of manufacturers whe have
the capactty to suppart our strategic ambitions
over the long ferm This prece of work 15 well
under way but will iake many months to
reach o level of matunly such that the supply
chan no longer consirains but posihvely
supports the Group's ambitions 1o return to
sales growth

It was clear from the outset that we must focus
on doing the very smple things nght before
making any longer term strategic plons There
were some fundamental elements of the
business that neaded atiention if any fulwe
shategic plans were o stand on solid
foundatons In our infenm report we referred
to the thiee smple key pillars that we felt were
ceniral 1o this iImmediate phase of the
fransformation process

* Success through people

* Success through Ex:used execution

s Syceess through passion for our brands

I am pleased that we are making progress on
all three points, as detalled in Richard’s report

The role of the Board

Good corporate governance provides a
framewark for delivering the objectives of the
Company ond 15 fundamental to a sound-
decision making process 1t supports executive
management in ochieving the maximum
performarce for the business Mainlaining
good corporale governance 15 @ key prionty
and with the exception of o separate CEQ
and Chasrman until 28 Apnl 2014 when
Richard Ames joired the Group, | am
pleased o say that we were compliant with
the UX Carporate Governance Code 1ssued
by the Financial Reporting Counall 1n
September 2012, twoughout the year

In the current uncertain economic envirenment,
management of nsk remoins a key focus for
the Board The Board has in place a robust
process for identfying the major nsks facing
the business and for developing oppropnate
palicies fo menage those nisks The Board
reviews the major nsks and any miligaling
achons required on a bmnnua(boms Through
the Boord and the Audit Commiltes we retain

ood visibility of the ssues and chalienges
aced by mancgement and the work to
addiess them

Shareholder engagement

| am delighted that once ogain this year, we
will be hosting our Annual General Meeting
at the Homby headquerers in Margate on
10 September 2014 This will be an excellent
opportunity for shareholders 1o see the new
products for themselves and 1o undersiand the
progiess that the Company 1s making
Personally | am looking forword 1o weleoming
s many shareholders as passible that are
oble to attend
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| am cerhdent that under Richard’s guidance,
the Group has the potential 1o bulld on the
signihicont progress that has alieady been
made With the steps we have taken to
resolve our supply chain issues kogether with
the passion and energy to support our
brands, | am hopeful that the future of the
business 1s brighter than it has been for

some time

Roger Canham
Chairman
26 Jure 2014
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Strategic Review

Homby Plc continues to make progress against its vision
to be the most successful model, hobby and collectible
toy company in the world. Pages 1 to 15 set out the
strategic report for the business.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

May | firsly toke this opportunity to say that it
i1s a privilege and @ pleasure o be |aning the
Homby fecm | om excited fo be armving o
the Cempany at this key time in its hisiory
and development

Hoving joned Hornby on 28 Apnl 2014,

I have spent the first eight weeks wisting the
vanous infernational sales teams in Europe
and spending o week wath our Asien soureing
operation and a selection of manufacturers n
Hong Kong and China My first impressions
of the Group are that we have leams o
dedicated and talented people who have
been foaing signihcant commercial
challenges They have already begun taking
difheult decisions and achions to improve the
fortunes of the Company These 1s o recl
pride in the brands and products that we
moke ond o shong desre 1o succeed

It 15 early days, but | am convinced that

Hornby can recover and returr to profit In
the future

04 Hornby PLC Annucl! Report and Accounts 2014



Manufactunng supply chain

The challenges that we have foced in owr
Asion manufactunng and supply chain have
been well documented As we have reported
previously, we hove increased our number of
manufactuning siles and we are now bringing
the praduction from these pariners to

market The complex nature of the model
manufoctuning process and the length of the
supply chains involved hos meant that the
inihahves, starled 1in 2013, have not delivered
tesuls in the financial yecr However, they
haove created the foundation upon which
improvements in 2014-15 con be built

The Homby team in Hong Kong has
undergone significont chonge, mroducing
new processes ond toking on a brooder
range of operotional responsibilties The
Asian feam 13 now operating o new ‘critical
path menitor’ and a ‘manufactunng toaol
dotabase’, both of which are designed Io
increase Homby's confrol over product
development This will lead 1o grecier visibility
of the new design projects and will enable
the Group to communicale more regularly
ond accurately with suppliers, customers and
consumers alike With ongoing investment

in the Homby Asia team, new supplier
parinerships and better warking prachises,
we are confident that we appreach 2014-15
on o stronger platform o dnve profiability

Serving our customers

The produchon ssues that the Company

hos Eced have not only resincied fineneal
performance, but have also nsked the
Company's relationship with our channel
pariners and end vsers This 1s an exremely
important 1ssue, as these are the true fans of
the brands It 1s key that we do not take these
fans for granted With my expenence of
working In consumer focusecfgusmesses, lam
making this one of my first key objechves

In addiion to defivening high quality Horn!
products, we must be gbleg Ioc}nforz and >
communicate with our partners 1o enchle
them to confinue to supporl the brands This
communicahion will come in many forms,
including improvements i kade news, social
media and the Company's website tn recent
weeks we have seen o renewed commiiment
to weekly liade announcements via Corg)
News, Homby News, Arfix News and
Scolextnic News This 15 all designed to

gve retail channels and end users an up fo
dote view of new product releases, stock
ovailability and promohione! information
New colleagues, now working n the Social
Media team, are focused on providing

datly updates and inferactions with fans

and shaning the nformation that drves the
passion for collecting, modelling and dnving
our products

The new Hornby UK website, lounched 1n
June 2014, 1s cnother 1ool designed 1o give
consumers greater access lo Company and
product information, as well os new initiotives
such as Sumon Says — ¢ regular blog of the
thoughts of ndustry and Hormby Grandee
Simon Kehler All of these natives are work
In progress, but show @ commitment 1o
improving the diclogue and relationship that
the Compeny has with s poriners c:ncr’
customers The initicl feedback has been

very encouraging

A the beginning of 2014, the commeraict team
in Homby UK underweni a restructure This
reorganisation was designed lo provide dearer
ines of commercicl responsibility within the
product, sales and markeiing teoms based

in Margate and to enable greater focus on

the actions necessary to grow the business

In parcular, category management and

a more onalytical approach fo our customer
relationships will be the divers of future growth
New roles and responsibililies are now in ploce,
ond we will see benefds as a result of improved
stock managemens, soles methods and
marketing and promotional communications,
flowang through dunng 2014-15

Improving stock management and
distnbuhon

Stock management within the Group 1s 0

key area of opportunity In addition to
improvemnents in manutactuning copabilies,
the Group 1s also commitied io managing
stock in the most effective and efficient way
within the sales orgamisations of Europe and
the US The faclity in Margate that has
housed the Company’s UK siock since
manulactunng started 1o move to China in the
late 1990's, has been an area of concern for
some hme A lack of outside space to allow
transport access, a lack of T infrastructure
upon which 1o run modem warehausing
systems and o bulding with sigmificant reporr
ond mamntenance 1ssues has led to a review
ol the site This has concluded with a decision
to move to a new, third party warehouse,

run by an independent logistics speciahst

DS Logishies This purpose built facility hos
modern stock systems and the space to

grow with the CY,ompony as the turnaround
matenalises The proxamity of the site to
Margate, eleven miles from the current
bulding, mecns that we are able to offer
rotes 1o all existing Homby staff and retain this
wedalth of expenence within the operation
This 15 @ key decision for the Company, and
one not token kghtly, given the history and
tradition of the current ste Nevertheless, we
are confident that shis move will fociliate o
significant improvement 1 the hondling ond
distnbution of the Company’s product, not
only n the UK but also, as we progress, for
the broader Group i Europe
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The Company has also siarted a discovery
project fo ascertain the opportunity io be
denved from the creotion of a Groupwide
ERP system A variety of systems, of differing
age and quality exst wathin the vanous
dvisions, with @ low level of infegrohion ond
15 believed that benefits can be goned from
running the business on one system This
discovery praject will moke recommendations
in lote summer at which point any decision 1o
proceed with implementation will be made
A Group-wide ERP system would fecilitate

the creation of an iemational ecommerce
platform Again it 1s believed that this could
present a signihcant opportunity for the
Company o farget new and underdeveloped
markets with the Group's wide end vaned
range of preducts and brands

Outlook for 2014-15

As 2014 continues, we will turther review
Group performance ond capcbiliies
Improvements 1n manufaciunng, rew product
development processes and sales and
markehing capabilities around the Group are
priorites and will recerve immediate oltention
As the stock situahion thet has held back the
Group over the lost few months 15 resolved,
the cppertunity to benefit from improvements
in other areos of the business will nse in
impertance and become integral 1o our plan
to refurn the Group fo profiabulity This
process will continue through 2014/15/16
and we are corfident that we have the
brands, team and know how to bring the
Company back to past levels of financial
performance and beyond

Troding i1n the current year so far 15 10 ine with
the Boord's expeciations The focus that 1s
being given to cleanng the older elemenis of
stock 15 progressing, with Group stock
currently some £1 millon lower than at year
end Whilst the delivery of the ransformanon

lan comes with execution nsk, the Group

as a portioho of lantastic brands that if
managed well offer plenty of potenticl for
longterm growth 1 am locking forweard to
upc?ohng our shareholders on the progress
that we are making
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Business Model and
Strategy

The Group’s principal business is the design,
development, production and supply of hobby and toy
products. The Group distributes its products through a
network of specialist and multiple retailers througiout
the UK and overseas.

04 Hornby PLC Anagal Report and Accounis 2014




| am delighted 1o have joined Horby Since armving

at the business eight weeks ago, | am more convinced
than ever that the group can bulld on a more solid
supply chain and support the demand from our
customers for our products

Although 1t 1s early days, one decision that | have

made 1s to move our UK warehousing and logsfics
operafions to a new site This 1s the first step to improve
the distbution and stock management, which wu’F
enable us to improve our service to our customers.

The Group markets its products under a
number oFst:ong brands well known in therr
respechve markets These brands include
Homby, Scalestine, Electrotren, ima, Jouef,
Rivarossi, Arnold, Awrbix, Humbrol and Corg
The Company's vision 1s 1o be the most
succassiul medel, hobby, and collectable toy
company in the world

The Group comprises a number of high
uality premum brands spread across
jl[ferenl product calegones within the hobby
ond collectable toy market The quahity and
herilage of the brands dllows us to re-
infroduce product lines 1o the market that we
have done over the last few yeors with Aurfix

and Pocher We are also continuing to grow
the Europecn tran brands and to explore
opportunites in developing markets

The Group has the opportunity to develop ¢
number anew license properties within the
existing brand structure as well as developin
other glsmbunon oppartuniles The noture ol9
the model railway business worldwide 1s that
products ore largely countryspecific This
requires high levels of knowledge and
expertise in each ndradual market This
represents o sigmificant bamer to entry
However, the Group has this infrastructure in
place and 1s thergfore in a strong competitive
posibon Production of model raltway ttems 15

Hornby PLC Annual Repon and Accounts 2014

a labour intensive process The Group
sources all of s mode! rathway products from
China Although labour rates in China are
ncreasmng, the Group conhinues to operate at
a cost advantage 1o compehtors producing m
higher cost regions such as Eurcpe Some
olher praduct knes are developed outside
China where cost effectve, such as Aufx in
Indic and we will contrnue to seek other
oppartunities fo diversify production copacity
including bnnging it back to the UK

Richard Ames
Chief Executive
26 June 2014
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Operational and Financial
Review of the Year

Consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 March
2014 was £51.6 million, a decrease of 10.2% compared
to the previous year's £57.4 million. 2013 included £4.7
million revenue for London 2012, so excluding this
revenvue, the decrease is 2%.

1] Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Full yeor ?]ross proft margin was 45% (2013
— 43%)] The increase in gross profit margin
was pimoarly a result of ﬁxe hea
discounting on london 2012 5?0::{ in the
previous year As discussed below the
ovalabiliry ond supply of high end model rail
roducts wath higher margins s still well
Eelcw plonned levels Therefore the overall
margin is sill suppressed when compared 1o
historic levels Betore the impact of #X losses
ond exceptional tems overheads decreased
yearomyear by 4% Foreign exchange losses




e Financial Review

in the year lotalled £1 0 milion compored 1o
a gain of £0 2 millon Scles ond marketing
costs reduced as the level of commissions
poid through our concessions channel
reduced following the collopse of Modelzone
in July 2013

Pre lox loss betore net foreign exchange
odustments on intercompany loans,
amortisation of intangibles, restructuting costs
and imparrment of goodwill (hereafter
referrecﬂ?) s underlying preox (loss)/profits)
was (€1 14} miflien (2013 — profi of £015
million) {see reconcliction in note 2} Basic
eamings per share coleukated on underlying
pre-tax {loss)/proft thereafter referred to as
underlying basic (loss)/eamings per share)
were {3 43)p {2013 - 0 47p} Statulo
pre-ax loss was £4 6 million {2013 — loss of
£3 4 millon} and statulory basic loss per
share wos 11 35p {2013 — 6 39p loss per

2014 2013

Revenue £516m  £574m
Underlying floss)/profit before tox* £114m}  £015m
Gross profit margin 452% 42 &%
Underlying flossl/profit before tox margin* 2 2%) 026%
Reported loss before tax margin {8 8%) {5 9%}
Underlying basic {lossl/eamings per share* {3 43p 0 47p
Siatutory basic loss per share (1135 {63%p
Net debt £73Im £2 2m
Statutory loss alter lox £4 5m £2 5m

* Stated before amortisation of ivongibles, net foreign exchange od

and impoiment of goodwilt

share} Toxation af £01 miflon credit {2013
- £09 millon credi} was 2% of reported loss
before tax (2013 — 26%)

Cere Group Inventories reduced dunng the
year by 3% from £13 & milton to £13 2
million Trade and other recerables also
reduced from £9 6 milhon at the lost year end
to £90 millkon at 31 March 2014 Trade and
other payakles decrecsed by £1 2 milion as
the manogement reorganischan pscwded for
last year was implemented and n addihon
net dervative |\OEI!I“BS reduced by £1 7
million due to the setilement of the histonc FX
collar arrangemert referred to in note 19
offset in part by the reduction in hedged
contracts classed as an asset of 31 March

14 Investment in new tooling and other
copital expenditure wos £4 1 milon (2013

- £3 5 million] The net effect of these factors
was an increase In working copitol

ws on intercompany keans restructuring costs

requrements and an increase in net debt at
31 March 2014 to £73 millon, fiom £2 2
millon in 2013

Dividend

This has been another year in which frading
hos been challenging and therefore the
decistan has been tcﬁen net fo pay a

dvidend {2013 - 0 Op}

Underlying loss

A total of £3 4 million costs in these occounts
have been ideniified as exceptional in nature
and clossfied o5 outside of our measure of
underlying profit as can be seen in note 2
Of this fokal £2 5 midhon {2013 - £2 8 million)
was the write-off of goodwill in the Itabon
business described below, amorhisation

of the inlangible assets and the revaluaten
of miercompany loans, all of which are
nomcash costs

Hornby PLC Annual Report ond Accounts 2014 o
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Operational and Financial Review of the Year
continued

In the previous yeor, a restructunng of the
senior feom beﬁg the Boord level was
announced and a provision of £0 7 millon
made for the implementation costs which
were carried out in the year just ended

This work 1s ongoing ond a smaller scale
reorganisction of the marketing resources n
the UK business was implemented recently
ata cost of £0 2 milhon The changes will
allow a stronger focus on our brands and
therr development as wel as being more
sireamlined and o reduction in overhead
cosls Restuclunng costs also include £0 6
million pard to our longstanding mayor
supplier of mode! raway product for wark
In progress, malenals and compaonents
when the ogreement was reached with
them 1o end the relationship As has been
descrbed above this was o necessory siep
in the restruciunng of our supply chain but
they hove lifle of no immediate value lo the
business and thesefore have been writtenoff

10 Homby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014




The fingl element 15 o £0 1 million chorge for
the bad debl and other costs thot arase from
the failure of cur man concession partner
Modelzone thot went info administration in
July 2013

Impact of supply chain disruphons
Delveres of model ralway product over

the yeor totalled 59% of our budget for the
Group as a whole This further detenorction
reflects the fime fcken to reach an ogreement
with our long-stonding major supplier for

on orderly exit from cur monufactunng
relationship and the delays in releasing the
tools and moulds that were needed for
preduction in our other supphers” operahons
Model rall sales declined further on the bock
of this to £11 4 milion from £14 C million last
yegr in the UK and decreased from £6 4
miflion 1o £9 2 million in continental Europe

Banking facihties

The Group has recently been successful in
renegotiating its main barking faciliies for o
further 18 months A1 31 March 2014 the
Group had o revolving credit facility of £10
million expinng August 2015 and a fiveyear
fixed term loon agreement of £12 millien

with outstanding repayments of £1 5 mlion
scheduled 1o be completed by July 2014
These have now been seploced by o new
revohing credit facility of £13 million expinng
in December 2015 which 1s expecled o
allow sufficient headroom fer frading working
capital needs in the current year whilst longer
term plons ond funding requirements are
developed The Group also hos addiional
focilites of £5 millon in place in iIs Evropean
subsidianes through ban|oons ond import
credit ine focilihes of which £3 5m was
undiown ot year end Borrowings in the

year ended 31 March 2014 pecked of

£11 8 millon

United Kingdom

Trading conditions in cur UK home market
were mpacted by the lorgest single customer
?omg into adminisiration Modelzone's
inancial stuahon wos evident, and alk
steps were taken 1o mingate our nsk but the
sales line felt the impact There wos cko
consideroble aperchonal impact as the
concession stock of Homby end Scalextnc
product had 1o be uplited and retumed to
our worehouse Despite our best efforts
and new ventures with WH Smith, Hawkins

Bezaor and other smaller partners we could
not moke up the full year budgeted shortfall
Across all other relowYchonnels there was no
significant up tick to replace these lost sales
with our Independent secior confinuing 1o
decline National Accounts grew, and our
export soles mproved Our Direct channels
continue to improve but stil make up @ smcll
percentage of our totel business

Model railways

Sales of Hornby mode! ratways dechined
as we wresiled with getting production
capobility out of the mcum%ent suppher, and
we have renewed optimism now that much
of the 1ocling 1s within aur contral We have
significant pent up demand so the reduced
actual performance 15 frustrating to both our
consumers, and our iade customers bul when
we fulfil it we anhaipate o retum 1o growth
Our work with the National Ralbwoy Museum
('NRM] and the sponsorship cf the ‘Great
Gathenng'’ remans o key highhght with
6,000 replica locomatives sold out within
days of relecse Hormby sponsored the
event and our partnership with the NRM
was hanoured with the Arts & Business
Sponsorship award and was covered
exiensively n the press and on television
Great efforts have been made by oll the
feam to put model relways back into the
public domain, and put the hobby back into
public discussion This gives the team real
encouragement for the Tuture, that when we
posihien our products well, the demand from
cusiomers 1s strong

Slot cor product range

Sales of Scalextic were buoyed by our

key set 'Demoltion Derby’, a combination of
the product development around our Quick
Build concept, and the simple pleasure of
‘BASH ‘N CRASH' explosive collisions whilst
racing TV adverised, and PR supported it
was recognrsed at the london Toy Far as the
Editor’s choice, and didn't disappornt as it
went on 1o be our biggest selling Scalexine
tem The challenge remains 1o delver

a range of product that works for both
newcomers to the hobby, and the ‘racers’
Internationat performance held up but remains
challenging os markets fell global pressures
on disposable income

Hornby PLC Annuo! Report and Accounis 2014 n
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Operational and Financial Review of the Year

continued

Aurfix

Scles of At were postive as we confinue
1o reestcblish Aifix credenticls os the lead
brond 1o o moss cudience, ond at the scme
time deliver real credibility os the modeller's
model manufacturer The Javelin was a
particular hero item together with the
celebration of the famous ‘Dambusters
lancoster bomber” The introduction of the
Quick Bulld range exceeded intial retaller
expeciaton This further reinforced the nght
decision fo make this product in the United
Kingdom as the beneﬁt of being cble to
increase production to meet significont
demand quickly outweighed I%e marginal
cost increase on this type of product when
compared to our produchion sources in
Chino of Indio

Corgi models

Corg sales contnued to beneit from our
award winring Cergi Toys range Naolable
support come%rom Arges, and Tesco in the
United Kingdom which demonshiates our
ability 1o work wath moss merchant relarlers
Qur heartland of collectors 1s under pressure
from cheapes imitations of the quatity Corg!
delivers We sill manage 1o deliver strong
sales when we maich up the sub categonies
with the nght subject matter — best sellers
being the Eddie Stobart lorries, and our
loncaster bombers wathin the Aviation
Archive sechon of the business

Conhnental Europe

Our subsidiaries have agam sustamned the
most detnmental overall impact to sales as a
result of the supply chain disruption as the
relative proportion of model ralhway sales in
thenr businesses s higher This 15 partcularly
the case in kaly where o disproportionate
share of the supply choin dissuption as @
whole was bome  Furthermore and despite
the weakening Euro exchange rale, sales in
our European subsidiaries were shightty higher
than last year in Sterling terms of £12 2 millon
from £11 5 milhon n 2%13 This was mainly
due to the relaunch of the Pocher brand Our
subsidiaries in mamland Europe contnbuted
an undedrng loss before tax of £1 3 millon
in hne wath that in the previous year Reported
loss before lax was £3 4 million {2013 - loss
of £32 million} including the goodwill
mpament charge (seegbelowl

The current macrc-economic Issues
surrounding the Euro zone continue 1o be @
cause for concem, especially in lkaly and
Spain but also offecting business in France
ond Germany to a lesser extent Cur strong
Europeon brands continue to attract
increasing suppos from the model raibvay
communiies n each of aur key terntones and
where new product hos been ovalcble the
response has been encouraging In German
the introduction of new ‘N scale’ ralcors an
coaches was very successfiul and won some
industry awards The relaunch of the 18
scole Pocher diecast car kils by our Spanish
subsidiary succeeded in generating sales in
more than 30 countres In France the launch
of a new diesel locomative in five different
Ivenies wos voted mode! of the year by one
of the tram magazines, ¢ fittng awaid 1o
mark Jouef's 7Oth anniversary

Goodwill impairment

The previously mentianed supply chain issues
ond general economic weoEness hove
impacted llaly disproporionately, depressing
shortterm cash fiow and eamings resuling in
an impaument charge in the year of £21
million lo goodwill {see nole 8] which arose
on the acquisiion of assets within the llalion
subsidiary in 2004 This noncash one-oft
charge has been made Io the Statement of
Comprehensive Income through Cther
operahing expenses

Amerco

Sales n Homby Amenca were least
mpacled by the supply cham sssues and
increased i the yeor from £2 7 milbon to
£3 0 milhon, producing a profit before tax of
£0085 rmillion (2013 = profit £0 01 milhon)
Notable successes included the introduction
of a range of Arrfix kits into the Barnes and
Moble chan and sales through the
Independent store channel grew by 15%

By order of the Board
Nick Stone

Group Finance Director
26 June 2014
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Our Key Performance Indicators ('KPIs’)

The Directors ore of the opnion that the KPs
are revenues, gross margins underlying profi
belore tax, eamnings per share ond cash
generation, the mfermation for which
cvaloble i these finanaicl statements ond
summensed on the financial highlights sechion

performance going forword The Group
mantains ¢ 1obust plonnng system wath
indvidual tergets for 5Ub$l3l(!rl85 in terms
of growth ond profits The Board moniors
progress against plan on a regular basis
adjusting future objectves annually in Iine

ot the beginning of this report 1n light of the with current circumnstances
work curently being performed on the supply

chain and distibution chanrels, mancgement
are currently constructing addihonal KPls io
monior progress on these key meosures
which are considered fundamental to

Principal nsks and uncertanties

Risk

UK market
dependence

Market
conditions

Distnibution
channels

Competing
brands

Exchange rates

Descriphon

The UK market represents @
signifiicant pari of Group revenue,
71%.n 2014 {2013 - 75%)

The Group's products are sold in
the main to its retall customers
The performance of the market 1s
affected by the general economic
climate, overall consumer and
retaller confidence, and the
changing retall londscape

The retail landscape 15 changing
with the Group's tadihiona! high
sireet independent distibution
netwaork under significant
commercial pressure from online
retalers and discounters

The Group has compehtion in the
model raiway, slot racing mode!
kits, die cast and paint markets

The Group purchases goods

in Hong Kong Dollars and US
Dollars and sells in Pounds Sterling,
Euros and US Dollars ond 1s
therefore exposed to exchange
rote Huctuations

IDENTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board has the prmary responsibility for
dentifying the major nsks facing the Group

Impact/Sensihvity

The Group 1s exposed to o
downturn in the performance of the
brands i the UK as well as to o
downturn m the UK economy

The Group performance

1s impaocted by the global
MQCIo eCONOMIC envircnment
and changes in the wider
retad londscope

High street falures will reduce
tradiional customer base sales
levels and increase credit nsk

Loss of market share to increased
competior achvity would have

o negative iImpac! on the
Group's resulis

Significant fluctuahons in exchange
rates 1o which the Group 15
exposed could have a matenal
adverse effect on the Group's
fulure results

ond developing approprate policies

to manage those nsks The Board has
compleled @ sk ossessment progromme
in arder to wWentify the major nsks and has
reviewed and delermined ony miigating
achons required cs set out below The nsk
assessment has been completed in the

context of the overall strategic objectives and

the business model of theegroup which hos

been se! out on pages & and 7

Mihgahon/Comment

The Board's strategy continues to be to
expand overseas sales The acquisttions of
the brands Airfix, Humbrol, Corg, Electrotren,
Rivaross, Lima, Arnold and Jouel have

provided the Group with a significant shore of
the model rathway, model and die-cast markets

in continental Eurcpe, with the objective of
focliating further growth

In reviewing the future forecasts for the
business the Directors consider reasonable
chonges in macro-economic and associaled
market conditions recognising the potential
for o negative mpact on the Group's results
The Group hos credit insurance in place

i mihgate agonst any specihc retall
customer default

The Group formulates its business strategy,
including the website and direct to consumer
channels, based on the chonging refail
dynamics An increased focus on direct web
based selling, selling directly ot exhibions
and other events and expanding own retail
concession network are all baing developed
1o protect the brand posion

in many of our markets the Group enjoys @
strong market posifion due to the confinued
development of our brands Brands are
exiremely smportant in the mode! sector with
market entry costs being prohibitive

The Group conhnues o hedge shortterm
exposures by establishing forward currency

uichoses using hxed rate and participating
orward contracts up 1o twelve months ahead
It 1s deemed mpractcal to hedge exchange
rale movements beyond that period
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Our Key Performance Indicators ('KPIs') continued

Risk Descriphon

Supply Chain The Group purchases goods,

the mamn, from third parly Chinese

Impact/Sensivity

n The Group does not have exclusive
arrangements with its suppliers

supphers due 1o the significant cost  and there is a nsk that competition

advaniage when compered o
in Europe

products manufactur
The principel suppliers 1o the

for monufoctuning capacity could
lead to delays in infroducing
new products or servicing

Giroup ore Relined, Taleni, Zindart  existing demand
and Micio Plashcs {india}, oll of

whom together are expecied to

contnbute 71% in 2014

Cepital The Group now holds over

Allocation 5,000 product ines across s
own brand range

Product The Groug's products cre subject

compliance to compliance with toy safety
legislation arcund the world

Liquidity Insufficient finencing to mees the

needs of the business

Main control procedures

Management estoblishes control policies and
proce(?ures In response 1o each of the key
nsks identiied Contral procedures operate to
ensure the inegrity of the Group's inanciol
statements, and are designed lo meet the
Group's tequirements ond both finenaial and
operahonal nisks idenhfied 0 eoch area of the
business Conirol procedures are documented
where appropriate and revewed by
monagement and the Board on an ongoing
basis lo ensure contiol weoknesses

are migated

The Group operates a compiehensive annual
planning oncfgudgehng system The annuol
plans and budgets are opproved by the
Boord The Board reviews the management
accounts gt its monthly meetings and financial
forecasts are updated monthly and quarterly
Performance against budget 1s monitored and
where any signiicant dewations are identified
appropriate achon 15 faken

L Hornby PLC Annual Repont and Accounts 20

Input cost escalation 1n Ching
could reduce or remove the
Group's pricing advantage and
impact margins

Producing smaller quantities of
more products puts pressure on
gress morgins and can leod 1o
increased slock levels

Failure to comply could lead 0 ¢
product recall resuling n domage
to Company and brand repulofion
alang with an adverse impact on
the Group's results

Without the appropriate level of
fingncing 1t would be increasingly
difficult to execute the Group's
business plans

te social responsibility
The Board considers the social, environmental
and ethical matters perinent to the Group,
and will review items of significance where
appropriate The nsk assessment procedures
in place ore designed to lighhight any ke(
areas of concem ncluding eo?lh and salety
considerations, employee recruiment and
retention and environmental issues, with
conirols put In place as necessary

The Group 15 pro-aciive in working with oll
suppliers lo ensure compliance wath the
International Councll of Toy Indusines [1CTT)
Code of Business Practices to include child
and forced lobour, working conditions, houts
of work, pay, nondiscimination and health
and scfetY Compliance 1s managed through
an ennual audit process

Homby Plc acknowledges the UN Guiding
Panciples on Business and Human Rl?hls and
has many pohoes and inhaives in ploce 1o
dentfy, prevert, miigate ond account for
how we are addressing key human nghts

14

Mihgahon/Comment

The Group 1s contiruing to develop and
dversity s supplier portfolio, which includes
o supp?:(er in India and more recenily in the
UK, ond clesely moniters production through
an increased number of locally-based
employees [who also ensure the maintenance
of quality standards)

An improved capital allocahion process 1s
being developed to deliver o more focused
product range in line with consumer demand
with rabust gross margins

Robust internal processes and procedures,
ochve moniforing of proposed legisiction ond
involvement n policy debate ond lobbying of
the relevant outhorhes

The Group has ¢ fixed term loan agreement
expiring 0 july 2014 of £1 5 milhon os at 31
March 2014 (€4 5 millien ot 31 March 2013}
and a revolving credit factlity of £10 million
expinng August 2015 The Group's policy on
hquidity nsk 15 to montain adequate focilies
to meet the fuure needs of the business

issues We conlinue to work with siakehalders
to undersiand better and respond 1o these
1ssues, however there has never been a
human nghts 1ssue that has had a direct
impact on the activiies of the business and
accordingly the Group has nothing furthes

to disclose

We have a Group employee Code of
Conduct which covers a wide range of
human nghts including disenminciion and
working conditions The Company also has
HR policies, Health & Sofety pohcies, an
AntrBrbery & Corruption Policy and @
Whistle-blowang Policy which encompass
key human nghts

it 1s the Group's policy fo recrui, #ran,
promote and treat all personnel on grounds
solely based on indmidual performance The
prnciples ase applied regardless of gender,
sexual anentation, religion, age, nahonality or
ethnic ongin




The Group’s split between male and female employees as ot 3) March 2014 15 shown below

Famole Mcle Tol
Directors - 4 4
Sentor managers {including Statutory Directars of subsidiary entihes) i 7 8
Employees 109 129 238
Total 110 140 250

Environmentual responsibility

The Group believes that protection of the
ervironmenl 1s an m!egrofpcrt of good
practice and that it should satsfy itself that ol
of s operations are conducted with
recsonable proper regard for the
environment {Hs committed to maintaming,
and wherever possible improving, the quclity
of this environment both for the people who
work in the Group, ond for the wider
community now and n the future The Group
seeks to make the most effective and efficient
use of all resources, encouraging all members
of the Group to develop an ecdlogically
scund opproach to therr work

Year ended 31 March 2014

Carbon emissions data

The Group has implemented the UK
Government’s Guidance on measunng

and reporting greenhouse gas emissions,

in hne with DEFRA guidelines We have used
the UK Government Environmental Reporting
Guidelines {2013}, supplemented by the
GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard {revised edsion) and
emissions factors om UK Government's
GHG Conversion factors for Company
Reporing 2013

The GHG Profacol defines direct ond indirect
emissians os follows Direct GHG emissions
are emissions from sources thot are owned
or controlled by the reporiing entity, Indirect
GHG emissions are emissions thal cre a
consequence of the actnties of the reporiing
entty, bul occur af sources owned or
controlled by another entity The GHG
Protocol further categonzes these direct and
indirect emissions to which Hornby hos
respensibility lo report under scope 1 and

scope 2 os set out in the following table

* Scope | All direct GHG emissions

* Scope 2 Indirect GHG emissions from
consumption of purchesed electricity,
heat or steam

Yeor ended 31 March 2013

Scope 1 Scopa 2 Scope 1 Scope 2

tonnes (0,8 tonnes COe tonnes COe  fonnes COe

UK 641 469 UK 814 505
Europe 52 35 Europe 54 37
Rest of World 27 31 Rest of World 19 33
Group revenue {2013-14) £m 52 Group revenue [2012-13) £m 58
Intensity raho tannage/£'m of revenue 24 Intensity ratio tonnage/E£'m of revenue 25

By order of the Board

Nick Stone
Group Finance Director
26 june 2004
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Directors’ Report

The Directors submit thetr Annucl Report together with the oudited
consoldated financiol statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
The Corporate Gavernance Report on pages 20 1o 24 forms part of
the Direciors’ Repert

The Group's business review along with future developments and the
principe! nsks and uncenainties facing the Group are included in the
Strategic review The Groug's Corparate Governance Stalement 1s set
out in the Corporate Governance Repert on poges 20 to 24

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company 15 o holding company registered in England

No 01547390 wath a Spanish branch and has six operating
subsidiones Hornby Hobhies bmited n the United Kingdom with a
branch in Hong Keng, Homby Amenca Inc in the US, Homby Espana
S A in Span, Homby lialia s rl in lialy, Hornby France 5 A'S in Fronce
ond Homby Deutschlond GmbH in Germany Homby Ple 1s o public
limited compeny which i hsied on the London Stock Exchange, and
incorporated and operating in the United Kingdem Its registered office
15 set out on poge 16

The Group 15 pnncipally engaged in the development, design, sourcing
and disinbution of hebby and nteractive home entertcinment products

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the year ended 31 March 2014 ore set out in the Group
Siatement of Comprehensive Income on page 38 Revenve for the

ear was £51 6 millon compared to £574 million last year The loss
\fénr the year ctnbutable to equity holders amounted to £4 4 mijlon
{2013 ~ £2 5 milion loss) The position of the Group and Company 1s
set out I the Group and Company Balance Sheets on page 39

No infenm dividend was dedlared in the year (2013 — £nil) and the
Direciors do not recommend a hinal devidend (2013 — £nd)

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

The Group has recenily been successful in renegotiating iis main
barking focltes for o futher 18 months At 31 March 2014 the
Group%\od a revolving credt facilty of £10 milkon expinng August
2015 and o five-year fixedterm loan agreement of £12 million with
outslonding repayments of £1 5 million scheduled to be completed
by July 2014 These have now been replaced by a new revolving
credit faciity of £13 sullon expinng in December 2015 which 1s
expected to allow sufiicient headroom for roding working capital
needs In the current year whilst longer term plans and funding
requirements ore developed

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Board considers thot research and development into producis
continues to play an important role in the Group's success All RAD
costs incurred 1n the year have been charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and ore set out in note 4

DIRECTORS
The persons who were Direclors duning the Yecr and up fo the date of
signing the financial statements are listed below

Richard Ames, aged 44, was opponled Io the Board on 28 Aprl
2014 and has o wealth of expenence of leading fast moving
consumer facing businesses His most recent role was as a Director of

Ladbrokes PLC, where lotierty he wos Menaging Direciar of their
Product Division He joined todbrokes m 2005 ond had n the UK
and Irelond Retail cperalions where he wos responsible for monaging
a suceesstul retail tunaround strotegy Earlier in his career he worked ot
Drxons Stores Group Plc as Markehing Director m Essentials and prior
10 this he was the Purchasing Direetor in Domeshe Apphances
operotions He ako helped to leod the consumer electronics divisions
at Asda Wal Mart and he staried his career of Philips

Consumer Electronics

Roger Canham, oged 50, wos appointed to the Board on 7 November
2012 and became Chairman on 1 February 2013 Roger has been
Chairrnan of Phoenix Asset Management Pariners bmited {Phoenix)
since 2009 and clso owns and manages o number of property
development comparies Prior 1o that, he wos o NorrExeculive Director
of Goshawk Insurance Holdings PLC from 2007 untl the business was
acquired in 2008, and o Director of Brake Bros bimited, for o year
following s acquisiion of W Pauley & Co bimited in 2002

Mr Con%cm joined W Pauley & Co Limited in 1990 and become
Managing Drector in 1996

Nick P Stone, aged 50, |oined the Group on 14 Jenvary 2013 ond
was appomnted Group Finance Director on 1 Februory 2013 Nick
was previously the Operations ond Finance Director at KBC Advanced
Technologies PLC ond earler in his career was interr Finance Director
at Acadentcare Group PIC, Finance Direclor af kambert Fenchurch
Limited and held positions at Mobil Oil Corporation

Q January 2014 Dawvid 1s currently a senior Nom-Executive Direcior of
Halkards plc and norrexecutive Charrman of Conviviality Retall ple and
Park Comeras ltd Dowvid also chairs Waolk the Walk, the breast cancer
chasity Pror lo that, he was also Deputy Charrman and Group
Finance Duector of House of Fraser and nenexecutive Chairman

of Musto

David Adams, aged 59, was op&omied o NonExecutive Director on

Charle Cominado, aged 56, was appointed a Non-Execulive
Drector on @ January 2014 Chaorlie was previously Chief Operating
Officer of HIT Entertainment, which 1s now part of Mattel His most
recen! posiion was the Founder and Chief Operating Officer of
Ludorum, o media invesiment company that focuses on manoging the
IP franchises for children’s entertainment brands, including Chuggingten
Charlie led the company's IPO on AlM in 2006

Fronk Martin, oged 62, was appointed Chief Executive on 3 January
2001 and Deputy Charman on  Aprl 2013 Frank formally stepped
down from the Board with effect from @ January 2014

Nigel M Camngton, aged 58, was apponted a NonExeculive
Duector on 1 December 2007 Nige! resigned from the Board on
31 January 2014

Mark E Rolfe, aged 55, was appanted a NorExecutive Direclor on
1 Januory 2008 Mark resigred from the Board cn 31 January 2014

The interests of the Direciors in the shares of the Company and in

ophons granted over such shares are disclosed in the Direciors’
Remuneration Report on pages 25 to 32
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Directors’ Report continued

The number of Board meetings held during the year and atiendance
by the Direciors 15 set cut on poge 20

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company maintans hability insurance for s Direciors and othicers
duning the finonciol year ond up 1o the date of approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts The Company hos also provided an indemnity
for 1ts Diectors ond the secretary, which 1s o quolifying third party
indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companres Act 2006

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

The Compony hos been netfied that of close of business on 21 June
2014 the followang parhies were interested in 3% or more of the
Company's ordincry share copital

Number of Percentoge

Shareholder ardinary shares held
New Pistoia Income Limited 6,215,401 1587
Phoenix Asset Manogement Partners

timited 6129323 1565
Electia Quoted Poriners 2995150 7 &5
PJ Wood 2,821,500 720
1] Hosking 1,597.234 408
Artermis Fund Managers Uid 1,396,758 357
Henderson Global Investors 1,211,523 309

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financaial instruments, other than denvatives, compnse
borrowings, cash ond hquid resources, and varous tems, such as
trade recevables, frade poyobles, etc thal anse directly from its
operotions The Group's finoncial hiabilites compnise boowings,
trade payatles, other payables and finance leases The main
purpose of the Group's borrowings 1s to raise finance for the Group's
cperations The Group also has ﬁnunmol ossels compnsing cash
and frade and other recevables

The Group also enters into denvaiives onsachons (prinepally forward
foreign currency contracts) The purpose of such tansachons 1s lo
manage the currency nsks onsing from the Group's operations s,
and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's policy
that no speculaiive trading n financial instruments shall be undertaken

PERSONNEL POLICIES

It 15 the policy of the Group o follow equal opportunity employment
prachices and these indude the full consideration of employment
prospects for the discbled

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully
cgnildered, bearnng ﬁymlnd I?é optitudes of the applicant concemed
It 15 the policy of the Group that the Ircnnm?, career development and
promation of disabled persons shauld, as for as possible, be identical
with that of ather emplayees Arangements are made, wherever
possible, for retraining employess who become disabled, 1o enable
them to perform work identified os oppropnate fo therr aptitudes
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The Group places importance on the contnbuticns fo be made by oll
employees to the progress of the Group and aims 1o keep them
informed by the useocﬁ formal and informal meetings One of the
Company's incentive scheme mncludes shere scheme aptions for
Drectors ond senor management further detail of which ts covered
wiihin the Remuneration Report on pages 25 1o 32

SHARE CAPITAL

The share caprial of the Compony compnses ordinary shores of 1p
each Eoch sﬁc:re carmes the nght ko one vole at general meetings of
the Company The issued share copiial of the Company, together with
movements in the Company's 1ssued shore copital 15 shown n note 21

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
A resolution 1o reappoint the auditors, PncewaterhouseCoopers P, will
be proposed ot the forthcorming Annual General Meeting

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeling 1s scheduled for 10 September 2014

A separate nohce of the noiice of Annual General Meeting will
accompony this Annual Report ond Accounts when 1t is sent 1o
shareholders The notce oﬁﬁe Annucl General Meeling 15 important
and requires your immediate ctiention I you are in any doubl s to
what action to take in relation fo the Annual General Meeting, you
should consult appropnate independent odwsers The following speciol
resolutions were passed at the last Annual General Meeting and
remain In force until the next Annual General Meeting

Resolution 10

Under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act), the
Drectors may allot urissued shares or grant nghts over such shares
only if authonsed to do so by shareholders This resoluton gives the
Directors outhortty to allot new ordinary shares in the copital of the
Company or grant nghls to subscrlbe?;r, or convert any secun?/ inlo,
shares in the Company, up to an aggregate nominal amount o
£130,000, which represents approximaiely 33% of the Company's
issued ordinary copital os at 6 June 2013 [being the latest prackcable
date prior to the publication of this notice] Thus authoriy renews that
given at last year's Annual General Meeting and will expiee af 12
noon on 24 July 2018 The Drectors did nol have any present infention
of exercising the authonty granted by this resolution except in
connechon with the Company's share schemes However, it s
considered prudent to mainican the flexibility that this authonty prowides

Under the guidelines of the Associotion of Banish Insurers on authonty to
allot shares companies may seek basic authonty o ollol new shares in
an amount of up to onethird of the existing 1ssued share capital and
this request will be regarded as routne under guidelines

Resoluthon 11

It was proposed o renew the authonly 1o the Directors 1o allot equity
secunties for cash without first being required to offer such secunties to
exising membess This included the sale for cash on o norrpreempiive
basis of any shares which the Company holds in ireasury The outhonty
15 hmiled 1o the 1ssue of shares for cash up 1o an oggregate nomnal
amount of £12000 representing approximately 5% o?ﬁ'le Issued
ordinary share capiial of the Compony as at & June 2013 {beng the
latest prochicable date prior to the publication of last year's nehce)

The authonty will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company




The Direciors do not intend 1o 1ssue more than 7 5% of the 1ssued
ardinary share captal of the Campany n any wlling three year penod
without prior consultation with the Inshiutional Investment Commitice
Mermbers will note that this resoluticn also relates to the scle of
treasury shcres

Resolution 12

The Company obtained outhonty to purchase up 1o approxsmaiely
10% of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share copital al, or between,
the mimum and maximum prices specihied in this resoluion As at &
June 2013 (being the latest prochccEle date prior to the publication of
thus notice), the total number of options 1o subscnbe for shares i the
Company was 365,809 (approximately 09% of the Company's
issued ordinary share capitol and opproximately 2 4% of the
Company's ssued ordinory share copiial |f the KJ" authonty proposed
by resolution 12 was used ond the shares purchosed were concelled)
This power would be used orly ofter careful considesation by the
Direciors, hawing taken mio account market conditions prevailing ot that
lime, the investment needs of the Company, s opporiuniiies for
expansion and its overall finoncial posiion The Directors would
exercise the outhority to purchose ordmary shares only if they
considered i to be n the best nterest of Ize members and they believe
that the effect of such purchases will be to increase eamings per share

The Company [Acquisiton of Own Shores) {Treasury Shares}
Regulotions 2003 come info force on 1 December 2003 These
regulotions allow shares repurchased by the Company o be held as
treasury shares rother than being cancelled Treasury shares moy be
cancelled, resold for cash or used for the purpose of empl share
schemes but all nghts ahtaching te them, ncluding voting n(gyﬁzeond any
nght to recewve dvdends, are suspended whilst gey are held n
treosury The authority sought by this resolution 1s intended 1o opply
equally 1o shares 1o be held by the Company as treasury shares The
Company currently holds nc treasury shares

The authonty obtaned af the Annual General Mesting will exprre at

the earlier of the date which falls 18 months from the date this

resolulion 1s Ecssed and the conclusion of the next Annual General
ihe

Meeting of the Company
Signed on behalf of the Board
N P Stone

Finance Director

Westwood

Margate »

Kent CTG 4)X J')
26 June 2014 / D
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Corporate Governance

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of maniaining high
slandords of corporate governance This report has been stuctured o
report corporale govenance arrangements ond prachces against the
requiements of the UK Coiporole mance Code 1ssued by the
financial Reparting Councll in September 2012

Throughout the year ended 31 Maich 2014, the Company has been
in comphiance with the Code provisions except with provision A 2 1 of
the UK Corporate Governance Code On 1 Apnl 2013 Frank Martin
stood down as Chief Executive and took the role of Deputy Chairmon
The search for a new Chief Executive wos started immediately and for
the intenm penod Roger Canhom became Executve Charman He
will revert 1o a nenexecutive Chairman role from 1 June 2014 cfter a
transiton pencd with the appainiment of the new Chief Executive M
Richard Ames who jaimed the Group on 28 Apnl 2014

HOW THE BOARD OPERATES

The Board is responsible for the averall conduct of the Group's business
and hes the powers and duties set out in the relevant laws of England
and Wales ond our arhicles of associction The Boord 15 responsible
for sething the Group strategy and for the management, direchion and
performance of our businesses, 1s accountable to shareholders for the
proper corduct of the business, 1s respensible for the longterm success
of the Compeny, having regerd for the interests of ol stakeholders, ond
15 responsible for ensunng the effectiveness of and reparting on our
system of corporate governance

The Board hos o formal schedule of matters reserved for ils deasion
ond these include Group sirategy and longderm plans, majer copital
projects, coquistions or divestments, annual budgat and operatin
E|an, Group financial struciure, including tax and treasury, onnuo?cnd
affyear financial sesulls and shareholder communications, and system
of mtemal control ond risk manogement The schedule 15 reviewed
annually It was lost revewed n March 2014 when it was deaded

that no amendments were required

LEADERSHIP

The Boord 1s responsible for the longterm success of the Company
and s responsible to shareholders for ensunng that the Group 1s
opp{opnotel?f monaged and achieves its objectives The Board 15 also
responsible for the system of corporate governance, strategy, nisk
management and hinancial performance The Company’s goveinance
structure 15 consistent with the leadership principles set out in the Code

The Board believes its current siructure 1s approprate for the scale of
the business and to enable the Group to be managed efficiently

During the year the Board compnsed the Executive Chairman, Deputy
Chanman (untl @ January 2014}, Finance Director, and two to four
NorExecutve Direciors The thid and fourth NonrExeculive Dreclors
were a temporary stuahon from 9 January 2014 tll 31 January 2014
when a handover penod occurred between the nom

execuve Directors

Chairman and Chuef Executive

In the year lo 31 March 2014, the roles of Charman and Chief
Executive were combined for o temporary intenm penod while a new
Chiel Executive wos recruled With effect from 1 June 2014 after o
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transthon ;f')enod, the two roles are once agam separate with a dear
divisicn o responsubllltr and Roger Canham will relurn 1o @ Norr
Executve Chairman role

Senior Independent Director

The Board has appoinied David Adams 1o the role of Senor
Indepenrdent Director This role provides a point of contact to those
shareholders who wish to raise ssues with the Board, other than
through the Chairman

The Boord monitors the performance of the Group as a whole by,

» Engaging of Boord meelings with, and challenging the Chief
Executive and Group Finance Direcior, os appropnate, on the
financicl ond operating performarce of the Group and external
issues malenal 1o the Group's prospects

» Evaluahing progress towords the achievement of the Group's
hinancict and business objeciives and plans

* Menitoring the signifricant nsks facing the Group

EFFECTIVENESS

Boord composton

The Board conteins @ range of complementary skills, expenence and
knowledge that 1s considered oppropriate for the scole of the business
The biographical detalls of all Boord members are pravided an

page 1

The Bocrd considers the NomExecutive Directors who served during
the year to be independent of monagement and free from any
business or other elatonship which could interfere with the exeraise of
their independent judgement Code provision B 1 2 requires non-FTSE
350 companies 1o have at least two indepandent non-

executive Directors

This year hos been a penod of transhon for the Board, a year where
Roger Canhem siepped nio an Executive Chairman role while a new
Chief Executive was recruted  Therefore n ine with the UK Corporate
Govemnance Code the Board has reflected on its performance and
undertaken a ngorous review of the effechiveness of the performance of
the Board bosed on discussions with ather members of the Board, and
has concluded thot # operoted effectively and execuied commiiment 1o
the roles Following the transihon penod from 1 June 2014 ond in line
with the code the senior independent non-executive will carry out this
function and perform a detalled evoluotion of the Boord's ongoing
effectveness over the next year

During the year eleven Board meetings were held All Direclors
attended all meetings

The Bocrd hos odopted a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved fo 1t for decisions including the determination of the sirategy,
the approval of business plans, budgets, acquisitions ond disposals,
maor copilal purchases, Board appointments, accounting policies and
treasury arrangements

The Beard olso delegotes specihe responsibilihes io committees as
described below The Boord meets monthly and monutors progress
ogainst plan at each meeting




The Direclors have the autheniy of the Board to oblon externcl tegal or
olher independert professional advice in the furtherance of ther duties
al the Compary's expense All Direciors have occess to the adwice
and services of the Comgony Secretary, who ts responsible for
ensunng Board procedures qre followed and applicable rules and
regulations are comphed with The Executive Directors have cll

received approprale franing for their appointment fo the Board of o
Isted company The NorrExecutive Directors bring a broad expertise
1o the Board David Adams and Charlie Cominada are both
expenenced company Drectors

Appointments to the Board

Nominahons Committee

The Nominations Commifiee compnises the Executive Chairman os well
os executive and Non-Executive Directors There were three
appomtments to the Boord during the year ended 31 March 2014,
David Adams ond Charlie Caminada in Jonwary 2014 both to replace
exsting Direclors who were stonding down ond Richard Ames in
Februory 2014 — who formally joined the Board on 28 Apnl 2014 as
Chiet Executive Appointments 1o the Board require the Board's
authonsaticn and are conducted by the Nominations Committee

The duties of the Nominations Commilttee are avalleble from the terms
of reference and include regularly reviewing the structure, size and
compaosiion requied of the Board and moEmg recommendations lo
the Board with regerd to any chonges, giving full consideration to
succession planning for Directors and other senior execuives, dentfying
and nominating candidates to fill Boord vaconcies and evalualing the
balance of skills, knowledge and expenence an the Board before an
appowtment 15 made The terms of reference are availlable on the
Company's website, covenng the cuthonty delegated to i by the Boord

The polential condidates are inferviewed by etther the Nominations
Commitiee or a panel appointed by that Commitiee An appoiniment
requires the fincl approval of the Board prior o an offer

being forwarded

Information and professional development

The Chief Executive 15 responsible for ensunng that Drectors receive
accurate, imely and clear information Management has an obhgation
to provide such information but Directors should sesk darfication or
omplficaton where necessary

The Chairmon 1s responsible for ensunng that Directors conbinually
update ther skills and the knowledge and familianty with the Company
required lo fulfil therr cole Resources are available on request 1o
develop and update the Directors’ knowledge and copabilines

Re-elechon

The Company’s Articles of Association cutrently require newly
appomied Direciors to cffer themselves for election and one third of the
Direciors to retiie by rolahon ot each Annual General Meeting
Therefore, Richard Ames, Dowid Adoms and Cherlie Cominada offer
themselves for election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting In
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Cade, the norretinng
Dueclors have conducied o review of their contnbution to the Board
and can confirm that they conlinue 1o be effective Direciors and to
execute commiiment ko the role

Avdit Committee and Auditors

The Audit Committee compnses Dowd Adems and Chearlie Caminada
David Adams became Chairman of the Audit Commitiee on

31 Jonuary 2014 He 1s o Fellow of the [nstiute of Cost and
Management Accountonis and s considered by the Board to have
recent and relevant financiot expenence, os requied by the Code
Chorhe Caminada has o wide range of business experience, which 1s
evidenced by his biography set out in the Direciors’ Report

The Committee meets al least thiee times o year and the Chouman,
Chief Executive, Finance Director, Company Secretary and other
mancgers citend by mvitation The Group'’s Auditors attend meetings
ond have drect cecess to the Committiee The terms of reference are
avallable on the Company's website, covering the authority delegoied
to it by the Board

Control environment

The Board has put in place an organisational structure with clearly
defined and understood tines of responsibility ond delegation of
authonty The Board promotes a strong contral environment with a
strong ethical cimate

REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Commitiee compnises Chorlie Caminada and Davd
Adems Chorlie Caminada 1s the Chairman of the Remuneratian
Commitiee Before 9 January 2014 when Charlie and Dowd joined
the Board the Remuneration Committee consisted of Nigel Carmngton
and Mark Rolfe who stepped down on 31 January clter o short
transihon peniod between 9 and 31 Januory when all for non-
execulives were members of the Remuneration Commiltes

The Commitiee met three times in iotal dunng the year with ali members
being present The Commitiee 15 responsible for estoblishing formal ond
transparent procedures for determining policy on execuive remuneration
and advising the Board on executive remuneration and in particular for
ensunng thot executive remuneration packages are sufficent io attradt,
retain and motvate Executve Directors of the sequired quality whilst
avoiding paying more than necessary | alse endeavours lo establish
performance re?cted elements of remuneration which align the mierests of
the Duectors with those of the shareholders No Director s involved in
deciding his own remuneration and the Board itself determines the
remuneration of the NorrExecutive Directors The terms of reference are
avallable on the Company’s webstte, covering the outhonty delegated to
it by the Board Further detall of Dveciors’ remuneration s provided in the
Duwectors Remuneration Report

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board 15 committed 1o providing shoreholders with a clear
assessment of the Company's finanaiol postion and prospects This 15
achieved through the Annual Report and Accounts and through other

penodic financial statements ond announcements

Internal Control and Risk Mancgement

The Bowid 15 responsible for the operation and effechiveness of the
Group's sysiem of inlemal controls and risk menagement There 1s o
conhnuous process for dentfying, evoluating end moeneging the
signhicant nsks the Group foces This process has been mngace
throughout the year under review and up 1o the date of approval of the
Annual Report and Accounts, and complies futy wilh the

Turnbull guidance
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Corporate Governance continued

The Audit Commitiee considered reparts from Group financial
manogemert on the operation of, and 1ssues ansing from the Groug's
internal contrcl procedures The Audit Commitiee manitored the
effectveness of the Group's nsk manogemenl process, which
considered the key nsks, both fincnaiel end norinanaial, focing the
Group and the effectiveness of the Group's controls to manage and
reduce the impact of those nsks

The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Group's system of
intemal control The Board's monitenng covers all key contrals,
including financiol, operatione! and compliance controls and nsk
management |t 15 based prncipolly on reviewing reports from
management to consider whether significant nsks cre identiied,
evolucted, managed and controlled ond whether any significant
weaknesses are prompily remedied ond indicate a need for more
exiensive monitonng

The Audit Committee reviews ond discusses with management and the
extendl audier the halyear and annual financial statements focusing
on, amongst other matiers, the quality and c:ccep!oblhgf of accounting
pelicies and prachces, the clcng/ of the disclosures ond comphance
with financial reporting standerds end relevont finonaial ond
governance reporting requirements, and matenic! areas in which
significant judgements have been applied These are discussed further
within the Audit Committee report on peges 23 ond 24

The internal control systems are designed 1o meet the Group's particular
needs and the nsks to which it 1s exposed and by their nature can only

rovide reasonable but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
oss Dunng the year, the Group continued 10 toke achion lo enhance
these contro! systems, based upon its own process Improvement
mniiatives and auditors’ cecommendabions

The Audit Commitiee reviews and reports 1o the Board on the
effectiveness of the Group's systems of inferal contral on an ongaing
basis dunng the year and no significant weaknesses hove been

identified

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates regularly with its inshtutional shareholders
and encoursges communication with private tvestors through the
Annual General Meeting

David Adams 15 the senior independent NonrExecutive Director The
senor independent NorrExecutive Direclor welcomes direct discussion
with shareholders The Executive Directors update major sharsholders
al institutional visits and analyst presentations immediately after the
infenm and final announcements

The Board uses the Annual Generol Meefing as an occosion for
commumication with s shoreholders All proxy votes are counted by
the Compony's registrars and the vohng on each resolution 1s made
ovailable 1o the meetng Directors of the Company and the UK
subsidiary attend the meeting 1o respond to specific queshions

Share Capital

Details of our Share Coprtal structure can be found on page 18 of the
Direclors’ Report and in Note 21
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Going Concern

A review of Group business aciviies and future cullock are set out on
pages 2 to 3 of the Charman's Statement and within pages 4 1o 7 of
the Sticlegic Review The linanaigl pesinen of the Group, iis cash flows
and hguidity postion are shown in the bolonce sheet, cosh flow
stotement and accompanying notes fo the financiol sictements The
principa! business nsks associated with the business ore shown on
poges 13 to 14, whilst the nsks onsing from the Gioup's financial
instruments are covered in note 19

The Direclors, in therr consideration of going concemn, have reviewed
the Greup's future cash flow forecasts and revenue projections, which
they beleve are based on a realistic assessment of future

business perfermance

The Group's forecasts and projechions, taking account of reasongble

ssible changes n :rodm% performance, snow thot the Group should
EZ able 1o operate within the levels of i1s ogreed focliies Accordingly
the Directors believe it appropriate 1o prepore the financial siofements
of the Group cn @ going concemn basis

Takeovers Direchve

Pursuant lo S992 of the Componies Acl 2006, which implements the
EU Tokeovers Directive, the Company 15 required to disclose ceriain
odditienal informabon The following gives those disclosures which are
nct covered elsewhere in this Anaual Report

The Compary's Articles of Association [the ‘Articles’] give the Board
power io appoint Directors, but also require Direclors to retre and
submit themselves for election ot the first Annyal General Meeting
following ther appointment A Drrector wha retires in this way 1s
ehgble ?or election but 15 not laken info account when deciding how
many Directors should refire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting The Articles themselves may be omended by special
resoluhion of the shareholders

Pursuant 1o the Arhicles, ai every Annual General Meeling, one thixd
of the current Directors must rehre by rotation

The Bosrd of Directors 1s responsible for the manogement of the
business of the Company and may exercise all the powers of the
Company subject to the provisions of the Company's Memorandurn
of Associahion and the Arhicles

The Articles contain specific provisions and resinchions regarding the
Company's 1 to borrow money Powers relaling 1o the ssuing
and buying mof shares are olso included in the Aridles and
shareholders are asked 1o renew such authonties each year at the
AGM A copy of the Asticles 1s available on request from the
Company Secretary

There are a number of agreements that take effect, dlier or terminate
upon a change of contiol of the Compony following o takeover,

such as commercral contiacts, bank agreements, propesty lease
arrangements and employess’ share plans None of these ore deemed
to be significant in terms of therr potenticl impact on the business of the
Group as a whole




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Statement by the Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Committee’s role 15 to assist the Board by reviewing the Group's
finencial reporting, the need for an internok audit function and the
internal qudit rleviews conducted, the appropnateness of the Group's
internal centrols, and complionce with governance, financiol ond other
complionce 1ssues

This year there are new requirements for the Commitiee lo disclose the
signiicant accounting [udgements It has exarmined in the course of s
review of the Annual Report, and for the Commitiee to consider
whether the Annual Report 1s for, balanced and undesstandeble and
lo disclose 1ts conclusions on these matters

This repont explains how the Audit Commitiee has discharged s

responsibiliies, and takes inte accourt the thiee spechic areos

highlighted 1n the revised Corparate Governance Code

¢ Significant 1ssues considered n relahion to the financial siatements

» Externol Audit effectiveness and appomtment

¢ External Audiy ebjectivity and mdependence and the impact of
non-audit work

David Adams
Chairman of the Audit Committee
26 June 2014

MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commiliee compnses Dawvd Adams and Chorie Caminada
Dawd Adams became Chairman of the Audit Commitiee on 3 January
2014 He 1s o Fellow of the Institute of Chertered Accountants in
Englond and Wales and is considered by the Boord to have recent
ond relevant financial expenence, as required by the Code Charlie
Caminade has a wide range of business experience, which i1s
evidenced by his biography set out in the Duectors’ Report The
previous members of the Audil Committee were Mark Roffe {Charr) and
Nigel Comingtan who both stepped down from the Board and Audit
Commitiee on 31 Jonuary 2014 dfier @ short handover penod The
members of the previous Audit Committee also met three imes a yeor

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held in line with
the Commitiee’s formal hmetable All members attended cll meetings
The Commitiee also meels privolely with representatives of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group's external auditors Other
employees of the Group may dlso be invited to attend meelings as
deemed oppropncte

In two of the meetings held, the cpproval of announcements for the
Groug's full yeor cng infenm resulls were considered The Commitiee
considered the financial repoiting judgements made which ore
informed by accounting papers and financial reports prepared by
management and revi by the Groug’s external audiars,
PricewalerhouseCoopers It also considered whether the
onnouncements were balanced and fair and that the tone of the
ennouncement reflected the resulls of the Group

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

There were two main significans udgemenis that the Commiltee has
reviewed this year These were, assessing the impairment of goodwill
and In parhicular the weighted average cost of capital used within the
impairment reviews conducted by management, this included ¢ review
of the assumptions used In genesating the weighted average cost of
capicl, and going concem

Following the acquisiion of Hornby liahia in 2004, the Group held
significant goodwall within the lralian subsidiary With pressure on it
revenues there 15 a nsk that the business may not meet either the growth
projections anticipated by the business or those necessary 1o support
the carrying volue of the goodwill held The Audit Committee has
concluded that 1t 15 10 agreement with manogement that the remaining
goodwill held In Hamby laha of £2 046 millon should be impaired
in additon to this the Audit Committee has concluded that the
additional nei deferred lax asset posiion generated locolly from the
impairment 15 not deemed fo be lully recoverable and therefore o
significont portion of £1 2 millon of this of £1 5 million pmankby
associcted wilh losses carred forward has not been recognised
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Corporate Governance continued

The going concemn cssumption 1s inherent to the preparchion of the
financial staiements and the Committee hos ensuremcf the renewal of
the fociites for o least the next 18 months with the Group's bankers 1s
complete in concluding on the going concem assumption The Audit
Commitiee hes receved detalled reports from the Homby finance
team and external adwsers addressing this 1ssue and has concluded
that it 1s sahsfied with the going concern assumption

The Commitiee also reported 1o the Board that it considers, when
taken as a wholg, the 2014 Annual Report wes farr, belanced and
understandcble and includes the necessary information to assess the
performonce, business model and srategy of the Company

REMIT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In addion 1o s work reviewing the Groug's inonaial statements

noted above, the Committee has

* Made recommendalions on the appomntment ond remuneration
of the extemnol auditors and mondored ther performance

* Reviewed the nalure ond scope of the work to be performed by
the external quditors, the results of ther qudit work and
maragement's responses lo therr recommendations

* Monitored the independence of the external cuditers and
recommended palicy for any nen-audit services they provide ic
ensure that ther independence 15 not compromised

¢+ Reviewed and odvised the Board on the Company’s inlerm
himancial statements and related announcements, s cccounhng
EOIICIES and on the control and mingation of its financial and

usiness nsks

¢ Reviewed and adwised the Board on the effeciveness of the
Company's infernal control enviranment, including its procedures
for detecting froud and ‘whisile blowang’ and for the prevention
of bribery

* Monitared the Company's systems of internal inanciol control
and nsk management systems and ensured that these are
properly reviewed by Group management on an engoing basis
ond n thl of changes in the business

* Considered its own effectiveness and made recommendations to
the Board where necessary

* Reported o the Board on how it has discharged its responsibiliies

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Committee has odopted a specific policy on auditor
independence, sefting out resinclions on specific non-oudit activities
such as bookkeeping, payroll sevices and advecacy, and procedures
and authonty levels i?:r oudit and nonaudil fees

The policy specihies

. Ee external auditors can be used to provide non-audit services
provided therr proposal 1s formally approved by the Audil
Committee befose controctual arrangements are entered into
except for the half year review
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In addiion the externcl auditor follows its own ethical guidelines and
continually reviews its oudit team 1o ensure independence 15 not
compromised In the current finoncial year the oudit fee fell within the
11 1atio ond these are set out within note 4

Hornby believes that it recerves pariicular benefit from the externcl
auditors’ advice on polential accounting changes and any fax
consequences thereol, gven its audiors’ de:cn?ed knowledge of

the Group The Board considers dliernative providers if praciical

ond seeks confirmation prior fo engoging services thal Independence
wili not be compromised

To assess the effeciveness of the exiernal audiors, the Commitiee
reviewed therr fulfilment of the agreed audd plan, the rcbusiness and
percephveness of the auditors 1n therr handling of key accounting and
audit judgements, the content of then letter 1o the Audit Committee on
centrol matters and adherence o service stondards sef out In Homby's
Audit Charter policy There are no conlraciual resinchions on the choice
of the Committee as to external audit and, having considered the
services provided by the current external cuditars,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LUF, therr independence ond knowledge of
the Group, the Commifiee hos recommended 1o the Board the
reapposntment of the auditors ot the Annual Genercl Meeting in
Septerber 2014 In reaching this decision the Commitiee has token
into accourt the tenure of the auditors of greater then fen years ond
considered whether there should be a fulltender process The
Commitiee olso hod regord to the likelihood of a withdrawal of the
ouditor from the morket

INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Committee considered reports from Group financial management
on the operation of, and issues ansing ham the Group's mlerno?con!rol
procedures The Committee monitored the effectiveness of the Group's
nsk management process, which considered the key nsks, beth
financial and nondfinoncial, facing the Group and the effeciiveness of
the Group's contrals lo manage and reduce the impac) of those nsks
These principal risks are set out on pages 1310 14

The Committee considers annually the need for an miemal audit
funcion, but currently believes that this 1s not stfied gven the size,
nature of the Group and & programme of visits to Homby locations
carned out by senior Group financial management

Asrangements exst for staff of the Group 1o raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible impropnisties in matters of financial
reporting o other matters The Group has a code of conduct outliing
the business standards to which all Company personnel must adhere
which further reinforces existing whiste-blowing policy and procedures

The Audit Commitiee’s terms of reference include all matters indicated
by the UK Corporate Governance Code  The terms of reference are
considered annually by the Audit Committee ond are then referred 1o
the Boord for approval The Audit Committee’s full terms of reference
are avallable within the mvestor relations section of the Group's
website, www Hornby com




Directors’ Remuneration Report

for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Statement by the Charman of the Remunerohon Comrutee
As a new Charr of the Remuneration Commitiee, | om pleased to
introduce the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31
March 2014

The Remunerction Commitiee’s remi 1s to consider ond set policies and
levels of remuneration 1o encourage actions by management that are in
the longterm interests of the Company and its shareholders

The objective of the Commufiee 1s to ensure that the Company’s
Chairman, Executive Directors and senior management are fairly
rewarded for their contribubions to the Company’s performance and 1o
ensure that therr remunerahion 1s commensurale with therr dutes and
responsibilties The Committee will ensure that the Company prowides
the remuneration packages needed to allracl, refan ond motvale
Direciors of the quality required

The Company 1s now subject 1o new remunerahion reportin
requirements {The large and Medwm sized Companies ong Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 [the
‘Remunesation Regulations'), and this repont therefore takes o different
form to previous years In parhcular, the Remuneration Regulations
require the Company to present a forwardHooking remunesation policy
seting out the Company's future palicy on Directors’ remuneration The
remunerchion policy 1s subject fo shareholder approval end o resolution
will be proposed at the Company’s 2014 AGM to approve the pobcy
The Remunerahion Report, excluding the remunerahion policy report,
remains subject to an edwvisory shareholder approval as previously

The Committee 15 responsible for determining

* The framework for the remuneration of the Executive Directors
ond tazgets for any performonce related elements

= The overall remuneration package of each Executive Director

+ The terms of termination of each Executve Director

» The policy ond scope of pension arraagements for each
Executive Drecior

Duning the year the Commitiee sought 1o set Executive Directors’
remunerahion levels to incentivise performance and ahgn this with the
longrtesm infterests of the shareholders as well as, in ine with Company
policy, ensure that o substontial proportion of total remuneration 15
performance reloted

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The Compary has established a Remuneration Commitiee the
‘Commitiee’} which 15 conshiuted in accardonce with the
recommendations of the UK Carporate Governance Code pubhshed
in September 2012 and other relevant regulation, including the
Remuneration Regulations It sets out the Group's remunerchion policy and
detalls of Directors” remuneration A resolution to approve this report will
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting in September 2014

THE COMMITTEE

The Committee 15 compnised of independent Non-Executive Directors
The previcus members of the Committee who served vail 31 Jonuary
2014 were N M Camngton [Commitiee Chairman) and M E Rolfe
The current members are C Caminada [Committee Chairman) and D
Adems both of whom served from € January 2014 oher o handover
penad with the previous clorementioned members

The Committee meets as required Dunn?I the year three Remuneration
Committee meehngs were held, with beth members present at
each meeting

Nether of the Commifttee members has ary personal financiol interest
lother thon cs shareholders), contlicts of interest ensing from cross:
Drrectorships o doytordoy involvement in running the business The
Committee makes recommendations o the Board No Director plays @
part in any discussion about therr remuneration The terms of reference
of the Committee are ovalloble on the Company website

In determining the Directors” remuneration for 201415 the Commuitiee
consulled R Canhom {Executive Charman) end R Ames (Chief Execubive)
about its proposals New Brdge Street {NBSY, a rading nome of Aon
Corporation, ts the Commitiee’s appanted remuneraton adviser and
continues to provide cdvice to the Committee MNeither NBS nor Aon
Corporolion provides any other services fo the Company

This pert of the remuneration report has been audited

GENERAL REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, motvate and
retain Directors of the high collbre needed o maintain the Group's
postion os a market leader and to reward them for enhancing value to
shareholders The performance meosurement of the Executive Directors
5 underiaken by the Commitiee The Commitlee 15 sensilive to pay and
conditions in the workforce when determining executive remuneration
policy and base salary increases n particular

The Committee s also aware of the potential nsk o the business of
executive poy structures ond 1s saiishied that the current policy 15
compatible with nsk policies ond systems

There are five main efements of the remuneraiion packoge for
Executive Directors and senior manogemen! Base salary, Benefitsin
kind, Pension arrangements, Performancerelated annual bonus,
Parformance Share Plan

The Company’s policy is that o substantial proportion of the
remuneration of the Executive Directors should be performance related
At a target level of performance, approximately 40% = 45% of the
total remuneration packoge 15 performance-reloted
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Executve Drreclors’ base salanes are reviewed annually by the Commltee foking into account the responsibilities, skifls and expenence of each
indrdual, poy and employment condiions within the Company and salory levels wathin isted companies of a smilar size The following table
shows the jolal remunerabon of the Executve Direclors for the year

Salory Taxable Persion Annuol Sub-torel longerm Total

and fees penefils’  conmbunons bonus 2013-14 ncenives 201314

Executrve Divector £ 000 €000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £'000
R T Canham' 300 - - - 300 100 400
N P Stone 180 8 36 — 224 180 404
F Martin? 100 2 20 - 122 — 122

1 Roger Canham who hos been wathin the role of executive Chairman ot the yeor will temain 1n on Execunive Direcier role until the handover period with R Ames who joined the
Board en 28 Apnl 2014 15 complete and wil then revert back to the norexecunve posinen of Chairman on 1 july 2014
2 Frank Martin stepped down as Chief Executive on 28 March 2013 ond became Deputy Charman on thot da'e untl stepping down from the Board on € Janwory 2014

Sdlery Taxatle Pension Annugl Sub-total long term Tosal

and fees benelts’  contnbutens banus 2012-13 ncenives 2012-13

Execyhive Director £ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000
R T Canham? 26 - - - 26 - 26
A ] Morns® 156 @ 32 - 197 176° 373
F Martin® 268 15 50 - 333 267 600
N P Stone® 39 | 8 - 48 - 48

3 Roger Canham became Execunve Chairmon on 1 Apnl 2013

4 Fronk Motir stepped down os Chief Executive on 28 Merch 2013 and becamre Deputy Chavman en thar dare

5 Andrew Morris left the Group on 15 February 2013 and Mick Store was oppointed an 1 Febryary 2013

6 The Long tesm incentves for Andrew Morns granted within the 2012-13 year noted in the abave table lopsed when he lefi the Group
7 Taxable berelis relate o 1he provision of @ comoony car healh assuronce and F Mariin pens on supplement

Benefits
Policies conceming benedits, including the Group's company car palicy, are reviewed penodically Currently, benefits in kind comprise mator cars
ond prvate health cover, both of which are norrperformance related .

Pension

The Executive Directors and senior managers are members of defined contnbution pension schemes and annual contributions are caleulated by
relerence lo base solones, with nesther annual bonuses nor awards under the share incentive schemes laken nlo account In calculating the
amounts due The contrbulion leve! continues to be 20% of base salary for Executive Direciors sove that Mr Canham s not a member of the
pension scheme and receives no benefits or contbuhions in respec! of pensions Mr Mariin will coniinue ta receve a pension coninbution unil the
expiry of his service contiact on 30 June 2014 For Mr Martin in 2012-13 the balonce of £3,582 pension m excess of the HMRC approved himit
was paid by way of a solory supplement included 1n taxable benehits n the emoluments table

Performance-related annual bonus
For 2013-14 M Slone parhicipated i a performance-related bonus scheme which 15 capped ot 75% of salary, Me Marin was nol enliled 1o @
performance-elated bonus For 2012—13 Mr Martin paricipated in the same scheme

Performance tagets are designed both 1o streich and encourage indwiduals whilst aligning their interests wath those of the Group The performance
condihons are a?wded 80 20 between Group underying profi before tax and personal objeciives For the Group underlying profit before tox
condiion, a shding scale range 1s set around o larget level [designed to be stretching but realishieally achievoble] The personal objechives are set
at the siant of the year and are designed o be os objective and measurable as possible This mix of targets 1s considered 1o provide a good tink
to the business strategy

With effect from 2011, @ provision was incorporated into the Annuat Bonus Plan to enable the Company to claw back overpayments in the event
of financial misstatement or gross misconduct
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The table below shows the targets set for 2013-14
Torgel af Targer for % solary oworded ior % solory oworded for % of salory
Torget operohng level maxmum pay-oul  operating plon ochevemenl  roxmum echievement Achieved underying PBT owarded
£1139 million underlyng
Underlying PBT 100% 130% 30% 60% loss belore tox 0%
In respect of the year ended 31 Maich 2014 one of the Execulive * The Commullee 15 comforiable that the blend of TSR ond EPS
Directors who served dunng the year was entilled to o bonws The largets continues 1o provide a good bolance behween
Drrectors bonus award 15 based on perfermance targets The targets incentivising and rewarding strong hnancicl performonce on the
are based on Group underlying prefit before tax (80%} ard personal one hand whilst, on the other hand, providing o strong and direct
objectives [20%) Executive Directors achieved nil% jout of o moximum clignment with the interests of insttuhonal shoreholders by
130%] for the profit before tax element and mil% lout of o maximum rewording stock market outperformance
100%) for the personal objecives element The Remunerction * Performance conditions ore calculoted by independent adwvisers «
Committee took the view that profit delvery in 2012-13 also did not and venfied by the Commibiee >
support the payment of bonuses for personal chjecives * Executives beneft, in the form of additional cash or shares, from o
the value of dividends poid over the vesting period, to the extent =
Performance Share Plan that owards vest Z
o

The Performonce Shere Plan (PSP}, which wos opproved by
shareholders ot the 2008 AGM, wos introduced as the Comporny's
prmary long term incentive plan to replace the shorHerm incentive plan
['STIP") No?uriher owards will be made under the STIP ond ot 31
March 2014 and 2013 there were no cutstanding owards lo Directors
under the ShortTerm Incentive Plan

Under the PSP, owards are made to Execulive Directors and

selected other executives on the following basis

s The maximum award level 1s 150% o?bcse salory per annum
although ewards up to 200% of base salary may be granted 1o
an individual in excephonal circumstances e g recruitment o
retention] The current policy 1s fo grant maximum awards over
shares worth 100% oﬁglory

» Performance condihons are reviewed annually, so as to ensure
they remain appropnately piiched in relction to the strategy ond
business cycle, and provide an optimal alignment between the
inferests of execulives and shareholders

* Awards have historically been subject 1o a total shareholder
refurn {'TSR’) condiion and ¢ range of normalised underlying
eamings per share ['EPS'} growth targets, each of the TSR and
EPS elements apply to o separate 50% of an award, measured
over a penad of three finoncial yeors

* The TSR condition 15 based on the Company’s underlying
performance against the conshtyents of the FTSE Small Co
{excluding investment trusts) os al the date of grant 25% of this
part of the award will vest if the Company’s TSR 1s equal to the
TSR of the median company, with full vesting for top quartile
performance A sliding scale operates between these points

¢ In the case of all awards made prior to 2013, for the EPS part of
the oward, 25% vests for average annugl underlying EPS growth
of RPI+3% p a ., with full vesting for average annual EPS growth
of RPI+12% pa A shiding scale operates between these paints

* Awords granted dunng ﬁ'le year to 31 March 2014 hove EPS
targets based upon underlying profit before tox of £4 million
for 25% vesing ond will iIncrease siraight ine 1o full vesting at
€5 milion The Committee hos set these targets appropnate
to the economic outlook preveling at the tme ond refans
the discrelion to adjust the 1argets If circumstances make
a consideration of this necessary The TSR condihon will
be unchanged

¢ It 1s currenily inlended that market purchased shares are used to
satsfy cwards although there 1s flexibility to use new 1ssue and
treasury shares within instituional shareholder diluion liruts

* Similar to the bonus plan, with effect from 2011 cwards,
a provision was incorporated into the PSP to enable the
Company to clawback everpoyments in the event of
missictement or gross misconduct

Shareholding guidelines

A policy forr;ﬁcre ownership guidefines (s operoted for the Executive
Direciors and senior executives For the Executive Direclors, the
required theeshold of share ownership 1s 100% of base salary Untl
such time as this level of shareholding 15 achieved, 50% of the net of
iax volue of awards which vest under the PSP are required to be
retained in shares

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Interests in shares

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company at 3)
March 2014 were

I M
3t March 31 Morch
2014 2013
numbef number
Executive Directors

R Canham 40,000 40,000
N P Stone 10,000 10,000

Non-Executive Directors
D Adams - -
C Caminada - -
M Rolle - 10,000
N Carnington - 18,000

All the nterests detalled above are beneficial Apart from the interests
disclosed above no Drectors were interesied af any hme in the year in
the share capital of any other Group compary On 3 Apnl 2013 Frank
Martin sold 400,000 shares at O 82p per share There have been no
other changes in the interests set oul obove between 31 March 2014
and 27 June 2014
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Performance Share Plan
At 31 March 2014, outstanding awerds to Dreclors under the Performance Shore Plon were os follows
Markel Al lopsed Vesed A
pnte ar T Apnl Aworded duning dufing 31 March
Director Award date  Vestng date  Aword dote 2013 duning year year year 2014
R Canhom July 2013 July 2016 81 5p - 122,699 - - 122,699
N Stone July 2013 July 2016 81 5p - 220,859 - - 220,859

For the awords, 50% of an award 1s subject to TSR conditon and 50% 1s subject to an EPS performance condition, both of which ore measured
over g pencd of three finoncial years For the TSR condition, 25% of this port of the awerd will vest if Hornby's TSR 1s equal to the TSR of the
median company of the consttuents of the FTSE Small Cop struck al the date of grant), with ull vesting for top quartile performance, with a shding
scale cperating between these points For the profit related part of the award, 25% vests for underdying profit before tax of £4 miflion, with full
vesting for underlying profit before tax of £5 millien with a sliding scale operatng between these points

Non-Executive Directors
The toble below gives the salery ond fees of the Non Execuive Directors for 2013-14 and 2012-13 Bose sal
and fees
2013-14
£000

D Adoms {oppeinted @ January 2014) 9

C Camineda |oppomnted ? Jonuary 2C14) 9

N M Carrington [Resigned 31 jenuary 2014) 33

M E Rolfe [Resigned 3% Jonuary 2C14) 33

Bauc salary
and fees
2012-13

£000

N M Corringion 40

M E Rolle 40

The following lable summanses the tofal salary and pension cantributions receved by Directors for 2013-14 and 2012-13 in line with the
Companies Act 2006 requirement

Yoar ended 31 Morch 2014 Year ended 31 March 2013
Tokal solary Tl solory
Basic salory Pension  ond pension  Bostc salory Pension  and pension
and fees recerved recerved and fees recaved recerad
£°000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000
R Canham 300 - 300 26 - 26
N Sione 180 36 216 3Q 8 a7
F Marin {restgned @ Jonuary 2014) 100 20 120 268 50 318
D Adams [apponted @ January 2014) L4 - Q - - -
C Comingda [appointed @ January 2014} a - 9 - - -
N M Corangton {Resigned 31 January 2014) 33 - 33 a0 - 40
M E Rolfe [Resigned 31 January 2014) 33 - a3 40 - 40
A ] Morns {Resigned 15 Febuary 2013} - - - 156 32 188
Total 664 56 720 569 Q0 659

Payments to Directors leaving the Group
No payments {2012-13 £nily were mode dunng the year ended 31 March 2014, however a payment of £40,000 was made to F Martin on
7 Apnl 2014 in heu of nolice of his service contract to June 2014
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH [UNAUDITED INFORMATION]}

The following graph shows the Company's tolcl sharehclder return compared o the TSR of the FTSE Small Cap {excluding investment trusts) over
the terryear pencd to 31 March 2014 This index hos been selected grven thet the Company 1s a constiuent of the FTSE Smell Cap

Total shareholder return

Source Thomson reuters {Datastream}
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This graph shows Lhe value by 31 March 2014 of £100nvested i Hornby Pic on 3% March 2004 compared with
the volue of £100 invested in the FTSE Small Cop Index (exduding investment trusts)

— Hainby Pic FTSE Srall Cap Index (excluding investrment trusts)

The toble below shows the iotal remuneratian for the Chief Execuive Officer end the percenicges of the moximum cwords of performarice related
pay recewved over the past five years The Vanable element reflects the actual bonus paid to the CEC ond the longterm inceniives relale to the
PSP scheme which only pays out when it vesis

Single Annucl

gre tztol vonoble Longterm

remunerotion element incentives

Year CEQ £000 % of mox % of max
2013-14 R T Canham 400 n/a -
2012-13 F Mariin 333 0% -
201112 F Marlin 326 0% -
2010-11 F Martin 365 12% -
2009-10 F Martin 455 3% -

Relative mportance of spend on pay {unaudited)

As required by the Remuneration Regulahons, the table below compares total stefl remuneration with the amounts pard in dividends to sharsholders
ond the Joss after tax of the Group The meosure being used of loss after tax represent the statutory finoncial performance of the Group and octs
as a comparative benchmark for future years
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

REMUNERATION POLICY
Executive Directors’ service contracts
The Executve Directors do not have fxed penod contracts

Richard Ames wos apponted o the Board as Chief Executive on 28
Aprl 2014 His service contract includes a noiice period of six months
o be given by the Company which 1s extended to ane year after six
months service and cof six months to be given by him In lieu of giving
nohce the Company may lerminale the agreement on payment of a
lump sum (subject 1o tox ond national insurance) equal to the salory
cnd other benehis 1o which he 1s entiled under this ogreement

Roger Canham Mr Canham was appointed nomrexecutive Chairman
wilh effect from 1 Februory 2013 uader o contract dated 7 November
2012 for an ikl term of three years subjec) ko terminction on thiee
mornihs’ notice, to be given by etther the Company or hmself ot o fee
of £100,000 pa In liev of giving notce the Company moy ferminate
the ogreement on payment cf a lump sum (subject to tax and national
inswrance] equal to the salory lo which he 1s entiled under the
agreement He was appoinied executve Charrman on 1 Apul 2013
Upon becoming executive Chairman, his fees were increased o
£300,000 per annum untd such tme as ¢ new Chief Executive was
opponied He will revert to Charman on 1 July 2014

Nick Stone’s service controct dated 1 February 2013 mcludes a
notice perad of six months to be given by the Company which 1s
extended 1o one year dffer six months service ond of six manths to be
gwven by him In liew of giving notice the Company may terminate the
ogreement on payment of cgfump sum {subject lo tax ond national
insurance) equal fo the salary end other benefits to which he s entiled
under this ogreement

Frank Martmn siepped down as Chief Executive on 28 March 2013
and become Deputy Chairman before stepping down from the Boaord
on @ January 2014 The Company agreed the payment {subject o tax
and nahonal insuronce) equal to the sclory and other benehis to which
he 15 entifled under this ogreement between the octual tlermination date
ond 30 june 2014 which will continue o be pad unhl this date ond
includes the £40,000 referred to on the previous page

Non-Executive Directors’ controcts

The remunerahion of the NorExecutive Directors 15 defermined by the
Board {except the Company Charman's fee, which 1s set and
reviewed by the Remuneration Commitiee} based on the level of fees
pad 1o NonExecuive Directors of sunilar companies and by
considenng independent extemal advice

Dawid Adams NorrExecuiive Direclor, was appornied io the Boord on
9 January 2014, and receives fees for his services to the Company of
240,00% per annum effectve 1 Jonuary 2014 Dawid’s serce
contiact dated @ January 2014 1s subject to lermingtion on six months’
nohce fo be given by erther the Company or himselt In heu of gving
notce the Company may terminate the agreement on payment of o
lump sum {subject to tox and national nsurancel equal o the fee to
which he 15 enfitled under this agreement
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Charlle Caminada Non-Executive Director, was oppeinted to the
Board on @ jonuary 2014, and recerves fees for his services o the
Company of £40,000 per anrum effecive 1 January 2014 Charlie’s
service contract dafed 9 January 2014 15 subject to terminaion on six
months’ notice to be given by either the Company or himself In heu of
gving notice the Company may lerminate the agreement on payment
of & lump sum [subject 1o jox ond notional insuronce) equal to the fee
to which he s entiled under this agreement

Nigel Camngten, MNorrExecutive Director, was apponted to the
Boord on 1 December 2007, and receves fees for his services to the
Company of £40,000 per annum effective 1 Apnl 2012 Nigel’s
service contiact dated 3 November 2007 15 subject to termination on
six months' notice 1o be given by either the Compary or himself In heu
of gvng notice the Company may terminale the agreement on
payment of a lump sum {subject to tax and national insurance) equal to
the fee to which he 15 enttled under this agreement Nigel stepped
down from the Board on 31 Jonuary 2014

Mark Rolfe, NorExecutive Direclor, was oppeinted 1o the Boord on

1 January 2008, and receves fees for his services to the Company of
£40,000 per annum effecive 1 Aprl 2012 Mark’s seraice conbract
doled 22 November 2007 15 subject lo terminatien on sox monihs’
notice to be given by etther the Company or himself In liey of gmng
notkce the Company may terraincte the agreement on payment of a
lump sum {subject to fox and notional nsurance] equal to the fee to
which he 15 entiled under this agreement Mark stepped down from
the board on 31 January 2014

None of the NonExecutive Direciors receives any pension or
performanceelaled pay from the Company

The Committee’s remuneration policy will be subject to a voie at the
Annual Generol Meeting The fallowing pages 31 to 32 in this
forwardHooking section descnbe owr remuneration policies and
potential future outcomes for each Executive Director The palicy for
rewording NonExecutive Drrectors 15 olsa described

These Policies and Ihe indwidual elements of the reward package are
reviewed each year to ensure that they remain in iine with Governance
Code and the Remuneration Regulations




The toble below summanses the main ccmpanents of the existing remunerction package for executive Directars

Eemunerotion componerr

Srotegie objecive

Howe the companent operates

Perforrance meosures opphcable

Maximum ond minmum payouts

Base salary

To citiact and retan
executives of high quality

Il salones ore bosed
upon the level of skill

and experience of the
ncdividual, the scope of
responsibiliies and merket
benchmarks of similar sized
quoted businesses

None

None In recent yeors
any base salory awards
have been in line with
the nse given to all the
UK emplovees

Annual bonus

To incentivise Executive
Directors to achieve the
shartterm prionties and o
delver high performance in
the current financial year

Performance targels are based
en the stiotegic objeciives

of the Group and bonus
paymenis are based on the
Group’s ability o meet its
financial targets as a result of
the overarching objectives

Financicl measures set by
the Committee in line wath

nearterm pnonkes 1 e
Underlying profit

The maximum bonus

Egycble 15 130% of sclary

sed entirely on the
bnanciol measures The
minimum pay out 1s ni

Benehts To provide a Benehts compnse ¢ compony  None n/a
compehlve package car or allowonce alongside
for Executive Directors medicel health cover benehits
Performance To susarn the Executve  The owards are narmally Critena set are designed  The maximum award level

share plan (PSP}

Directors' performonce
over the longer term in line
with shaseholder interests

made annually under the
Hornby PSP scheme fo
Executive Direciors

1o challenge the goals
sel by the Group In
line with 1ts three-year
stralegic plon

15 150% of base salary
per annum although
awards up o 200%

of base salary moy be
granted to on indwidual n
excephonal circumstances
leg recrutment or
retenfion)

Pensions

To provide @
compehtive package
for Executve Directors

The Executive Directors are
provided with a contnbuhon to
therr retirement sovings plans

None

20%

Eshmate of the total future potenhal remunerahion
The chaits below set out estimates of the palenhal remuneration for each of the Executive Directors based on the current semuneration
packages The ossumptions included in each scenano ore desenbed below
» The share prce of Homby Ple remains constant
» Cansists of bose salary, pension and benefits which are oll assumed to be in line with 2013-14
* On plan — the Performance share plan will delver 50% of maximum
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Policy on Non-Executive Directors

The iIndependent Non Executve Directors recerve lefters of appoiniment
with six month nolice terms and ore subject fo re-eleciion every thiee
years at the Annual General Mesting The Executive Directors review
the Nor-Executve Director's fees annually The fee 1s @ fixed annucl
fee, which reflects then ime and commitment to the business and
comparahves from similer sized quoted companies Nen Executive
Drrectors do not participate in any share scheme, bonus or

pension arangements

The current scole of remuneration 15

€000
Chairmon 100
Other Non-Executive Direclors 40

Recruitment of Directors

When determining the remuneration package and levels for a new
Durector the Committee will lake into consideration all relevant foctors
including but not imited 1o, the role, the skills ¢ Declor has and the
added value they can bring o the business bul without paying more
than 1s required 1o recruit ond refain a candidate of the required
calbre The Commitiee will seek 1o clign the pockage with the

fromework of the remuneration policy cutlined in the previous
lable above

Cn recruitment, the Commitiee may also gront awards o o new
Duector under the Lisng Rule 94 2 which allows for the granting of
awards, specifically 10?0::|||tare, in unusual arcumsiances, the
recrutment ar refention of a Director, without seeking prior shareholder
approval This discretion will enly be used in respect of buycut awards
where a new recruit forfeits awards granted by a previcus employer

Engagement with shareholders

The Committes considers sharehalder feedback receved dunng the
AGM and ony other shareholder meetings as part of is onnuoﬂewew
of its remunerotion policy Where the Commilee proposes 1o mtioduce
new longrerm ncentive plans, the Commitiee seeks the views of major
shareholders prior to seeking general shareholder approval at o
general meeting There were no shareholder representations fo the
Company in 2013-14 1n respeci ol Directors’ remuneration

C Cominado

Remuneration Commttee Chairman
26 June 2014
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are respornsible for preL)ormg the Annucl Repert, the
Direciors’ Rermnercton Report ond the financial statements in
eccordance wath opplicable lew and regulotions

Company law requires the Direciors o prepare financial slatements
for each hnancigh year Under that kaw the Directors have prepared
the Group and Parent Company hinoncial stotements in accordence
with Internahoral Financia! Reporting Standards {1FRSs) as adopted
by the European Union Under company law the Directors must not
opprove the hinancial statements urless they are satisfied that they
give a tiue and foir view of the state of offairs of the Group and the
Company ond of the proht or loss of the Group and Company for
that penod In preparing these financio! statements, the Directors ore
required to
* Select sutcble occounting policies and then apply them consistently
¢ Mgcke [udgements and accounting esttmales that ore recsonable
and prudent and
* State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European
Umian have been followed, subject 1o any malenal departures
disclosed and explaned in the &lnoncu:ﬂ stalemenis

The Directors are respensible for keeping adequate accounting records
that ore sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
disclose with recsancble accurccy, of any time, the financial posihon
of the Group and the Company and encr:vle them 1o ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors” Remunerahion Report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group finencial
siatements, Aricle 4 of the LAS Regulabon They are olso responsible
for safeguarding the ossets of the Group and the Company and hence
for taking reasoncble steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other imegulanties

The Drrectors are responsible for the montenance and integnly of the
Company’s website Legrslation in the United Kingdom governing the

reparation ond dissemination of finoncial siatements may ditfer from
egisichion n other unsdictions

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounis, token as a
whole, 15 farr, balanced and undersiandable and provide the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
performance, business model ond sialegy

Each of the Drrectors, whose names end funchions are sted 1n the

Directors and Corporate Information section, confirm that, to the best

of therr knowledge

« The Group and Company financiol slatements, which hove been
prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopled bY the EU, give a
true ond fair view of the assets, liobiliies, hnancicl position and
loss of the Group and profit of the Compony

* The Stalegic Review and Carporate Gavernance Stolement
includes o farr review of the fue development ond performonce
of the business and the position of the Group, logether with a
descrphon of the principal nsks and uncertainties that it faces

So far os the Direclors are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information
of which the Company’s auditors are uneware, ond each Drrector hos
taken all the sieps thet they ocught 1o hove icken as o Director in order
to moke themselves aware of any relevant audd informetion ond fo
establish that the Company's cuditars are aware of that informalion

By order of the Board
N Stone

Group Finance Director
26 June 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Horby Plc

Report an the finanaal statements

Qur opinion

In our opimion the financial statements, defined below

* gwve a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the
company's affarrs as at 3t March 2014 and of the group's loss,
the company’s prolit ond the group's ond the company’s cash
flows for the year then ended,

* hove been properly prepared in accordance with [nternational
Finonciol Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopled by the
European Unien, and

* hove been prepared in accordonce with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regerds the group financial
slotements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

This opirion 1s to be read in the context of what we say in the
remainder of this report

What we have audited

The group Financial Statements and company Financial Stalements (the
“financial stotements’), which are prepared by Honby Plc compnse

o the group and compeny bolance sheets as of 31 March 2014,

* the group and company slatements of comprehensive iIncome
for the yeor then ended,

* the group and compony cash flow statements for the year
then encﬁed,

* the group and compony statements of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and

» the notes 1o the Annual report and Accounts, which include
o summery of significont accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The finoncic! reporting fromework that has been applied in ther
prepcration 1s applicable low and [FRSs os adopled by the
Europeon Umon

Cerlon disclosures requied by the finoncicl reporing framework have
been presented elsewhere in the Annua! Report and Accounts [the
“Annugl Repori”], rather than in the notes 1o the financial stotements
These are crossteferenced from the financial statements ond are
dentified os audited
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What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our sudit in accordance with International Standerds
on Audiing (UK and lreland) [ISAs (UK & Irelard]”} An cudit involves
chtoining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
slalements sufficient io give reasonable assurance thot the financicl
siatementts are free from matencl misstatement, whether caused by
froud or ermor This includes an assessment of

s whether the aecounting policies are approprcle 1o the group's
and the company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and cdequately disclosed,

« the reasonableress of sigmhcant eccounting eshmates made by
the Directors, and

* the overall presentation of the financial statements

In additon, we read all the financial and norfinancial information in
the Annucl Report to identfy motenal inconsistencies with the cudited
finoncicl statements ond to idenbly any infermation that 1s apparently
materally incorrect bosed cn, or matenally inconsisient wath, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the cudit

If we become aware of any apparent matenal missiatemenis or
inconsisiencies we consider the implicahens for cur report

Overview of our audit approach

Matenality

We set certain thresholds for malenalty These helped us 1o delermine
the nature, iming ond extent of cur audi procedures and 1o evaluate
the effect of misstatements, both indvidually and 10 aggregote, on the
financiol statements os a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenaliy for
the group finoncial stolements as o whole 1o be £126,000 This
represents opproximately 5% of loss before tox before the exceptional
item relating to the impairment of goodwill We believe this represents
an oppropriate measure of the group's underlying performance

We ogreed with the Audit Committee that we would report fo them
misstatements idenified durng our audit above £5,000 as well os
misstalements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting
for qualiative reasons




Overview of the scope of the audit

The group financiol statemenis are a conschidotion of ten reportin
unils, compiising the groug’s operating businesses ond cenircllsec?
functions In estoblishing the overall approach to the group audt, we
determined the type of work that needed 1o be performed ot the
reporiing uniis by us, os the group engagement feam, or companent
cuditors from ofher PwC network firms operating under our instruction
Where the work was performed by component auditors, we
defermined the level of involvement we needed to have in the qudht
work ot those reporting units 1o be cble to conclude whether sufhcient
eppropnate audit evidence had been obtamned as a basis for our
opinion on the group finonaic! stotements as a whole

Accordingly, of the group’s ten reporting units, we identihed thiee
[representing 76% of Group revenue ond 65% of the loss before 1ax
before the exceptional lem relating to the mpairment of goodwill
based in the UK and Spom which, in our view, required on oudit of
their complete financial information, either due to their size or nsk
charactenstics Specific audit procedures were performed on a further
two reporting units in laly ontf the US This, together with odditional
procedures performed ot the group level, gave us the evdence we
needed for cur opinien on the group financic! siotements os © whole

Areas of particular audit focus

I preparing the hinanaiol statements, the Direclors made @ number of
subjective udgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
esimales that invalved making essumphons and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain We pimonly focused our work in
these areas by assessing the Direclors” pdgements agomst avankable
evidence, forming our own (udgements, and evaluating the disclosures
in the finoncial staternents

ln our audit, we tested ond examined information, using sompling and
other quditing lechniques, to the extent we considered necessary to
provide o reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We ablaned
audit evidence through lesting the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combinahien of both

We considered the following areas to be those that required parhcular
focus in the current year This is not o complete hst of ol nsks or areas
of focus dentfied by our audit We discussed these areas of focus
with the Audit Commitiee Therr report on those matters thal they
considered to be significant issues in relation 1o the hnancial statements
Is set out on poge 23 and 24

Area of focus

Risk of fraud in revenue
recognition

ISAs UK & Treland} require

that we consider this We
focused on the nsk that revenue
transactions around the year
end were included in the
wrong petiod and that revenue
tronsactions did not occur

Going concem

We focused on this because
the Direciors’ cash flow
forecasts indicated thot the
group would breach its loan
covenants a1 31 March 2014
ond required the support of its
lenders lo contnue as a goin
concern An mihol waver of the
covenanls at 31 March 2014
was therefore oblained from
the lenders before the year
end Although this addressed
the immediate 1ssue, there was
shll a risk that the group would
not be oble lo continue as o
going concerm for a penod of
at least twelve months from the
date the financial siatements
were approved  Management
has subsequently cgreed a
new facihty with its lenders This
facity has revised covenants

14043y

J093LvHIS

How the scope of our audit
addressed the area of focus

We used Computer Assisted
Audiing Techniques to test
the occurrence of revenue in
the UK reporting unit, and
performed tesls of defails

on the occurrence of revenue
n the Spomsh reporting

untt, and on the cut off of
transactions In both the UK
and Spain We also tested
the controls over the recording
of revenue fransachions

and checked [ournal entries
pasted to revenue to identfy
unusual or rregular ems,
obtaining evidence to
determine the rationcle for
the adjustments fested

FINVNUIACD
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We obtained confirmation
of the wawver of the lean
covenants breached at 31
March 2014 ond considered
whether, with the revised facility
and covenants 1n place, the
group was In a posifion to
continue as @ going concern
To do this we considered

the Iikelihood of o breach

of the revised covenanis for
a penod of at least twelve
months from the date the
linancial stotements were
approved We considered
in detail the approach taken
by monagement and their
indepencent adwvisers in
determining the cash flow
forecasts, and whether there
was appropngle supporl for
the assumphions used Oue
conclusion on going concemn
15 below
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Independent Auditors’ Report confinued

Area of focus

Goodwill and intangible
assefs impairment assessment
In the prior year, the goodwill
relating to the ftalian business
was porhally witten off

As trading in that business
remclnec?chcllengmg in the
curcent year, we needed to
consider whether the carmying
value of the remaining goodwill
and other intangibles was
supported by the forecast
pertermance of the business

Risk of management overnde
of internal controls

I5As (UK & Ireland] require that
we consider this

How the scope of our audit
addressed the area of focus

We evaluated the cash flow
model used fo check that

it was apprepricte for the
Impairment review

We chollenged monagement’s
assumphons used i the model
for goodwill and intang ble
assels, described in note 8

16 the financial statements,
including specifically the cash
flow projeciions, discount rates,
perpeluity rales and sensitivities
used, parheularly in respect

of the lialien operations ond
concluded that the assumptions
were reasonable

We fested key reconciliotions
and tested monual journal
enines We considered
whether there was ewidence
of bios by the Directors in the
sigmficant accouniing estimates
and [udgemenls relevant to the
fmoncm?sroternenls

We dlso assessed the

overall control emvironment

ot the group, including the
arrangements for siaft 1o
"whistle-blow” inappropnate
achons, and discussed with
semor management the
possibiliies for management
overnde of controls
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Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required 1o review the Direciors’
statement, sel oul on poage 22, in relalion lo going concern We have
nothing to report having performed our review

As noted in the Directors” statement, the Directors hove concluded that
it 1s approprate to prepare the financicl statements using the gon
concern basis of accounting The going concern basis presumes thot
the group and company have adequale resources to remain
operaton, ond that the Directors infend them 1o do so, for of least one
yeor from the date the finanaial statements were signed As part of our
oudit we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concemn
bosis 15 oppropriate

However, becouse not dll fulure events or conditions can be predicted
these stolements are not & guoraniee as 1o the group's and company’s
obilty 1o continue as a going concem

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In cur opimon

* the informahion given in the Strotegic Report and the Directors’
Report for the inonciol yeor for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the finoncial statements, end

* the past of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

Other matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Adequacy of accounhng records and informahen and explanations

receved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required o report 1o you if, in

our opinion

* we have not receved all the nformation and explonations we
require for our audit, or

* adequate accounting records have nol been kept by the
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not wisted by us, or

* the compony financiol stalements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns

We hove no exceplions to report anising fram this responsibiity




Directors’ remunerahon

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 1o report to you if,
In cur opinion, certain disclosures of Direclors’ remuneration
specihied by low cre not mode We hove no excephons to report
ansing from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Under the Lisking Rules we ore required io review the part of the
Corporate Governance Stalement relating 1o the company’s
comphance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code "the Code”} We have nothing 1o report having performed
our review

On page 33 of the Annual Report, as required by the Code Provision
C 11, the Directors state tha! they consider the Annual Report taken as
o whole to be farr, balanced and undersiandable and provides the
information necessory for members to assess the group's ond
compony's performonce, business model ond strategy On poges 23
and 24, os required by C 3 8 of the Code, the Aﬁl Commiltee has
set aut the sigrificont 15sues thot 1t considered in relation to the finonaic!
slatements, and how they were addiessed Under SAs (UK & trelond)
we are required fo report to you if, In cur opimen

* the statement given by the Directors 1s motenally inconsistent with
our knowledge of the group and company acquired in the
course of performing our audi, or

* the section of the Annual Report describing the work of the Audt
Committee does not apprepriciely address matters
communicated by us 1o the Audit Committee

We have no excephons fo report ansing from this responsibibiry

Other informahon m the Annual Report

Under 15As (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you f, in our
opinion, informahion in the Annual Report 1s

* maotenally mconsistent with the snformation in the audited financiol

statements, or

* opperently matenially incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group and cempony
acquired in the course of performing our audtt, or

* s otherwise misleading

We have no exceplions 1o report onsing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsthiliies and those of the Directors

As exploned more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibililies set
out on page 33, the Direclors are respensible for the preparation of
the financicl siclements and for being salisfied thot they give o true and
far view

Our responsibility 1s to cudit ond express cn opinion on the financial
statements in accordonce with apphcable law ond 1SAs (UK & Ireland)
Those standards require us lo comply with the Audiing Procices
Board's Ethical Siendards for Audilors

This reporl, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and enly for
the compony’s members as a body in occordponce with Chapier 3 of
Part 16 of the Componies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or 16 any other person 1o whom this report 15 s

or into whose hands 1t moy come save where expressly ogreed by our
pror consent in wnfing

Rosemary Shapland [Semior Shtufomudltorl

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chortered Accountants ond Statutory Auditors
Gatwick

26 June 2014
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Group and Company Statement of Changes

in Equity

Year Ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

Shore Shore rede(r:nt‘g:::-: rarslahon Hedging Ciher Rexxned Tolal

eapuol pren resetve taserve reserve reserves evInings equaty
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
Balonce ot 1 Apal 2012 392 6,180 55 (545) 1187] 1,688 31,598 39,181
Total loss for the year - - - - - - (2,501 (2,501}
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - [67) 461 - - 394
Totol comprehensive income for the year - - - 67} 461 - (2,501} (2,107
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares
Share based payments [note 22) - - - - - - 20 20
Shores vested from employee benefn rust - - - - - - %0 Q0
Dividends {783} (783}
Total transactions with owners - - - - - - (673) (673)

_ _ - - - - [673) 1673}

Balance at 31 March 2013 a9 6,180 55 {612) 274 1,688 28,424 36,401
Total loss for the year - = - - - - 14,445} 14,445)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 1146) {714} - - {860)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (146) (714) - (4,445]  (5,305)
Transactions with owners
Share-based payments [nole 22) - - - - - - 274 274
Shares vested from employee penelit rust - - - - - - - -
Dividends - - - - - - - -
Total transachons with owners - - - - - - 274 274
Bolance at 31 March 2014 392 6,180 55 (758) (440) 1,688 24,253 31,370

Retaned earnings includes £587000 a1 31 March 2014 (2013 - £604,000) which 1s nat disiributoble and relates o o 1986 revoluction of

lond and builldings
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Group and Company Statement of

Comprehensive Income

for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

Group Comrpary
2014 2013 2004 2013
Noe £000 £000 £:000 £000
Revenue 2 51,557 57,395 1,456 1,316
Cost of sales (28,230} (32,917} - -
Gross profit 23,327 24,478 1,456 1.316
Distnbuhon costs (2,549) {2,408} - -
Selling and marketing costs (11,322} (12,768) - -
Admmistralive expenses (9.811) [2,415) {994) 1859}
Other operating expenses (3,718) (2,72¢) (85) 134)
Operating (loss)/profit 2 {4,073) (2,839 377 423
Income from shares in Group undertakings - - - 783
Fance income 3 8 13 174 174
Finance costs 3 492} {561} {208} (213)
{Loss)/profit before taxation 4 (4,557) (3.387) 343 1,167
Analysed as
Underying (kass)/profit betore toxchon i {1,139} 147 383 1,216
Net foreign exchange impact on intercompony loars {108) 20 - -
Amortisahion of inlangibles (389) {385) - -
Exceptional itlems
Restructuning cosls (875) (723) (40} {49)
Impairment of goodwill {2,046) [2,446) - -
{Loss)/profit before taxahon {4,557) (3.387) 43 1,167
Income lax income/lexpense] 5 112 886 {38) 300
{Loss)/profit for the year after taxahon (4,445)  (2,501) 305 1,557
Other comprehensive ncome
ltems thot may be subsequently reclassified 1o Probt and Loss
Cash flow hedges, net of tax (714) 461 - -
Currency translation differences (146) 167) 101 {74}
Other comprehensive {lassl/income for the year, net of tax (860) 394 10 {74}
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (5,305) [2.107) 406 1,483

Loss per ordinary share

Basic

7 M35p (639

Diluted

7 (N35p (639

All results relate to continuing operatons

The notes on pages 44 to 75 form part of these accounts
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Group and Company Balance Sheet

at 31 March 2014

Group Corrpany
2014 2013 2014 2013
Noie £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 8 8,530 10,598 - -
Infangible cssets Q 3,569 3,978 - -
Properly, plant ond equipment 10 10,383 10,048 1,241 1,275
Investments 11 - - 37,224 37,165
Deferred 1ox assels 20 1,858 1,714 - -
24340 26,338 38,465 38,440
Current assets
lnventories 12 13,165 13,637 - -
Triade and other recevables 13 9,043 Q603 628 33
Denvative financial investments 19 a9 367 - -
Current lax assels 17 601 512 29 110
Cosh and cosh equivalents 14 619 3,554 1 2
23467 27,673 658 145
Liahilites
Current habilihes
Borrowings 18 (7,630) (3,207) - -
Denvohve financial instruments 19 {445) {2,194} - -
Trade and other payables 15 (7,618) {8,834 62) {68)
Provisions 16 (238) 1235} - -
Current tlax lablihes 17 (128) 466} {100} {105}
{16,059 {15,636} {162) {173)
Net current assets/{liabilities) 7408 12,037 496 {28}
Non-current habilihes
Borrowings 18 (242) (1,815 (4,984) [5,093)
Defered tax liabiltes 20 (136) (159} {126) (148)
(378) {1,974) ({5,110) (5,241}
Net ossets 31,370 36,401 33,851 33171
Equity atirbutable to owners of the parent
Share capital 21 392 392 a2 392
Share premivm 6,180 6,180 6,180 6,180
Capital redemphion reserve 35 33 55 55
Translation reserve 758} 1612) (958) {1,059
Hedging reserve {440) 274 - -
Oiher reserves 1,688 1,688 19,145 19,145
Retained eornings 24,253 28,424 9,037 8,458
Total equity 31,370 36,401 33851 33171

The netes on poge 44 1o 75 form part of these accounts

The financial stalements on pages 38 ‘o 43 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June and were signed on ils behalf by

N P Stone
Director e
Registered Company Number 01547390 f'k/\—
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Copuol
Share Store ederphor Trar danen COrher Retred Toxl
copital prerm reserve teserve reserves eqrnings equily
COMPANY 1000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Belance of 1 Apnl 2012 3%2 6,180 55 {9831 19,145 7,664 32,451
Totel income for the year - - - - - 1,557 1,557
Orher comprehensive income for the year - - - |74} - - {74}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (74) - 1,557 1,483
Transochons with owners
Share based payments - - - - - 20 20
Dividends - - - - - (783} {783)
Total transachons with owners - - ~ - - {763) {763)
- - - {74) - 794 720
Balance at 31 March 2013 39 6,180 55 (1,059} 19,145 8458 33,17
Total income for the year - - - - - 305 305
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 101 - - 101
Total comprehensrve income for the year - - - 101 - 305 406
Transcchons with owners
Share-based paymenis - - - - - 274 274
Dividends - - - - - - -
Total transachons with owners - - - - - 274 274
- - - 101 - 579 680
Balance at 31 March 2014 392 6,180 55 (958) 19,145 2,037 33,851

The notes on page 44 1o 75 form part of these accounts
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statement

for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

Group Company

2014 013 2014 2013

£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash Aows from operahng actrvities
Cash |used n)/generated from operations {(76) 10,407 516 Q18
Interest perd {492) {561) {208) (213)
Tox [paid)/receved {482) {1,394) 16 {302
Net cash {used in}/generated from opercting activities {1,050)] 8,452 24 403
Cash flows from inveshng achvihes
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - Q7 - -
Purchase of property, plent and equipment 4,059) (3,457 - -
Interest recenved 8 13 174 174
Dividends receved - - - 783
Net cash [used in}/generated from investing actvihes (4,051) {3,347 174 957
Cash flows from financing activifies
Repaymenis of loans (3,060 {3,046) - -
Finance lease copital poyments (3) [62) - -
Drvidends paid to Company's shareholders - {783} - {783}
Advances to subsidiary undertakings - - {4,767} -
Repayments to subsidiory undertakings - - 4,268 {578)
Net cash used in financing actvihes (3.063] {3,891 (499)  [(1,361]
MNet [decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,164) 1,214 {1} i
Cash, cash equvalents and bonk overdralts at beginning of the yeor 2,725 1,591 2 2
Effect of exchange rate movements f17) {80} - 1
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year (5456) 2725 1 2
Cosh, cosh equivalents and bank overdralts consist of:
Cash ond cash equivalents 619 3,554 1 2
Bank overdrafts {6,076} 829) - -
Cash, cash equivolents and bank overdrofts ot end of year {5458) 2725 1 2

The notes on page 44 to 75 form part of these accounts
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Notes to the Cash Flow Statements
Group and Company Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

£000 £ 000 £°000 € 000
(toss)/profit before toxation (4,557) {3.,387) 43 1,167
Interest poyable 492 561 208 213
Interest recevable {8 {13} (174) (174]
Dividend income - - - (783
Amorhsation of infangible assets 389 385 - -
Impairment of Goodwill 2,046 2,446 - -
Depreciation 3,604 3,664 34 34
Loss on dispascl of property, ploni and equipment 22 8 - -
Share based paymenis 274 20 85 34
{Gain)/loss on iinancial denvahves {¥35) 58 - -
Increcse/[decrease] in provisions 3 (89) - -
Decrease in inventones 472 4,230 - -
Decrease in trade and other receivables 560 3,566 26 -
{Decrease]/increase in frade and other paycbles {1,451} (1,042 {6) 427
Cecrease in denvate inencicl instruments {1,787 - - _
Cash [used in}/genercted from operahons (76) 10,407 516 918
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounhing policies for the year ended 31 March 2014

The principet accounting policies adepted in the preporatien of these finonciol stotements are set cut below These policies have been
consistently cpplied 1o cll the yeors presented, unless otherwise sioled

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The hinoncial information for the year ended 31 March 2014 hos been prepored n accordance with Interanienal Financiol Reporing
Standards [FRS'} as adopted by the European Union [EU'), IFRS Intespretations Commitiee {'IFRS-IC’) interprelations and wath ihose parts of
the Compaonies Act 2006 apphcable lo compamies reporting under IFRS The consolidoted Group cnd Parent Company financial siaiements
have been prepared on o going concem bosis and under the histoncal cost convention, ©s modlﬁed by the revoluahon of certain finoncial
assels and habilihes (including denvetive mstruments) of farr value through profit or loss

The preparation of financial sictements 1n conformity wath IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumphons thal affect the reporied omounis
of assets and lickilites af the date of the financial statements and the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting
perod Although these estmotes are bosed on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or ections, actual results ulimetely may
differ from those eshmotes

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidicnes cre all entiies over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voling nghts  Subsidianes are fully consolidoted from the dote on which control 15 transferred to the
Group They are deconsolidoted from the date that contrel ceases

The purchase method of accounting 13 used to accaunt for the aequisiion of subsidianes by the Group The cost of an acguisiion 1s
measured as the far value of the assets given, equity insruments 1ssued and liobilies incurred or assumed at the dale of exchange, plus
costs directly attnbutable to the acquisiion 1f incurred prior to the adoption of IFRS Identifiable ossets ocquired and lichilties onc?connn ent
hobilihes assumed 1n o business combination are measured ntially ot their fair values at the acquisiion dote, respeciive of the extent of any
minonty inlerest The excess of the cost of acquisiion over the fair volue of the Group’s share of the «dentifiable net assets ocquired 1s

recorded os goodwill

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are elimmated Unrealsed lasses are
also elminaled but considered an impairment indicator of the asset concerned  Accounting policies of subsidiaries hove been changed
where necessary fo ensure consistency with the policies cdopted by the Group

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

Adophion of new and revised standards

Interpretahions effective in the cunent yeoar and relevant to the Group

These ore no IFRSs of IFRSIC interpretahions that are effectve for the first nme for the financial yeer beginning on 1 Apnl 2013 thot have o
matenal impact on the Group

Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financiol siafement presentshon’ regcrdmg other comprehensive income, the main change resulling from these
omendments s a requirement for entihes to group tems presented in other comprehensive income {OCI'] on the basis of whether they are
polentially re-classhiable to proft or loss subseguently {reclossification adjustments) The amendments do not address which items are
preseated n OCI

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments  Disclosures’

Intespretations effective in the current Kecr but not relevant

The following interpretations to published stondards are mandatory for accounting penods beginning on of after 1 Apnl 2013 but ore nol
relevant to the Group's operations in the current year

Amendment 1o 1AS 12 ‘Income loxes', on deferred tox, subject io endorsement by the EU,

IFRS 13 ‘Farr volue Measurement’ provides o precise definmon of farr value ond a single source of forr value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRS's,

IAS 19 ‘Employes benefits' 1s effecive for peniods beginning on or after 1 Jonuary 2013
Annual Improvements Project 2011, these annual improvements, eddress six 1ssues in the 2009-11 reporting cycle, t includes changes to

IFRS 1, First hme adopton’, 1AS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation), 1AS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’
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IAS 32, ‘Finoncial inshiuments, Presentation” end IAS 34, ‘Intenm financial reporting” The Group s et 1o assess the full impact of these annual
improvements and intends to adopt them no later than the accounling penod beginning on 1 Apnl 2014

Amendment to IAS 32 'Financial insiruments  Presentation’, on asset and liability offsetting  The Group s yet 1o IAS 32 amendment's full
impact crd intends to adopt it no later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 Apnl 2014

Stondards, omendments and inferpretations to existing slandards that are net yer effective and have not been ecug adopled by the Group
The following standards and amendments to existing siandords have been published ond are mandatory for the Group's occounting perods
beginning on or ofter 1 Apnl 2014 or later penods, but the Group has not early adopted them

IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments  Assets and lighility offsetting’ 1ssued in December 2011, amended the required disclosures to include infarmation
that will encble users of on entity’s financial siatements 1o evaluaie the effect or potential effect of netiing arrangemens, including nghts of
setoff associated with the entity's recognised financial assets and recognised hinanciol habilines, on the entity s financial pesiion

IFES @ ‘Financial Instruments’ addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial habiliies IFRS @ was
1ssued in November 2009 and Octaber 2010 It replaces the peris of IAS 39 that relate to the clossificotion and measurement of financial
instruments [FRS G requires hnenciol assets 1o be classihed nto iwo measvrement calegories those measured os o foir value and those
measured at amorhsed cost The determination 15 made ot imial recogniion The clossification depends on the eniity's business model for
managing its inanciol instruments and the contractual cosh flow charactenstics of the insirument For financial licbilines, the standard retains
most of the IAS 39 requrements The main change is thal, in cases where the fair volve option 1s taken for financicl labilines, the part of @
farr value change due 1o an entity’s own credi! nsk 1s recorded in other comgrehensive income rather than the ncome stotement, urless this
creates an oceounting rusmoich The Graup 1s yel to assess IFRS 9's full impact ond intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting
pericd beginning on or cfter 1 January 2018, subject io endorsement by the EU The Group will also consider the impact of the remaining
phases of IFRSS when completed by Me Board

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated linancial stalemerts’ bulds on existing prnciples by identfying the concepl of conirel os the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included within the consohdcteg ﬁnoncsol statements of ﬁne Parent Company The stondard provides addimonal
guidance to ossist in the determinahon of control where this 1s difficult 1o cssess The Group 1s yel to assess IFRS 107s full impact and intends
to adopt IFRS 10 no later than the accounting penod beginming on ¥ Apnl 2014

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other eniifies’ includes the disclosure requirements for cll forms of mterests i other entihes, including |oint
crrcn(?emenls, ossociates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheel vehicles The Group 1s yet to assess IFRS 12's full impuct and
intends to adopt IFRS 12 no loter thon the accounting peniod beginning on 1 Apnl 2014

IFRS 13 'Farr value measurement’ cims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definhion of forr value and @
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs  The requirements, which are targely aligned
between IFRSs, do not exlend the use of farr value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use 1s already
required or permitted by other standards wiitun IFRSs The Group 1s yet lo assess IFRS 13's fult impact and intends 1o adopt IFRS 13 no later
thon the occounting pernod beginning on 1 Apnl 2014

IAS 36 ‘Imparrment of ossets” [amendment} the amendments reverse the unintended requirement n IFRS 13 disclose the recoverable amount of
every cashrgenerating unit 1o which significant goodwill or indefinteived intangible assets have been allocated Under the amendments,
recoverable amount 1s required to be disclosed only when an impairment loss has been recogmised or reversed The Group 1s yet to IAS 36
amendment’s full impact and ntend's 1o adopt  no later than the accounting period beginning on 1 Aprl 2014

IFRIC 21 ‘levies, 1AS 27 frevised 2011] 'separate hnonciol statements and 1AS 39, ‘Finoncial instruments Recogmiion and measurement’, on
novation of denvatives The Group 1s yet Io assess IFRIC 21, IAS 27 [revised 2011) and 1AS 39's full impact and intends to adopt them no
later than the occounting penod beginning on 1 April 2014

IFRS 11 Jownt arongements’ requires (oint anangements to be accounted for as a joint operation or as a joint veniure depending on the nights
ond obl::?cmon of each perty 1o the arrangement Proporlionate conscolidation far joint ventures will be eliminated and equity accounting will
be mandatory The Group does not expeci this stondard to be relevant io the Group

IAS 28 [revised 2011) ‘Associates and joinl veniures’ The Group does not expect this standard o be relevant 1o the Group

There are no cther IFRSs or IFRSAC inlerpreiotions that are not yel effectve that would be expected 1o have a matenal impact on the Group
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

RECONCIUATION OF STATUTORY TO NON STATUTORY INFORMATION IN THE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND OPERATING AND
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Underbying profit before toxation 15 shown to present a clearer view of the trading performence of the business Manogement has (dentified
the following nonnwvial edjustments, whose inclusion 1n eamings could distort underlying trading performance net foreign exchange gains/
losses on intercompany loans which are dependent on exchange rcles from hime 1o hme and con be volotle ond amortisation of inlangibles
which result from histaric ecquistions Addiionally exceptional items, restructuring costs ond impairments to gaodwall, add volatiity cngthese
are considered to be one—oﬁ items ond therefore have also been added back in caleulanng underhnng protit before 1axation

Group
2014 2013
£'000 £000
Loss before ioxahon (4,557) (3,387)
Foreign exchange on intercompany foans including impact of foreign exchange collar 108 {20)
Amorhisation of intangibles (note G} 389 385
Imparment of goodwill [nole 8} 2,046 2,446
Restrucluning costs 875 723
Underlying {loss)/profit before taxation {1,139) 147

The Statement of Comprehensive Income discloses foreign exchange movements, omortisation of intangibles and impairment of goodwill
within other operaiing expenses Restuclunng costs are disclosed within odministrative expenses  Restructuring costs include £555,000
associated with the exit agreement with our principal mode! roil supplier It also includes the wnite-off of bad debt of a £147,000 ossociated
with ane of our largest concessions, Modelzone, which went info administration within the year The balance of £173,000 15 associoted with
the restructuning costs 1 the Hang Kong cffice ond in the UK

The omount showr above comprises loss [2013 ~ gan) on franslation of intercampany loons of £108,000 {2013 — gan of £199,000), cffset
by a loss on marking to market the foreign exchange collor of £nil [2013 - loss of £179,000)

Reconcihation of net debt

Group
2004 2013
£000 £ 000
Cash [note 14) 619 3,554
Total borrowings {note 18] (7.872) (5722
Net debt {7.253) (2,168)

Cash of £619000 above includes resincted cash of £348,055 held within an Escrow account that relates to the exit payment 1o our
previous pnncipal model railwey supplier as menticned within the Financial and Operating Review

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue compnses the fair value of the sale of goods net of value added tax, ebates and discounts, royalty ncome and after eliminating
scdes within the Group

Revenue 1s recogmised as follows
{a) Sale of oogs
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has despatched products to the cusiomer The customer 15 erther @ tade customer or
the consumer when sold through Hornby concessions in vanous retail outlets, or via the internet
{b) Royalty income
Royalty income 15 recognised on on accruals basis 1n accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements
{c) Sales returns
The Group establishes a sales setuns provision at the penod end that reduces income in anficipation of customer returns of goods sold n
the penod
{d} Hornby Visitor Centre
Revenue 15 generated from the ticket and product sales at our Visitor Cenire 1n Margale and recogmsed al the pont of sale

Ouvadend income in the Company 1s recognised upon receipl Manocgement fees are recognised in the Company an an accruals basis n
relation to costs incutred on behalf of subsidiory companies
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EXCEPTIONAL [TEMS

Where items of income and expense included in the slatemeni of comprehensive income are considered o be malencl and exceptional in
noiure, separate disclosure of their nature cnd amount 1s provided 15 the financicl sictements These wtems are clossified as exceptioncl items
The Group considers the size and nature of on tem both indwiduclly and when oggregated with similar items when censidering whether it 1s
matenal, rc,n example impairment of iIntangible assets or restruciunng costs

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Qperating segments are reported In a manner consistent wilth the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker The chief
operating decision-maker, who s responsible for allocating resources ond assessing performance of the operoting segments, hos been
identiied os the Board of the Company that makes strategic decisions

Qperating profi of each reporting segment includes revenue and expenses drrectly ctinbutoble 1o or able 1o be allocoled on o reasenable basis
Segment assets and hablines ore those operaling assets and liabilines direcily afinbutoble to or that con be allocated on o reasonoble basis

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Goodwill ansing on ¢ busness combinalion before ond after 1 Aprl 2004, the date of ransimon to IFRS, 15 nat subject to amortisation but
tested for impairmert on an onnual bosis Inlangible assets, excluding goodwill, ansing on o business combinabon subsequent to 1 April
2004, are separalely ideniified and volued, and subject to amortisation over their estimated economic lives

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess cf the cost of an ceguisihon over the o volue of the Groug's share of the net denihoble ossels of the
ocguired subsidiary of the date of cequisiion Geoodwill 1s tested anaually for imparment and comed at cost less cccumulated iImpairment
lcsses Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of on entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing The allocatien 1s
made to those cash-generaling units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination n which
the goodwill crose deniified according to eperating segment

INTANGIBLES

l¢} Brand names
Brand names are copilohsed at forr value as ot the date of ocquisiion They are carried at therr farr value less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses Amorhsakon 15 coleulaled vsing the straight ine method to allocate the farr volue of brand
nomes over therr esimated economic hfe of 1520 years Brand nomes haove been valued on o “reliefl from royclty’ basis

(b} Customer lists
Customer lists ore capitalised ot fair value as of the date of acquisiion They are camed at therr fair value less accumulated amorisation
and any accumulated imparment losses Amortisation 15 calculated using the straightHine method to allocate the farr value of customer
relalionships over thewr esimated economic lfe of ten years Customer hists have been valued aceording to discounted incremenial
operchng profit expected to be generated from each of them over therr useful lives

{c) Research and development
Reseorch expenditure 15 rec:gmsed as an expense as Incurred Costs incurred on develoi)menl projects [relohncg!; to the design ond testng of
new products} are recognised as intangible assets when 11 15 probable that the project will be o success, considenng its commeraial and
technological feasibility, and costs con be measured reliobly Other development expendilures ore recognised os on expense as incurred

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and bulldings are shown at cost less accumuloted depreciation Assets revalued prior fo the transition fo IFRS use this voluation as
deemed cost at IEIS date Other property, plant and equipment are shown at historical cost less accumulated depreciaion Cost includes the
ongincl purchase price of the asset and the costs attnbutable to bringing the ossel to its working condition for its intended use

Depreciction 1s provided at rates calculated to wiile off the cost or valuation of eech asset, on o skaightine basis fwith the exception of tools
and moulds) over s expecied uselul Ife 1o its residual volue, as follows

Freehold buldings ~ 3010 50 years
Plant and equipment - 510 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years

Freehold land 1s no! deprecicted

Tools and moulds are deprecioted at varying rates in ine with the related estimated product sales on an item-by-tem basis up to a maximum
of four years
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Assels that have on indefinite usetul Ife, for exomple goodwill, are net subject to omertisation ond are tested cnnuglly for impoirment Assets
that cre subject to omarhsation are reviewed for impairment when events or chenges in aircumstances indicole that the corrying value may
not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its recovercb?e amaunt,
which 1s considered to be the higher of iis value in use and farr value less costs 1o sell In order to assess mpament, assets are grouped into
the lowest levels for which there are separately identiicble cash flows [cash-generating umis) Cash Rows used 1o assess impoument are
discounted using oppropnate rates taking nto account the cost of equity onc‘gcmy nsks relevant to those assets

INVESTMENTS

In the Company's financial siatements, investments in subsidiary underiokings ore staled of cost less any impairment  Invesiments revalued
using the equity method of valuation prior 1o the fransiion to IFRS use this valuahon as deemed cost al this dote Dividend income 15 shawn
separately in the Statemert of Comprehensive Income

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stoted ot the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s predominantly deterrmined using the firstin, fiestout {'FIFO’) method
Alternative methods may be used when proven to generole no matenal difference  The cost of finished goods and work in progress
compnses raw matenals, diect kabour, other direct costs and reloted production overheads (based on normal operating capocity)

Net realisable value 1s bosed on anhcipated selling price less further costs expected 1o be incurred to complelion and disposal  Provisions
are made cgonst those stocks considered to be obsolete or excess to requirements on on temby-tem basis

The replacement cost, based upon latest invorce prices before the balonce sheet date, 15 considered to be higher thon the balonce sheet
value of Inventones at the year end due to prce nises and exchange fluctuchions It 1s not considered practicable to provide an accurcte
esimale cf the dfference at the yeor end dale

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fincneial assets and financial licbilites are recogrised in the Group and Company’s balonce sheet when the Group or Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial habilies and equity instruments are clossified occording to the substance of the coniraciuol arrangements entered o

An equity instrument (s any conlract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of the Group and Company atter deducting all of s
habilies Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group and Company are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are recognised iniiolly ot fair value, nel of transaction costs incurred  Bormowings are subsequenily carned ot amorhsed cost, any
difference between the proceeds lhet of transachion costs) and the redemption value 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
over the penod of the borrowings using the effective inferest method

Fees poid on the eskablishment of loan facilines ore recogmsed as fransaction costs of the loan to the extent that i 1s probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down In fhus case, the jee s deferred untl the draw-down occurs and subsequently amortised over the life of
the facility To the extent that there 1s no evidence that it s probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down the fee 15 copitalsed
as o prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates

SALES RETURNS PROVISIONS
Prowistons for sales relurns are recognised when the Group has a construciive obligation as a resull of o past event Prowisions for sales returns
are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected lo be required 1o seltle the obligation

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade recevables are recogmised initially at farr value and subsequenily measured ot amorhised cost less provision for impawment A provision
for impairment 15 established when there 15 objective evidence that the Gioup will not be able to collect all amounts due according o the
onginal terms of recevables The amount of the provision 15 recognised in the Stotement of Comprehensive Income

TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are recognised inmally ot fair volue ond subseguently meosured ot omorhised cost using the effective inferest method
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TAXATION INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX
Corporciion tax, where payable, 15 provided on toxable profits at the currert rcte

The toxation habiltes of certain Group undertckings are reduced wholly cr i port by the surrender of losses by fellow Group undertakings

Deferred tax 15 provided on all lemporary differences ot the balonce sheet date between the tox bases of assets and kebilihes and their
carrying amounts for linancial reporting purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temperary differences, carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it 15 probable thoi laxable profit will be avalable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforword of
unused tox assets and unused tax losses can be utifised The carrying amount of deferred mcome tox essets 15 reviewed ol each balance
sheet date ond reduced 1o the extent that it 1s no longer probable thot sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o cllow cll or part of the
deferred income tax asset 1o be utlised

Deferred mcome tax assets and liabiles are offset when there 1s a legolly enforceable nght 1o offset current tox assets agansi current fax
habilties, and when she deferred income tax assets and liabiliies relote to Income Iaxes levied by the same taxation authorty on erther the
toxable entity or different toxoble entiies where there s an intention 1o setile the bolances on a net bosis

Deferred tax ossets and licbiliies cre measured ct the lax rales thol are expected to opply 1o the yeor when the asset is realised or the
liability 15 settled, based on tax rates [and tox laws) that have been enacted or substantively enocted af the balance sheet dale Tax relating
to lems recognised diecily in equity 15 recognised in equity and nat in the Staiement of Comprehensive Income

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates ond assumphiens concerning she future The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual resuits The estimales and assumptions that may have an element of nsk cousing on odjusiment to the carrying omounts of
cssets and hiabiliies within the next inoncial year include provisions for stock obsclescence, cuslomer relurns, doubiful debts, impoirment
reviews, fair values of share-based poyments, foir values of denvatives ond recoverability of deferred tax assets All of the above are
estimated with reference to historical dola, expectation of future events and reviewed regularly

Whenever there 1s o substantialed nisk that an ttem of stock’s sellable value may be lower than 115 actual stock value, a provision for the
difference between the two values 1s made Management review the stock heldings on a regular basis and consider where @ provision for
excess or obsolete stock should be made bosed on expected demand for the stock ond s condition

The provision for sales refums are based on hisionic returns data opplied to sales for the current year and this prowvision 1s reviewed by
management an an angoing basis

Specific deblors ore provided for when there 1s significant doubt that o repoyment of debt will be fullilled considenng specilic knowledge of
the customer and scles terms of the debt outstanding

The criical areos of judgement oppled within the Imparment reviews conducted nclude the weighted average cost of copital used in
discaunting the cosh flows of the cash generoting units, the assessment of the initiol growth rate vsed and the growth rate In perpetuity of the
cash flows The udgments used within this assessment are set out within note: 8

The crihieal areas of judgment used in the share based poyment charge for the year include the assessment of the fair value of the option
along with the expecied volatity and ophon term These are based on hisiorncal data whete this 1s available and best eskmates where
historical data s not available Further detarls in relation to share-based payments in note 22

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when the Group has o present legal or construchive obligation as a result of past events and 1t 1
more lkely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the obhigation and the omount has been relicbly estmated The
expense relating 1o any hability or pravision 1s presented in the Stotement of Comprehensive Income net of any rembursement but only if
rembursement 1s virtually certoin and will be seffled simulianeously

Provisions aie measwred at the present value of monagement’s best esimate of the expenditure required o settle the present obligation ot the
balunce sheet date If matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows of the Group at rotes that reflect
current market assessments of the nme value of money

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivelents for the purpose of the cosh flow siatement mcludes cash in hand, deposits ot banks, other liquid investments with
onginal matunthies of three months or less and benk overdrafts Bank overdrafts or loans where there 15 no nght of set off are shown within
borrowings in current or norreurrent licbiliies on the balance sheet os appropnate
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Hornby Plc operates three shere-based poyment plons
* Shore Option Scheme

* Short Term Incentive Plan

s Performance Share Plan

The Group issues equity-settled share-bosed peyments lo certoin employees  Equity-setiled share based poyments are measured af fair volue
lexcluding the effect of non marketbased vesting conditions) of the date of gront The fair value determined o the grant date of the equity-
setiled share-bosed payments 1s expensed on a siaightine basis over the vesting penod, based on the Group's estimete of shares that wall
eventually vest ond adjusted for the effect of non mcﬁerbased vesting condiians

The gron! by the Company of aplions aver ils equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings m the Group 15 trected os o
capital contnbution The fair value of employee services receved, measured by reference 1o the gront date farr value, 1s recognised over the
veshng penicd as an increase 1o investment in subsidiary undertakings, with o corresponding credit to equity

Share Ophion Scheme
Farr value is measured by use of the BlackScholes model The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of nonransterability, exercise restrichons and behavioural considerations

Short-Term Incentive Plan
The Short Term Incentive Plan {'STIP") investment 1s camed ot the cost of the shares held This investment in own shares 1s presented as o
deduction from shoreholders’ funds

The malched element of the STIP which has a condition of employment attached 1o w15 recorded ot far volue ond spread over the vesting
penad of the shares and recognised in the Stolement of Comprehensive income over this peniod  The STIP scheme become dormont os a
31 March 2013

Performance Share Plan
Awaords are gronted lo Executive Directors in shares worth 100% of salary, with lower levels of gront for less sentor executives

The Performance Share Plan [PSP'] incorporates two threeyear performance conditions
¢ Total Shareholder Return { TSR]
¢ Eomings per share {'EPS) growth targets

each opplying to a separate 50% of the award and vest on the third onmiversory of gront as oppropnate

The TSR farr value and the projected EPS award far value are spread over the vesting period of the shares and recognised 1n the Stalement
of Comprehensive Income 1n the appropriate year

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS

During the year the Group operated a defined caninbution money purchase pension scheme under which it pays contibutions based upon a
percentage of the members’ bosic salary The scheme 1s administered by trustees either appointed by the Company or elected by the
members [to constitute one third mimimum)

Contnbutions o defined coninbution pension schemes ore charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income according o the year in
which they are payable

Further information on pension costs and the scheme arrangements 1s provided 1n note 24
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary shores ssued are shown as share copital al nominal value The premium receved on the sale of shares in excess of the nominal
value 1s shown os share premium wathin folal equity
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LEASES
The Group enters into operchnig and finance leases

Assets held under finance leoses are mhally reported o the fair value of the csset with an equivalent iabilty categonsed os appropnate
under current and noncurrent payobles The assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful economic lives Finance
charges are allocoted lo accounting penods over the perod of the lease to produce a constont rate of retumn on the outstanding bolance
Rentals are apporiioned beiween finance charges ond the reduction of the liobdhity and clloccted 1o net interest

leases classed as operating leoses are expensed on o straightline basss 1o the Stotement of Comprehensive Income over the lease term

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial nsk factors

The Group's operctions expose 1 to a vanety of financial nisks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchonge rates, market

interest rates, credit nisk and s liquidity posiion The Group has in place a nsk monagement progromme that seeks to limit adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Group by using foreign currency financial instruments In Udcﬁllon, olher insiruments cre used to manage the

Group's intefest role exposure

{a) Foreign exchange nsk
The Group 1s exposed to fereign exchonge nsks against Sterling primanly on transactiens in Hong Kong Dollars and US Dollors It enters
into forward currency conirocts fo hedge the cosh?fows of s product soureing operation e it buys Hong Kong Dollors forward in
exchange for Sterling) and looks forward six—welve months on @ rolling basis at {orecosted purchase volumes The policy framewark
requires hedging between 70% and 100% of anticipated import purchases that are denominated 1n Hong Kong Doltars  The Group has
gronted Euro denominaled intercompany loans to subsidiary companies that cre translated to Sterling at statutory penod ends 1hereﬁy
crealing exchange goins or losses The Yoons to the subsidiaries of Hornby Deutschland GmbH, Homby liclia s rl and Homby France
SASae clossﬁed s longterm loans and therefore the exchange goins and losses on consolidation are reclassihed to the trenslation
reserve in other comprehensive income os per |AS 21

{b) Interest rate nsk
The Group finances 1is operations through o mixture of refoined prohits and bank borrowings The Group borrows, principally in Sterling,
at floahng rates of interest to meet shortHerm funding requirements At the year end the Group’s borrowings compnsed finonce leases, o
revolving credit foclity, bank overcrafts ond a hixedierm loan agreement An interest rate hedge 1s in place to protect the Group cgainst
future interest rate nses

{c) Credit nisk
The Group manages its credit sk through a combination of internal eredit management policies and procedures and extemal
credit insurance

(d} Liquichty rsk
At 31 March 2014 the Group had o revolving credit focility of £10 million expiring August 2015 and a five-year fixed4erm loan
agreement of £12 million with outstanding repayments of £1 5 milion scheduled 1o be completed by July 2014 These have now been
replaced by a new revolving credit focility of £13 million expinng in December 2015 which 1s expected to allow sutficient headroom
for rading working copital needs in the current year whilst longer term plans and funding requirements are develaped The Group
also hos additonal faciliies of £5 million i place in s European subsidianes through bank loans and mpert credi ne facilies of
which £3 5 million was undrawn at yeor end Borrowings in the yecr ended 3} March 2014 peaked at £11 8 millon The needs are
determined by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows The Group regularly monitors its performance aganst its banking covencnis
to ensure comphance

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
To manage exposure lo foreign currency nsk, the Group uses foreign currency forward contracts 1o manage interest rate nsk, the Group uses
an interest rate swap, also known as dervative hinancial instruments

Dervatves are imtially recognised at fair value on the date o denivative contract 1s entered into and ore subsequently remeasured at therr four
volue The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relaionship between hedging msiruments and hedged items, as well as
its nsk managemeni objeciive and stalegy for undertoking vanous hedﬁe tiansachons The Group also documents its assessment, both ot
hedge ncephon and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatives ihat are used in hedging tronsachions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in faur volues of the hedged lems
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{a} Cosh flow hedge
The effective porhon of changes n the fair velue of denveiives thet cre designated ond quclify os cash flow hedges are recogrised in
equity The gain or loss reloting to the meffective porion 1s recagnised immedhiately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
cperghing expenses

Amounts cecumuleted in eq}:my are recycled in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the perods when the hedged item affects
Froht or loss [for instonce when the forecast purchose that 1s hedged takes ploce] The gain or loss relating to the eflective porion of
orward foretgn exchange controcts hedging import purchases 1s recognised in the Siatement of Comprehensive Income within ‘cost of
sales’ However, when the fcrecost ransachon that 1s hedged results in the recogniion of @ nonfinancial ossel for example, inventory) the
gans and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the niticl measurement of the cost of the asset
The deferred amounis are ultimalely recognised in cost of goods sold in the case of invenlory

When a hedging instrument exprres or 1s sold, or when o hedge no longer meets the cnlena for hedge occounting, any cumulatve gain
o loss existing 1n equity ot thal ime remains in equity and 1s recogrised when the forecast transaction s ulimately recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income When o forecast transaction 1s no Jonger expecied to accur, the cumulatve gain or loss that was
reported in equity 15 immedialely kansferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

{b) Denvahives thet do not qualify for hedge accountin
Certom dervative mstruments ore not considered effecive and do not qualify for hedge accounting Such denvatives are clossihied ot farr
value through the Statement of Comprehensive Income, and changes in the ?,olr value of denvative mstruments that do not qualfy for
hedge accounting are recogrised immediately in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION
Lhe f‘olr \!.'o|ues of shortierm deposits, loons and overdiafis with a matunty of less than one yeor are cssumed to be approximate to therr
ook volues

The fair values of the denvative financial instruments used for hedging purposes cre disclosed in note 19

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Transactions denominoted 1n foreign currencies are recorded in the relevant functionol currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transcction Foreign exchange gains and losses resuling from such transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cosh flow hedges Monetary assets ond Ilobﬁlnes denominated 1n foresgn curencies are translated
at the exchange rates ruling at the balonce sheet dote and any exchange differences are icken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Foreign exchange gains/losses relating 1o foreign currency loons ond other foreign exchange adjustments are included within operating profit
and shown separately as port of other operating expenses

On consohdotion, the Statement of Comprehensive Income ond cash flows of foreign subsidiones are tanslated into Sterling using average:
rales that existed dunng the accounting penod The balance sheets of foreign subsidianes cre ransleted into Sterling at the rates of exchange
ruling of the balance sﬁeei dote Gains or losses ansing on the translation of opening and closing net ossels are recognised in the Statement
of Chonges in Equity

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
final dwdends are recorded n the Statements of Changes in Equity 1n the period w which they are approved by the Company's
shareholders Intenm dwvidends are recorded in she penod in which they are approved and pord

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING
Manogement has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board [chief operating decision maker} that are
used 1o moke shategic decisions

The Board considers the business from o geographic perspectve Geographically, management considers the performance i the UK, US,
Spain, kaly and the resi of Euiope

Although the USA segment does nol meet the quantifative thresholds required by IFRS 8, management has concluded that this segment should
be reporled, os it 1s closely monitored by the Board as i 1s outside Europe

The Company 1s a halding company operating n the UK with ifs results given in the Company Statement of Comprehensive Income on page

38 ond s assets and habiliies given in the Company Balance Sheet on page 39 Other Company information 1s provided i the other notes
to the accounts
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Year ended 31 March 2014

Tow!

Rest of Reporcble Iriro
UK UsA Spain froly Furope Segmens Cioup Group
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 T 000 £000
Revenue - External 36,413 2,966 2,885 2,952 6,341 51,557 - 51,557
— Other segments 2,877 - 5,238 402 - 8,517 (8,517] -
Operahng {loss}/profit (1,335) 85 {115 (2,431} {277 4,073} - {(4,073)
Finance cost - External [{375) - {87} {1} (29) {492) - {4972)
- Other segments {175} - 1208) 1191) (@8] {672) 672 -
Finonce income  — External 7 - - 1 - 8 - 8
- Other segments 672 - - - - 672 1672} -
{Loss)/profit before taxahon {1,206) 85 410) (2,622} {404)  (4,557) - (4,557)
Analysed as
Underlying profit/{loss) before taxation 41 85 (410Q) (483) {372)  {1,139) - 11,139
Net foreign exchange 1mpoct on
intercompany foans {108) - - - - [108) - (108}
Amorisation of ntangibles (264) - - {23} {32) {389) - {389)
Restructuring costs {875) - - - - |875) - {875)
Impairment of goadwill - - - {2,048) - (2,048} - 12,044
[Loss)/profit before taxaton {1,206) 85 410}  (2,6223) (404) (4,557) - {4,557)
Toxation 338 (4] 13 (291 56 112 - M2
{Loss}/profit for the year (868) 81 {3971 (2913) (348)  (4,445) - {4,445)
_Segmenl assels 40,430 1,329 10,678 4,214 3,879 60,530 [15,182) 45,348
Less intercompany recevables {14,052} 191} (697} {304) {38) (15,182} 15,182 -
Add tax ossets 1,936 - 29 318 176 2,459 - 2,459
Total assets 28,314 1,238 10,010 4,228 4017 47,807 - 47,807
Segment habilihes 22,398 1,259 Q.,635 4,361 3,783 41,436 (25,263) 16,173
Less intercompany payables {10,220)  (1,173) {7.034) {3,844) (2,992) [25,263) 25,263 -
Add tax habiliiies 226 3 35 - - 264 - 264
Total habilihes 12,404 89 2,636 517 7N 16,437 - 16437
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 2,247 7 1,594 192 19 4,05@ - 4,059
Depreciation 2,520 22 Q66 76 20 3,604 - 3,604
Net foreign exchange on mtercompany
loans 108 - - - - 108 - 108
Amortisation of intangible assets 264 - - Q2 33 389 - 389
lmparrment of goodwill - - - 2,046 - 2,046 - 2,046
Shore based poyment 274 - - - - 274 - 274
All friansoctions between Group companies ore on normal commercial terms and an arm’s length bosis
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2. SEGMENTAL REPORTING continued
Year ended 31 March 2013

Toxal

Res: of Reponcble Intio
UK usa Spam by Eurcpe Segmerts Group Group
1000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Revenue - External 43,195 2,696 2,655 3,234 5,615 57,395 - 57,395
— Other segments 2,936 - 3,617 Q< - 6,652 [6,652) -
Operating {loss)/profit 337 12 (132) [2,754) (302}  {2,839) - {2,839)
Finanece cost — External (478} - {50} {1} {32} (561] - (561)
— Other segments - 12) {213} {27%) (100 [586) 586 -
Finance income - External income 11 - - 2 - 13 - 13
— Other segments 586 - - - - 586 {586) -
Profi/floss) before taxation 456 10 {395} (3,024) (434} {3,387 - {3,387}
Anclysed as
Underlying profil before toxation 1,370 10 [395] (435) {403} 147 - 147
Net foreign exchange impact on
infercompany {oans 20 - - - - 20 - 20
Amortischon of intangibles {264} - - 90) {31) 13835) - (385}
Recrganisation costs {670 - - {53} - 1723} - (723]
Impairment of goodwill - - - [2,446) {2,446} - (2,446)
Profit/{loss) before taxahon 456 10 {395) (3,024) {434) (3,387) - (3,387)
Toxahan {284} - 148 @36 86 B8& - 886
Profit/ loss) for the year 172 10 (2471 {2,088} (348) (2,501} - (2,501}
Segment assets 48,938 1,482 10,459 6,829 3,06@ 70,777 {18,992 51,785
Less intercompany recevables {17,530} - {1,273) {189) - 18,992} 1B,092 -
Add tax assets 1,315 - 129 637 145 2,226 - 2,226
Total assets 32723 1,482 9.315 7.277 3,214 540N - 540N
Segment habilihes 13,571 1,449 2,439 6,823 4,695 35977 (18,992) 16,985
less intercompany payables - {1,286} {7.800) [6,2356) [3,064) (18,992) 18,992 -
Add tax labihties 53¢ - 86 - - 625 - 625
Total habiles 14,110 163 1,719 587 1,031 17,610 - 17,610
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 2,337 26 1,377 31 Q? 3,780 - 3,780
Depreciation 2,774 20 713 126 3i 3,664 - 3,604
Net foreign exchange on intercompany
loans (20) - - - - (20) - {209
Amortisation of intangible assets 264 - - Q0 31 385 - 385
Impairment of goodwill - - - 2,446 - 2,446 - 2,446
Share based payment 20 - - - - 20 - 20

All transactions between Group companies are an normal commercial lerms and an aim's length basis
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3. FINANCE COSTS

Gioup Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £000 £:000 £ 000
Finance costs:
Inlerest expense on bonk borowings 1492} 1558) - -
Interest expense on infercompany borrowings - - (208) [213)
Interest expense on finance leases - 13) - -
(492) [561) (208) 213
Finance income
Bonk inferest 8 13 - -
Inlerest income on intercompany loans - - 174 174
8 13 74 174
Net finance costs 484) (548) (34) (39}
4. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Group Compary
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000
The follewing items have been included in armving ai {loss)/profit before toxation
Staff costs [note 23) 10,463 10,274 1,151 737
Inveniones
- Cost of iventones recognised as an expense {included n cost of soles) 25,891 26,793 - -
- Stock provisien (443) 762 - -
Depreciciion of property, plan ond equipment -
- Owned assels 3,602 3,649 34 34
- Under hnance leases 2 15 - -
loss on disposal of assels 22 8 - -
Other opercting lease rentals payable
= Plant and machinery 139 172 - -
— Property 433 444 - -
Repairs and maintenance expendiure on property, plont and equipment 142 170 - -
Research and development expendituze 1,713 1,507 - -
Foreign exchange {losses}/gains
- On trading transachions ond neffective hedges 35 1105} - -
Imparment of rade recervables 250 260 - -
Restructunng costs {excluding £173,000 tedundancy costs) 702 723 - 49
Other operaling expenses
- Foreign exchange on trading transactions 1,032 {163) - -
- Net impoct of foreign exchange on intercompany loans 108 {20} - -
- Movement on fair value of ineffechve hedge 135 58 - -
— Share-based payment chaige 274 20 85 34
- Amoriisation of nlangible assels 389 385 - -
— Imparment of goodwill assets 2,046 2,446 - -
— Other |264) - - -
3,718 2,726 85 34
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4 [(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION conhnued

Restruciunng costs of £875,000 relate 1o redundercies ond compensation far loss of office os well os the associcted legat costs, o full
accrucl for these costs s mode from the point cf which employees have been nehfied It clso includes the payment to our principel medel rail
supplier as explained in note 2 These costs are censidered to be exceptional i nature Addiondlly the goodwill imparrment chorge of
£2,046,000 15 classed as on exceptional item, further analysis of whlcﬁ can be found t note 8 of these hnancicl statements

Services provided by the Company’s auditor and network firms
During the year the Group including its overseas subsidicnes) obtoined the following services from the Company's ouditers and network firms
as detailed below

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £ 000 £5000 £ 000
Fees payable to the Company's cuditors for the audit of Parent Company and conselidoted
accounts 97 @2 15 15
Fees payable to the Company's ouditors and ils esscoiotes for other services
— The auditing of accounts of the Company's subsidiaries 42 38 - -
— Audit refated ossurance services 25 32 25 24
- Tox advisory services 19 17 - 8
- Tox complionce services 14 12 5 5
197 191 45 52
In the current hrancial yeor the fevel of norraudit fees was well within the 11 ratio to audis fees os per Audit Committee policy
5 TAXATION
Analysis of tax charge in the year Growp Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £ 000 £000 € 000
Current tox
— UK 1oxation (248} 286 100 106
adjusiments in respect of prior years 17 Q51 - -
— overseas faxation {8} {440} {42} {45}
adjusimenls in respect of pror years 207 - 2 [447)
(66} 797 60 (3806}
Deferred tox fnote 20}
mpy—— 7515 22 )
— overseas taxalon 29 {730} - -
— odjustments in respect of prior years - [238) - -
{46) (1,683} (22) {4
Total 1ax [credh)/charge 1o the proht before tox m2 (885) 38 (320)
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The tox for the year differs 1o the stondard rote of corporation tax in the UK {23%) Any differences cre explained below

Group Compary

2014 2013 2004 2013

£'000 £000 £000 £ 000
[Loss)/profit before taxation {4,557) (3,387 343 1,167
[Loss)/profit on ordinary activimes muliphed by 1ate of

Corporation lax in UK of 23% {2013 - 24%) (1,048) {813} 79 280

Effects of
Adjusimenis to tax in respect cf prior years 191 13 2 {447)
Income nat taxable - - - {188)
Ditference on overseas rales of tax (127} {198} 14 5
Impact of overseos losses not recognised 922 21 - -
Remeasurement of deferred 1ox
- ¢change in UK tax rale to 20% {214} {51) 2 el
Other 164 142 (59) {46)
Total laxation M2z 1884) 38 |390}

During the year, the UK main corporation tax rate wos reduced from 24% to 23% This wos substantially enacted on 3 July 2012 ond
became effectve from 1 Apnl 2013 As a result of this, o rote of 23% has been used to celculate tox poayohle on texable iIncome in the year

In oddition to the changes in retes of Corporation tox disclosed above, further chonges to the UK Corparction tox rates were substantively
enacted as pait of the Finance Bill 2013 on 2 July 2013 These included reductions to the main rate to 21% from 1 Apal 2014 and 1o 20%
fram 1 Apnl 2015 UK deferred tax 15 therefore recognised at the reduced rate of 20%

6 DIVIDENDS Group and Company
2014 2013
£000 £000

£nil final paid per share in relation 1o year ended 31 March 2013 (2013 - 2 Op pad
in relahon fo year ended 31 March 2012) - 783

£nil intenm paid per share in relahion to year ended 31 March 2014 {2013 — £nil) - -

- 783

The Dicectors are not proposing o final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2014

7 LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share 15 catculated by dviding the loss attnbutable 1o ordinary shareholders by the weighted overage number of ordinary
shares outslanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust [note 22) which are treated os concelled

For diuted loss per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of alt dilutve polential
ordinary shares that have satished the apprepriote performence catenia at 31 March 2014 For the vear ended 31 March 2014, there was
no difference in the weighted average number of shares used for basic and diluted net loss per ordinary share as the effect of all potenhally
dilutve ordinary shares was onh-dilutive
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

7 LOSS PER SHARE continved

Reconciichions of the lossh/ecrmings and weighted averoge number of shares used in the colculotions ore set out below

2014 2013
Werghted Werghred
average average
number of Per-share |Loss}/ number of Pet-share
Loss shares omouynt earnings shares emount
£'000 '000s pemxe £0C0 Q0005 pence
REPORTED
Basic loss per share
Loss atinbutable to ordinary shareholders (4,445) 39,152 {1135 {2,501} 39,152 6 3%}
Effect of dilutive secunhes
Options - - - - - -
Diluted loss per share 4.445) 39,152 (1135 2,501} 39,152 (6 39}
UNDERLYING
Ecimings atinbutable 1o ardinary shareholders (4,445) 39,152 (1135 {2,501} 39,152 {o 39}
Amortisation of ntangibles 300 - 077 293 - 075
Impairment of goodwill 2,046 - 5.22 1,859 - 475
Restructuning cosls 674 - 1.72 549 - 140
Net foreign exchonge tronslohon adjustments 83 - 0.21 {15} - (0 04)
Underlying basic {loss)/EPS (1,342} 39,152 (3 43) 185 39,152 Q47
Underlying diluted {loss)/EPS {1,342) 39,152 (3 43) 185 39,152 G 47

The above numbers used 1o caleulate the EPS for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 have been tax effected ot the rate
of 23% and 24% respeciively with the excephion of Homby lloha where the net deferred tox osset associated with the imparrment has not

been recognised

8 GOODWILL

GROUP £ 000
COST

AT Apnl 2013 13,135
Exchonge adjustments {108)
At 31 March 2014 13,027
AGGREGATE IMPAIRMENT

At 1 Apn) 2013 2,537
Charge for the year 2,046
Exchange adjusiments 186)
At 31 March 2014 4497
Net book amount at 31 March 2014 8,530
COST

Al T Apnl 2012 13,059
Exchange adjusiments 76
Al 31 March 2013 13,135
At T Apnl 2012 -
Charge for the year 2,446
Exchange adjusiments 53]

A1 31 March 2013 2,537
Net book amount of 31 March 2013 10,598

Net book amount ot 31 March 2012 13,059
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The Company had no goodwill

The goodwill hes been allocaied 1o cashgenerating unils and a summary of carrying amounts of goodwill by geographical segment

{representing ccsh-generating units) of 31 March 2014 1s cs follows

Resi of
UK USA Spain laky Eolc:pe Total
GROUP £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000
Al 31 March 2014 3,992 8 3,990 0 542 8,532
Al 31 March 2013 3,992 8 3,990 2,056 552 10,598

Goodwill allocated 1o the abeve cosh generating units of the Group has been measured based on synergies each geogrophical segment 1s

expecied to gain from the business combination

Impairment tests for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance based on geogrophy Budgeted revenue growth was bosed on expecied levels of acvity
gwven results 1o date, together with ggrowth based upon infernal improvements, marketing inatives, and expecied economic and market
condihons Budgeted operating prohit wos celeuloted based upon moncgement’s expectation of cperating costs appropriate to the

growing business

The relctive nsk adjusted [or ‘beta’} discount rote opphed reflects the nsk inherent in habby based product compenies In determining this
discount rate, manogemenl has opplied on edjustment for nsk of such componies in the mdustry on average determined using the betos of

comparable hob

ased product compenies  The forecasts are based on approved budgets for the year ending 3t March 2015

Subsequent cash flows for the following three years have been increased in line with expectotion of 3% growth Cash flows beyond the
fouryear pencd are extropolaled using the estimated growth rotes stated below The cash flows were discounted vsing o pre tax discount
rate of 10% (2013 — 10 8%} which manogement believes 1s appropnate lor all terntones

The key assumphans used for value-n-use colculations for the year ended 31 Maich 2014 are as follows

UK UK
GROUP [Corgn) [Humbrol Fonce Spaun hohy Germany
Gross Margin' 30 3% 47 O% 40 3% 31 0% 32 4% 34 8%
Growth rate 1o perpetuhy? 3 0% 3 0% 30% 3 0% 30% 3 0%

The key assumptions used for valuennruse colculations for the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows

UK UK
GROUP {Corgi) {Humbrol] France Span haly Germany
Cross Margin' 31 1% 43 1% 38 6% 33 9% 32 &% 32 6%
Growth rale to perpetuity? 30% 30% 30% 20% 17% 30%

1 Budgeted gross margin
2 Waghled average growth ra e used 1o extiapolule cash flows beyond the budgel oenad

These assumptions have been vsed for the analysis of each CGU within the operating segments

The carrying volue of Homby ltaly has been reduced through the recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of £2,046,000 This
charge has been included within exceptional #ems i the Statement of Comprehensive Income DunnF 2013+4 Hornby laly agam
Y

expenenced o difficult year of irading with results falling short of manogement’s expecialions, pnman

due to the restnction in supply from

the Far East and local economic conditions, and as a consequence forecasts have been revised resuling in an impairment charge onsing

Following this decision, the Group reassessed the depreciation policies of its property, plant and equipment in lialy and eshimated that their
useful lives would not be affected No closs of asset other than goodwill was imparred In France, the recoverable amount calculoted based
on value in use exceeded carrying value by £275,000 A reduction in operaiing margin of 7%, or a nse in discouni rate to 10 6% would

temove the remaining headroom
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brond nomes  Cusiomer hsis Total
GROUP £000 £ 000 £000
ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COsT
Al Apnl 2013 4,923 1,432 6,355
Exchange adjustments (36} <) (45)
At 31 March 2014 4,887 1,423 4,310
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 Apnl 2013 1,526 851 2,377
Charge for the yeor 246 143 389
Exchonge adjustments (16) )] {25)
At 31 March 2014 1,756 985 2,741
Net book amount at 31 March 2014 3,13 438 3,569
Brond nomes  Customer hsts Tatal
GROUP £000 £ 000 £'000
ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COST
ALl éEnl 2012 4,890 1,426 6,325
Exchonge adjusiments 24 6 30
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2013 4,923 1,432 6,355
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
Al Aprl| 2012 1,271 704 1,975
Charge for the yeor 243 142 85
Exchange adjustments 12 5 17
At 31 March 2013 1,526 851 2,377
Net book amount at 31 March 2013 3,397 581 3,978
Net book amount at 31 March 2012 3,628 722 4,350

All gmortisalion charges in the year have been charged in other operating expenses

The Company held no intangible ossets
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freeheld lond Plart and Maior Tools ond

ond buldings equpmert vehicles moukds Toe}
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000
COST
A1 Apnl 2013 3,039 5,908 305 49,758 59,010
Exchonge odjustments 3 {38} (2 219) {272)
Additions at cost - 364 15 3,680 4,059
Disposals - {62} (=3 {41) {172)
Al 31 March 2014 3,026 6,172 249 53,178 62,625
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apal 2013 1,301 4,327 255 43,079 48,962
Exchange odjustments {3 (28} {2} {1175} (208)
Charge for the year 48 4872 19 3,055 3.604
Disposcls - [62) {38] (16} {118)
At 31 Morch 2014 1,346 4,719 234 45943 52,242
Net bock omount at 31 March 2014 1,680 1,453 15 7,235 10,383

Freehold kand Plort ond Maoxor Tools and

and buildings equpment vehicles moukds Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £7000
cOosT
A1 Apnl 2012 3,030 6,008 401 46,960 56,399
Exchange adjustments @ 23 2 132 166
Addihons ot cost - 202 - 3,578 3,780
Disposals - {325} 28] 212} {1,335)
Al 31 March 2013 3,039 5,508 305 49,758 59,010
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 Aprl 2012 1,252 4,123 270 40,732 46,377
Exchange adjusiments 2 21 1 127 151
Charge for the yeor 47 508 37 3,072 3,664
Disposals - {325) {53} 1852) {1,230}
At 31 March 2013 1,301 4,327 255 43,079 48,962
Net book amount at 31 March 2013 1,738 1,581 50 6,679 10,048
Net book cmount at 31 March 2012 1,778 1,885 131 6,228 10,022
Freehold lond amounting to £786 000 (2013 - £786,000) has not been depreciated
Assets held by the Group under finance leases have the following net book amount

2014 2013
£000 £000

Cost - o9
Aggregale depreciation - {33)
Net book amount - 36
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT contnuad
Assets held by the Group under finonce leases were motor vehicles

The Group hos token odvantage of the exemphion under IFRS 1 1o use the voluation of certain lond and buildings «t the date of ransiion 1o

IFRS as deemed cost All other assels are staled at cost

Freehold land Plan? ond
ond bulldings equipment Tota!
COMPANY £000 £000 £'000
COsT
At 1 Apnl 2013 and at 31 March 2014 2,428 4 2432
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
A1 Apnl 2013 1,153 4 1,157
Charge for the yeor 34 - 34
At 31 March 2014 1,187 4 1,191
Net book amount at 31 March 2014 1,241 - 1,241
Freehold land Plan: and
ond buldings equipmenl Tokal
COMPANY £000 £000 £'000
COST
AT Apn! 2012 ond at 31 March 2013 2,428 4 2,432
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
ALl Apnl 2012 1,119 4 1,123
Charge for the year 34 - 34
At 31 March 2013 1,153 4 1,157
Net book amount ot 31 March 2013 1,275 - 1,275
Net book amount ot 31 March 2012 1,309 - 1,309
The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases
Freehold land amouniing to £786,000 (2013 — £786,000) has not been depreciated
11 INVESTMENTS
COMPANY
The movements in the net book volue of interests 1n subsidiary undertakings are cs follows N N~
whbsdary subsidhary
underiokings  undenakings
atvaluaien at cost Total
£000 £000 £000
Ar 1 Apnl 2013 28,097 2,068 37,165
Capital contribution relating to share-based payment 189 - 189
Capitalisation of loans 1o equity
Capital contrbulion to Hornby hala s 11 2,586 - 2,586
Capital contnbution to Hornby Deutschland GmbH 2,181 - 2,181
Repayment of loans by subsidiory undenakings - 14.276)  14,276)
Reclassification of longHerm loon with Homby Heblmes Limied 1o shortierm recevables - 621) [621)
At 31 March 20014 33,053 4,171 37,224
At 1 Aprl 2012 28,111 B,490 36,601
Capial reduction relating to share based payment {14} - [14)
Net increase in loons lo subsidiary underiakings - 578 578
At 3t March 2013 28,097 @068 37,165
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Inferest was charged on loans to subsidiary undertokings at Sterling three month Libor + 3 6%

Locrs ore unsecured cnd exceed five yecrs motunty

PRINCIPAL GROUP SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Detalls of the undertckings whose results or financial posiion pancipally offected the b
set out below Hornby Hobbies Limited and Homby Espana S A cre engaged in theéJ
madels Hornby Amerce Inc, Homby ltolia srl, Horng;]

ures shown in the Compony's annual accourts, are
evelopment, design, sourcing and distibution of
France S A S and Hornby Deutschland GmbH are distnbuters of models

Proporuon of nominol valve of
ssved shares held

Group Compony
Country of incosporahian Descreption of shores held % %
Homby Hobbies Limited United Kingdom Ordinary shares 100 100
Hornby America Inc USA Ordinory shares 100 100
Hornby Espaiia S A Spoin Ordinary shares 100 100
Hormnby llalka s 1 Italy Crdinary shares 100 100
Hormby france SA S Fronce Ordinary shares 100 100
Hombyy Deutschland GmbH Germany Crdinary shares 100 100
A full hst of subsidianes 15 aveilable from the registered office of Horby Ple, Westwood, Margate Kent, CT9 4]X
12. INVENTORIES Group Compary
2014 2013 014 2013
£1000 £00C £000 £ 000
Raw malenals 301 299 - -
Work in progiess 92 35 - -
Finished goods 12,772 13,303 - -
13,165 13,637 - =
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Group Company
04 2013 014 2013
£'000 £ 000 £:000 €000
CURRENT
Trade recenvobles 8,148 8,518 - -
less provision for impairment of recevables {377} {401} - -
Trade recevables — net 7,771 8,117 - -
Other recevables 722 262 - -
Prepayments 550 1,224 7 33
Amounis owed by subsidiary undertaking - - 621 -
9043 9,603 628 33

Concentiations of credit nsk with respect to rade receivables are imited due to the Group's customer bose being large ond unrelated and
therefore the provision for recevables imparrments are deemed adequate Credit insurance policies are in place in Hornby Amenco Inc,
Homby Espana S A, Horaby ltala srl, Homby France S A'S and Hornby Deutschland GmbH covenng trade recevables at 31 March

2014 1o the value of £6 million (2013 - £6 3 million}
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

13, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued
Gross trede receivables can be analysed os follows

2014 2012

£000 £000

Fully performing 6,540 6,341
Past due 1,231 1,727
Imparred 77 450
Trade recesvables 8,148 8,518

As of 31 March 2014, trade recevables of £1,231,000 (2013 - £1,727,000) were past due but not impaired These relate 1o @ number of
independent customers for whom there 15 no recent histery of default The ageing onalysis of these trade recevables 1s s follows

2014 2013

£000 £000

1 - 120 days 1,085 1,583
>120 days 146 144
1,231 1,727

As of 31 March 2014, irade recevables of £377000 {2013 - £450,000} were impaired and provided for The amount of provision was
£377000 {2013 - £401,000] as of 31 March 2014

Significant fircreic] difficulties of the customer, probobility that the customer will enter bankruptcy or finonaisl reorgemsation are considered
indicatrons thot the trade recevable 1s imponed

The cgeng of these recenvobles 15 as follows

2004 2013

£000 £000

1 - 120 days 13 56
> 120 days 364 304
377 450

Movements on the Groug provision for impairment of rade receivables are os follows —_ 2013
£000 £000

AL Apnl 401 230
Provision for recevables impairment 250 260

Recewables writerroff during the year as uncollectible {268} (101}
Exchange odjustments {6) 12
At 31 March 377 401

The charge relating to the ncrease in provision hos been included 1n ‘odministralive expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The carrying amounis of the Group and Company trade cnd other receivables cre denominated in the following currencies

Group Company

2004 2013 2014 2013

£000 £ 000 £000 € 000

Sterling Intercompany -~ - &2 -
Sterling 4,257 5,503 7 33
Euro 4,281 3,440 - -
US Dollar 392 530 - -
HK Dollar 113 130 - -
9,043 9,603 628 33
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14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Corrpany
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £ 000 2000 £ 000
Cash at bark and in hand 619 3.554 1 2

Cash of £619.000 above includes resincled cash of £348,055 held within an Escrew account that relates 1o the exit payment to our
previous principol model railwoy suppher as mentioned within the Financial ond operoling review

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Grovp Compuany
014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
CURRENT:
Trode payables 3,980 4,008 - |
Cther taxes and soctal secunty 924 854 19 15
Other poyables 1,768 2,159 - -
Accruals 946 1,723 43 52
7,618 §,834 62 68
16 PROVISIONS Group Compory
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £ 000 £000 £000
Sales returns
Al Apnl 235 324 - -
Charge fo Statement of Comprehensive Income 502 580 - -
Unhsed in the year {499) {669) - -
At 31 March 238 235 - -

Pravision 15 made for future sales retyrns based on historical rends  The provision 15 expecied to be utihsed within one year from the bolance

sheet date

17 CURRENT TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000 £ 000
Current tax assets
UK Corporation tax recoverable 569 - - -
Overseas Corporation fax recoverable 32 512 29 110
601 512 29 110
Current tax habilihes
UK Corporation tox hability 100 391 100 105
Overseas Corporation tax hiability 28 75 - -
128 466 100 105
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

18 BORROWINGS

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
£000 € 000 £7000 £ 000

Secured borrowing at amorhsed cost
Bank overdrakis 6,076 82¢ - -
Bank locn 1,796 4,856 - -
Finance leases - 37 - -
Loon from subsidiary undertakings - 4,984 5,093

7,872 5722 4,984 5,093

Total borrowings

Amount due for setifement within 12 months 7,630 3,907 - -

Amount due for setlement after 12 months 242 1,815 4,984 5,093
7.872 5722 4,984 5,093

The Group obtained waivers in the yeor for the following covenants

The Group obtoined a waiver in December 2013 for the covenant tested onnudlly of achieving ten consecutive days of no overdraft on the
RCF facility within the UK Additionally for the quorterty covenant tests of 31 March 2014 the Group obtained ¢ waver for the covenant of
operating prohit remeining three hmes grecter than net hinancing cost and net berrowing remaoining greater than EBITDA by 1 25 tmes The
Group complied with all other loen covenants during the year

The Company boriowings are denominated in Sterling  All intercompany borrawings are secured by woy of formal loan ogreements The
loans can be repaid of any fime however the Company hes received confirmation from tis subsidiary that they will not reguire payment within
the next twelve months

Anglysis of borrowings by currency

Sterling Euios Tosal
GROUP £000 £000 £000
31 March 2014
Bank overdrafts 4,598 1,478 6,076
Bank loan 1,500 296 1,796
6,008 1,774 7,872
31 March 2013
Bank overdrafts - 829 829
Bank foan 4,500 356 4,856
Finance leases 37 - 37

4,537 1,185 5,722

The other pincipal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows

At 31 March 2014 the Group had a revolving credit facility of £10 million expiring August 2015 and a five-year fixed term loon ogreement
of £12 rallion with repayments scheduled to july 2014 {£1 5 millon as at 31 March 2014} The future interest rates of these facilines are Libor
+ 3 6% for the revolang credit faclity ond Ubor + 3 6% for the fixedterm loon

The average effective interest rate on bank overdrafts approximated to 4 2% {2013 ~ 3 34%} per annum and 1s determined based on 3 6%
cbove three-month Libor from December 2012

Undrawn berrowing facilihes

A1 31 March 2014, the Group had avolable £89 milkon (2013 — £10 8 million} of undrawn commitied borowing facilines in respect of
which alt conditions precedent had been met Included withun this the European subsidianes hod ovaleble £2 millon (2013 - £1 7 millon) of
undrawn import credit line facilies that could be obtained with secunty being given against trade receivables The Group has recently
successfully renegotioted its banking facilines for the next 18 months, dyetods of which can be found within note 28 Post balance sheet evenis
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's policies cnd strotegies in relation to nisk end hnancial instrumenis are detailed in note 1

Astels Liabilites

2014 2013 2004 2013

GROUP £000 £ 000 £000 £000
Cotrying values of dervohve hinancial insiruments

Foreign exchange collar -~ - - 12,0001

Forward foreign currency contracts = cosh flow hedges 39 367 (432) {105}

Interest rale swap — cash Hlow hedge - - (13) (89}

39 367 {445) {2,194])

The hedged forecast ansachions derominaled in foreign currency are expecied lo oceur at vanous dates dunng the next 12 months Gains
and losses recognised in reserves on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31 March 2014 are recognlsec]g in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income first in the penad or penods duning which the hedged foreces! transaction affects the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, which 15 within fwelve months from the balance sheet dote

At 31 Merch 2014 outstanding forward currency coniracts were os follows

2014 2013
'000s 0CCs
Hong Kong Dellar 115000 125,926
US Dollor 11,300 7,918
Euro - 897

The netienal principel amount of the outsionding interest rate swap contract af 31 March 2014 was £0 6 million (2013 - £1 8 million] At 31
Morch 2014, the interest rate swop fixes the interes! rate on £0 & million of the bank loan disclosed in note 18 to & 22% The loss
recognised in the interest rate swap included in the hedging reserve as of 31 March 2014 will be confinuously released to the Stalement of
Comprehensive Income untl the matunty of the swap The £1 5 mifion (2013 - £2 7 mifllion} remainder of the bank loan disclosed in note 18
incurs nterest based en three-month Libor established quarterly in advance

The total net farr value above for forward foreign currency contracts and the interest rate swap compnises £406,000 hability (2013 —
£173,000 asset} of which £440,000 labihty [2013 - £274,000 csset} has been effectively hedged at 31 March 2014 and therefore
charged to Other Comprehensive Income in accordance with IAS 39 The liabilty balance of £5,000 {2013 - £105,000 liability] was the
unhedged portion and was included within operaiing expenses

In accordance with 1AS 39, the Group hos reviewed all contracts for embedded dernvatives that are required Io be separately accounted for
if they do not meet cerlain requirements set out iIn the standerd No embedded denvatives hove been identfied

All denvative hnoncial investmenls ore Level 2 n the Foir Value Hierarchy

Fair values of non-denvohve financicl assets and ligbilities

For the Group and the Company, as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, there 1s no difference between the carrying omount and farr
value of each of the following crcsses of hinonciol ossets and habilies, prncipally due to their short matunity trade on(;/ol er recevables,
cash at bank and 1n hand, trade and other payables and current borrowings Bank deposits attract interest within 1 0% of the ruling market
rolz Thefre i5 no significant difference between the farr value ond carrying amount of non-current borrowings as the impact of discounting 1s
nol signincont

The Company has no denvative fingncial instruments
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Matunty of financial liabihhes

Finonce 2014

Bonk loan leoses Totod

GROUP £ 000 £000 £000
Less then one yeor 1,500 - 1,500
Between one and two years 54 - 54
Between two and live years 237 - 237
Moare than five yeors 5 - 5
1,796 - 1,796

Finonce 2013

Bank loon leoses Tasal

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Between one and two years 1,556 12 1,568
Between two and five years 178 - 178
More thon five years o9 - &9
1,803 12 1,815

2014 2013

Intercompany  Sreercompany

Dbt Deb:

COMPANY £000 £ 000
More than five years {note 18) 4,984 5,093
The mimimum lease payments under inance leases foll due as follows 2004 2013
GROUP £000 £ 000
Not later than one year - 26
Later than one year but not more than five - 12
- 38

Future finance charges on hinance leases - {11
Present value of finonce lease liakilites - 37

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following 1obles present the Group's ossets and liabilibes that are measured at far value at 31 March 2014 ond 31 March 2013 The
table onalyses financial instruments carmed at farr value, by valuahion method The different levels have been defined as follows

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) n active markets for dentical assets or lobiliies [level 1)

* Inputs other than quoied prces included within level 1 that cre observable for the asset or lability, either direcily {that 1s, as prices) or
indirectly fthat 1s, denved from prices} [level 2)

* Inputs for the asset or hobility that are not bosed on observable market data fthat 1s, unobservable inputs) {level 3)

There were no ransters or reclassificahons between Levels within the period level 2 hedging denvatives comprise forward foreign exchange
contracts and an interest rale swap and have been fon valued using torward exchange rates that are quoled 0 an active market The effects
of discounting ore generally insignifican: for Level 2 denvaives The foreign exchange collar has not been renewed clter it expired on 3

Oclober 2013

The forr value of the following financiol ossets and liabilities opproximate thewr carrying amount Trade and other recevables, other current
financial assets, cash and cash equivolents (excluding bank overdrafts), trade and other poyables
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Financial Instruments

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tokal
£000 £7000 £000 £'000
Assets
Trodlng dervatives - - - -
Denvatives used for hedging - 39 - 39
Avalableforsale financial assets - - - -
Total assets as at 31 March 2014 - 3¢ - 39
Liabilihes
Interest rale swap - i3 - 13
Denvatives used for hedging 432 - 432
Total kabilities at 31 March 2014 - 445 - 445
evel 1 level 2 level 3 Toot
€000 £ 000 T 000 £ 000
Assets
Tioding denvatives ~ - - -
Dervatives used for hedging - 367 - 367
Availlabledor-sole finoncial assets - - - -
Total assets at 31 March 2013 - 367 - 367
Liabiities
Foreign exchange collar - 2,000 - 2,000
Interest rate swap - 89 - 89
Denvalives used for hedging - 105 - 105
. Total kabilities at 31 March 2013 - 2,194 - 2,194

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group ss exposed to mterest rate nsk as the Glour) borrows funds at both fixed ond floaning interest rates The exposure to these
borrowings vanes durning the year due to the seasonal nature of cash flows relating to scles

In order to measure nisk, floating rate borrowings and the expected interest costs are forecast on o monthly bosts and compared to budget
using managemeni's expectalions of a regsonably possible change in interest rates

The effect on both income and equity based on exposure to borrowings at the balance sheet dote for a 1 0% increase in interest rates 1s
£73,000 (2013 - £63,000) before tax A 1% fall in nlerest rates gives the same but opposite effect 1% 15 considered an cppropricte
benchmark given the minimum level of movement in the UK inleres! 1ate over recent years and expeciohen over the next financial year

Foreign currency sensiivity

The Group s pnmarily exposed to US Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and the Euro The following table details how the Group's income and
equity would increase on a before tax basis, given a 10% revaluation in the respeciive currencies against Sterling and 1n accordance with
IFRS 7 all other vonables remeining constont A 10% devaluation i the valve of Stesling would have the opposite effect The 10% change

represents a recsonably possible change in the specified foreign exchange rates in relation fo Stering Comprehenswe heome and

Equity Sensitviry

2014 2013

£1000 £000

US and Hong Kong dollars 418 109
Euros 767 145
1,185 254
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Capital nsk manogement

The Group's cbjectives when manoging capiial ore 1o safeguard the Groug's chility to continue os @ going concern in order to provide
returns for shereholders and benefus for other stokeholders and to maintain en optimal copitel structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to mamtan o adjust the copital structure, the Group may adyst the amount of dvidends poid to shareholders, return copital to
shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assels to reduce debt

The Group monitors capital on the bosis of the geanng roto The ratio 1s caleulated as net debt dwided by Iotal copital Net debt 1s
celevlated as tolal borowings as shown in the conselidated belance sheet less cash and cash equivalents Totol cepitel 1s caledlated as
‘equity’ ¢s shown in the bolance sheet plus net debt

2014 2013

£'000 £000
Total borrewings {nole 18) 7.872 5,722
less
Total cesh and cosh equivalents {note 14} [619) {3,554)
Net debt 7,253 2,168
Total equity 31,370 36,401
Total capatal 38,623 38,569
Gearing 19% 6%
20. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tox 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the licbility method using o UK tox rate of 20% {2013 - 23%)

The movement on the deferred tax cccount 1s os shown below

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

£'000 £000 £000 £000

At Apal {1,555) 35 148 152
Credtt o Statement of Comprehensive Income {note 5) ~ onginchon and reversal of

temporary differences [48) 11,683) (22) {4)

Exchange adjusiments (m 123) - -

Reclossificahon from current to deferred tax in Hornby Fronce $ A S {120) - - -

Unlisahon of rading losses against other tax paycble - 116 - -

A1 31 Maich {1.722) (1,555 126 148

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of fax losses in the Group with the exception of Hornby Deulschland and Homby llalia
In Hornby liahia the deferred tax ossets recognised have been restncied to the amount expected io be recoverable by profis generated in the
entity over the nexi three years Olher temporary differences gving nse to deferred tax assels have been recogrised where it s piobeble thot
those assels will be recovered

No deferred tax 1s provided for tax habilities which would anse on the distnbution of prolils retained by overseas subsidianes becouse there
is currently no intention that such profiis wall be remitted

The movements in deferred tax ossets and habilites dunng the yeor ore shown below

Deferred tox assets and habalihes ore only offses where there 1s o legclly enforceable nght of offse
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Group Company
Accelerored Acceleiored
copitel copral
Revaluancn alkewances Otrer Total Revaluonian allowances Total
Deferred tax Labidimes £ Qe £ 000 £ 000 £000 £0C0 £ 000 £000
A1 Apnl 2013 139 Q 11 159 139 Q 148
{Credil/charge lo Statemeni of Comprehensive Income (22} - - (22) 22} - (22)
Foreign exchange {1} - - (1) - - -
At 31 March 2014 nz 9 n 136 117 9 126
At 1 Apnl 2012 149 175 249 573 149 10 159
{Credit}/charge to Statement of Comprehensive Income 110} {166} (235} (417} 10 {1} {11
Foreign exchange - - (3] i3] - - -
At 31 March 2013 139 Q it 159 139 148
Of the total deferred tax habiity of £137.000, £5,000 waos due within one year for the Group (2013 - £5,000] and £5,000 for the
Company {2013 - £5,000}
Group Company
Shorrlerm Acquismon Shartierm
incerive plan nangibles Crher Tessl  incerive plon
Deferred tax assets £ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2003 - {121) {1,593} (1,714) -
Charge/lcredi} to Statement of Comprehensive Income - {21} {3} (24) -
Foreign exchange - - - - -
Reclassdication from current tox in Homby France - - 1120} {120} -
At 31 March 2014 - (142) (1,717} {1,858) -
A1 Apal 2012 (15 (9 424} {538) 17
Charge/|credt) to Statement of Comprehensive Income 15 122)  (1,265) {1,272} 7
Foreign exchange - - {20) (20} -
Deferred lox losses utised - - 116 116 -
At 31 March 2013 - 1121) [1,593) {1,714} -
Net deferred tax (osset)/liabiity
At 31 March 2014 {1,722} 126
At 31 March 2013 {1,555} 148
The deferred tox habshity onsing on the revaluation of freehold land and buildings in 1986 cannot be offset against deferred tax assets
Therefore, the deferred tax asset of £1,859,000 {2013 - £1,714,000) and deferred tax licbility of £137.000 (2013 - £159,000) ot
31 March 2014 and 31 Morch 2013 have been recognised separately
014 2013
Not Mot
Racognied recognused Recogmsed recognised
GROUP £000 £000 €000 £000
Deferred tox comprnses
Depreciation in excess of capial allowances {805} - [824) -
Other temporary differences — UK 437) - {343} -
Other temporary differences — overseas {480) 922) (388} 21)
Deferred tax (asset] /liability {1,722) {922) {1,555} {21)

The net defenred lax asset not recognised of £922,000 represents the unrecognised losses in Homby ltalie of £867000 and Homby

Deutschland of £57000
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Notes to the Financial Statements confinued

20 DEFERRED TAX continued

2014 2013
Not Not

Recognised recogrised Recogrised recogrised
COMPANY £'000 £7000 £0C0 £000
Deferred tax compnses
Accelerated capital allowances 9 - Q -
Other tming differences 117 - 139 -
Deferred tax hability 126 - 148 -
21. SHARE CAPITAL
GROUP AND COMPANY
Allotied, 1ssued ond fully paid 2014 200
Ordinary shares of 1p each Numbes of shares £000 Mumber of shares £ 000
A1 Apil 39,164,100 392 32164,100 392
Allotted under share option schemes - - — -
At 31 March 39,164,100 392 32,164,100 392

At 31 March 2014 ophions gronted under the Compeny's share option schemes were ouistanding os follows

Number of options Exercise price Penad of option
Date grorted 2014 2013
@ June 2005 365,809 365809 2010p June 2008 - June 2015

365,809 365,809

The total number of options cutstonding as at the date of this document represent approximately 0 9% (2013 - 0 9%] of the issued shore
capital of the Company

If the respechive resolution 15 passed ot the Annual General Meeting and the Company wese 1o exeraise the full authonity to buy-back
approximately 10% of the issued ordinary shares of the Compony, the above optfions would represent 1 0% {2013 — 1 0%) of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company

22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Hornby Plc operates three share based payment plans — Share Ophen Scheme 'SOS), Short Term Incentive Plan {"'STIP'} and Performance
Share Plon PSP

SOS awards
The SOS awards are a reward of share oplions to Executive Directors and semior management that vest after three years and must be
exercised in o four or seven year exercise window

The awards 1ssued In previous vears were subject to o performance measure of Profits before Interest and Tax ['PBIT') or Profi before Tox
('PBT'} as disclosed by the Group's accounts for any of the years ended 31 March 2006, 31 March 2007, 31 March 2008, 31 March
2009 or 31 March 2010 excluding [ any profit or loss in relation o property Iransactions, (i) any restructuring and aboriive due diligence
costs and {in] any profis or losses ansing from businesses acquired by the Group after the date of grant of the Option Some awards are
subject to achieving a PBIT that 15 equal to or greater than £8 milion, or to PBT being equal to or greater thon £2 mithon or aggregate PBT
{or three years ending 31 March 2008, 2009 and 2010 being equal o or greater than £32 7 millon The owards are equity settled

72 Horaby PLC Annual Report and Acceonis 2014




Actrity relating 1o share opiions for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 was as follows

2014 2013

Weighted Woeghted

averoge averoge

Number  exercise prce Number  exarcine price

Quistanding at 1 Apal 365,809 2010p 847,500 1389
Exercised - - - -
lopsed - - (481,691} 91 7p
Quistanding at 31 March 365,809 201.0p 365,809 201 Qp

No opirons were exercised within the financial year (2013 - nily

The following lable summanses information relating 1o the numbier of shares under option (SOS awards} and those which were exercisable at
31 March 2014

Exercisable

wenghted

average

Wenghtad Ophons Cphons  exsrtis price

cveroge  exsveisable exercisable for ophions

Towol shores remoming ot 3 Mardh ot 31 Maich exsrcisable

under opton  conmracnal Ife 2014 2013 ot 31 March

Range of exercise prices Number Manths Number Number 2014
£200-£210 365,809 27 365,809 365809 201.0p
365,809 365,809 201.0p

Performance Share Plan
All Performance Share Plan {'PSP') awards outstanding at 31 March 2014 vest only if performance condihons are met Awards granted under
the PSP must be exercised within one year of the relevant oword vesting dote

The Group operates the PSP for Executive Directors and senior executives Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of a nikpriced
option, and are soshied using marketpurchased shares The awards vest in full or iIn part dependent on the satisfaction of specified
performance targets 50% of the award vests dependent on TSR performance over a three year performonce penod, relotive 1o the
constiuents of the FTSE Small Cap Index {excluding investment trusts) from the tme of graat, and the remaining 50% vests dependent an
performonce agoins! earnings per shere fargets

All plans are subject lo continued employment To the extent that such shares in the above plans are awarded 1o employees below fair value,
a cﬁcrge calculated in accordance with IFRS 2 *Share-based payment’ 1s included wiathin other operating expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income  This charge for the Group and Company amounted to £2724 000 in the yeor ended 31 March 2014 {2013 -
£20,000 charge for the Group and Company)

The following table summanses the key assumptions used for grants dunng the year

2014 2013

05 TP PsP! 505 stp PSP
Farr value [p} - -  5L16p - - 3668p
Options pricing model used - — Stochashe - ~ Stochastic
Share price a1 gront date (p) - - 81.5p - - 81 0p
Exercise price [p} - - nfa - - n/a
Expected volatility {%) - - 392% - - 36 0%
Risk free rate (%} - - nfa - - n/a
Expected option term [years) - - 3 - - 3
Expected dividends (per year, %) - - 0% - - 0%

1 Assumptions for TSR componen' only

Assumphons on expected volatlity and expected optien term hove been made on the basis of historicol dota, wherever avallable, for the penod
coresponding with the vesting penod of the option Best esimoles have been used where histonical dota 15 not available in this respect
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
STIP awards
The STIP 15 o reword of shores to Executve Directors ond seruor manogement

Vesting of the awards occurred in equal amounts on the second, third and fourth anniversanies of the award date provided that the
parhopent remains employed by the Group These awards are not subject to any performance conditions The awards ore equity settled

2014 2013
£000 £ 000
At 1 Apnl - Q0
Shares vested - {90}
At 31 Merch - _

The Employee Benefit Trust acquired no ordinary shares in the year and currently does not hold any shares

On 20 June 2012, the final third of the 2008 cllocotion (57,766 ordinary shores) vested At 31 March 2014, ¢ total of nil {2013 - nil)
ordinary shares are held by the Trust and allotted to the Directors and senior management under the plan The costs of the plan were borne

by Hornby Plc
23 EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS
Grovr Comrpany
2014 2013 2014 2013
€000 £000 £000 £000
Steff costs for the Group during the year
Wages and salcres 8,437 7,828 848 552
Share-based payments [note 22) 274 20 85 34
Social securty costs 1,053 1,032 122 Bé
Other pension costs {note 24) 526 668 56 65
Redundancy and compensation for loss of office 173 726 40 -
10,463 10,274 1,151 737
The redundancy costs form part of the restructunng costs in the year classified os excepional items
Average manthly number of peaple fincluding Executive Directors) employed by the Group
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Number MNumber Nurmnber Number
Operahons 96 101 2 1
Sales, marketing and distrbution 114 107 1
Administration 40 40 3 3
250 248 5 5
Key moncgement compensahon Group Company
2014 203 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000 £ 000
Solanes and shorHerm employee benefits 1,601 1,977 674 421
Share'based payments 274 20 85 34
Other pension costs 156 249 56 65
Redundancy and compensation for loss of office 40 517 40 -
2,071 2,763 855 520

Key management compnse the individuals involved in major strategic decision making and includes all Group and subsidiary Directors
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A delaled numencal anclysis of Directors’ remunerahion and share options showing the highest poid Director, number of Direclors occruing
benehis under money purchase pension schemes cnd gains rechised on the exercise of shore options, 1s iIncluded in the Crrectors’
Remuneration Report on poges 25 1o 32 ond {orms part of these financial statemenis

24. PENSION COMMITMENTS
The Group operctes a detined contnbution penston scheme by way of o Stokehalder Group Personal Pension Plaa set up Ihrough the Frends
Provident Insuiance Group

Alexander Forbes Internahiencl 1s appeinted as Independent Financial Adviser to work in liaison with the Company

The level of conirbutions to the Group Personal Pension Plan for current members 1s fixed by the Company

The Group pensien cost for the year was £526,000 (2013 - £668,000] representing the actual contnbutions payable in the year and
cerlain scﬁeme administration costs The Company pension cost for the year was £56,000 (2013 - £65,000] No contnbutions were
ouisionding ol the yeor end of 31 March 2014

25 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

2014 2013
GROULP £000 £000
Al 31 March copitol commitmenls were
Contracted for but nat provided 1,529 2,100

The commitments relcte to the acquistion of preperty, plant end equipment
The Company dees not have any copitcl commitments

Contingent Liobilites

The Company and ils subsidiary undertakings are, from time 1o ime, parties to legal proceedings and claims, which anse in the ordinary
course of business The Directors do not anticipate thal the outcome of these proceecfngs and clams, either indmidudlly or n aggregate, wil
have o matenal adverse effect upon the Group's financic! posiion

26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
TheF total of future minimum lease poyments n respect of noncancellable property, plant and motor vehicle operating leoses falling due are
as follows

2014 2013

GROUP £'000 £000
Mot later than one year 480 499
Later than one year but not more than hve years 540 873
More than five years - -
1,020 1,372

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
There were no contracts with the Company or any of its subsidicries existing duning or at the end of the financiol year in which o Director of
the Company wos matenally inferested

The Company receved management fees from subsidianes of £1,456,000 (2013 - £1,316,000}, interest of £174,000 {2013 - £174,000) ond
dwidends from subsidianes of Enl (2013 - £783,000) ond incurred interest of £208 000 (2013 - £213,000] on infercompany borrowings

28 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

The Gioup hes recently been successful in renegotiating its main banking faciliies for a further 18 months At 31 March 2014 the Group had
a revolving credit facility of £10 million expinng August 2015 and o five-year fixederm loan agreement of £12 million with outsianding
repayments of £1 5 million scheduled to be completed by July 2014 These have now been reploced by @ new revolving credit facility of
£13 millon expinng in December 2015 which 1s expecied to cllow sulficient headioom for rading working capital needs in the current year
whilst fongerterm plons and funding requirements are developed
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (Unaudited)

If you hove sold or otherwise transferred all of your ardinary shares in Homby Ple, plecse forward this document as soon as pessible lo the
purchaser er tiansferee, or 1o the stockbroker, bank or other agent through or 1o whom the scle or iransfer was effecied for rensmission to the
purchoser or fransferee of your ordincry shares

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice 1s hereby given that the shirtythird Annual General Meeting of Homby Plc [the “Company®) wilt be held ci the offices of Homby Ple,
Ramsgote Road, YWeslwood, Margote, Kent CT? 4)X on Wednesdey 10 Septernber 2014 at 12 00 noon for the following purposes

To consider and, f thought i, 1o poss the following resolutions, of which numbers 1 10 10 (iInclusive) will be proposed os ordinary resolutions
and numbers 11 and 12 os special resolutions

QRDINARY RESOLUTIONS
1 To receive and odopt the Company's Annual Report and Accounts for the finoncial year ended 31 March 2014 together with the Report
of the Directors and Auditors

2 To opprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report, os sel out on pages 25 to 32 of the Company’s Annual Report and Accounts, for the
financial yeor ended 31 March 2014

3 Toreelect R Ames as ¢ Director

4 Toreelect D Adams os o Director

5 Toreelect C Caminada as a Cirecter

¢ Toreelect R Canhom, who retires by rotation, os o Dueclor

7 To reappoint PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP the retnng auditors, as auditors of the Campany to hald office from conclusion of the Annual
Genercl Meeting fo the conclusion of the next meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company

8 To authonse the Direclors fo agree the audiiors’ remuneration

That, i accordance with sechon 366 of the Companies Act 2006 [the "Aet”), the Company and all companies that are its subsidianes
el any hme dunng the peniod for which this resclution has effect be authonsed to

la) make polihcal donaticns fo political parties and/or independent eleciion candidates, not exceeding £10,000 in total,
(k) make polincal donations to poliical organisations, other than palitical portes, not exceeding £10,000 in total, and
fc] incur polihcal expenditure, not exceeding £10,000 in tolal,

provided that the aggregote amouni of any such donations and exg:endlrure shall not exceed £15,000 duning the penod beginning with
the date of the passing of this resolution and ending on the date of the Company's next Annual General Meeling

For the purpose of this resolution, the terms ‘poliicol donations’, ‘poliical expenditure’, ‘mdependent election candidates’, ‘poliical parties’
ond ‘politcal orgenisations’ shall have the meaning given 1o them by Porl 14 of the Act

10 THAT, in place of the equvalent authonty gven to the Directors at the last Annual General Meeting {but without prejudice 1o the
continuing outhority of the Directors to olroi shares pursuant fo an offer or agreement made by the Company before the expiry of the
authonty pursuant to which such offer or agreement was made), the Directors be generally and uncondimonally authorised in accordance
with section 551 of the Act 1o aflot shares 1 the Company or grant nghts 1o subscribe for or lo convert any secunty inlo shares in the
Company up lo @ maximum aggregate nominal amaunt of £130,000, prowided that this outhonily shall expire on @ Seplember 2019
but so that the Company may, before the expiry of such period, make an offer or agreement which would or might require shares 1o
be allotted or nghts to subscribe for or convert secunties nto shares ko be granted alter the expiry of such penod and the Directors may
cllol shares o grant nghts to subscribe for or convert securhies into shares pursvant 1o such an offer or agreement as 1f this authonty had
not expired

76 Hornby PLC Annual Report ond Accounis 2014




SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

11 THAT, subject to ond condiioncl on the passing of resolution 10, the Diectors be empowered, pursuant to sechion 570 of the Act, 1o
allot equity secuniies (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act} for cash pursuont to the cuthority conferred by resolution 10 os
section 561} of the Act did not epply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to the cllotment of equity secuntes

{a) 1n connection with an offer of such secunties by woy of Rights Issue (defined below), and
{bl otherwise thon pursuant fo resclution 11 above up 1o on aggregate nominal amount of £19.000,

and that this ou:homz shall expire at the conclusion of the Company's next Annual General Meeting following the date of the passing of
the resolution, sove thot the Company may, before such expiry, moke an offer or agreement which would or might require equity
secunhes to be cllotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity secunties 1n pursuance of any such offer or agreement cs 1f
this power had not expired

This power apphes in reletion to o sole of treasury shares as If all references in this resoluhon to an allotment included any such sale ond in
the first parograph of the resolution the words “pursuant 1o the authority conferred by resolution 10” were omitted in relotion to such sale

In this resclution, “Rights Issue” means an offer of equity securhies open for acceptance for a penod fixed by the Directors to holders of
ordinary shares in the copital of the Company on the register on @ record date fixed by the Directors i proportion os nearly as moy be
to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them, but subject 1o such exclusions or other arrangements as the Direciors may
deem necessary or expedient to decl with ony treasury shores, fractional entflements or legal or practico! 1ssues ansing under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchonge in any termtory or any other matter

12 THAT, subject to and in accardance with Article © of the Company's erticles of associahion, the Company be generally and
uncondrionally authonsed 1o make morket purchases fwithin the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of ardinary shares on such terms
as the Cirectors think ht, and where such shares are held os treasury shares, the Compeny may use them for the purposes set out In
section 727 of the Act, including for the purpose of its employee shore schemes, prowded that

{a) the maximum number of ordinary shases hereby authonsed to be purchased 1s 3,900,000 being an amount equal to opproximately
10% of the ordinary shares in 1ssue os at 25 June 2014 [being the lolest praciicable dote prior to the publication of this notice),

{bl the minmum price, exclusive of any expenses, which may be paid for an ordinary share 1s 1 pence,

{c) the maximum price, exclusive of any expenses, which moy be paid tor each ordinary share 1s on omount equal to the higher of

1 105%, of the cverage of the middle market quotalions for an ordinary share, as denved from the london Stock Exchange
Daily Ofhcial Iést, for the five business days immedsately preceding the doy on which the ordinary share 1s contiocied to be
purchased, an

{n) the amount shpulated by Article 5(1} of the Buy-back and Stabilisahon Regulation 2003, and

the authoniy hereby conferied shall, unless previcusly revoked or vaned, expire ot the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual

General Meeting following the date of the passing of this resolution, or, if eadier, on the expiry of 18 months from the date of the

passing of this resolution [except In relahon to the purchase of ordinary shares, the contract for which was cancluded before the

expiry of this cuthonty and which will or may be executed wholly or partly after such expiry)

{d

By order of the Board

A Stacey

Company Secretary

Dated 26 June 2014

Registered office Westwood, Margaie, Kent CT9 4JX
Regqistered in England and Woles with number 01547390
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (Unaudited)

continued

NOTES (UNAUDITED)
1

This nofice 15 being seni 1o ol members and to ony person nominated by a member of the Company under sechon 146 of the
Compenies Act 2006 1o enjoy information nghts

Only holders of ordincry shares, or then duly oppointed represeniatives, are entilled to altend, vote and speak of the AGM A member
so enhiled may appont [a) proxy/(ies), who need not be [a) memberis), to attend, speok and vote on his/her behalt A member ma
appoint more than one proxy, provided that each proxy 1s appointed 1o exercise the nghts attached to a different shore or shares he\{d by
him/her A form of proxy 1s enclosed with this Netice and instructicns for its completion ore set out on the form

Proxies may only be oppointed by completing ond returning the torm of proxy enclosed with this Notice to the Company’s Regsstrars,
Copila Registrars Limited PXS, 34 Beckenhom Road, Beckenhom, Kent BR3 4TU

To be volid @ proxy appomtment and ony power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which i 1s signed or o duly cenlified copy of
such power of atlorney must reach the office of the Company’s Registrars not fess than 48 hours (excluding any port of o day which 1s
nct @ working dey) before the hme fixed for the AGM or ony adjoumment therect Therelore, the form of proxy must be received by the
Company's Regisirars by 1200 noon on 8 September 2014

Return of the form of proxy will net preclude o member from oftending the AGM and voting in person A vote withheld eption 15 provided
on the form of proxy to encble you to mstruct your proxy to absicin on any pariculor resoluon However, 1t should be noted that o

‘vote withheld' s nat o vote in law and will not be counted in the calculatton of the proportion of votes For’ and "Against’ o resolution

If you select Discreionary” or fall to select any of the options, your proxy can vole as he aor she chooses or con decide not to vote Your
proxy can also do this on any other resclution that s put 1o the AGM A shareholder must mform the Company's registrars in wrinng of
any terminction of the cuthonty of o proxy

The nght ko cppont a proxy does not cpply to persons whose shares are held on their behalf by ancther persen and who have been
nominaled to receive communications from the Compony In cecordance with section 144 of the Cempanies Act 2006 [Nominated
Persons’} The nghts of shareholders in refation Jo the appointment of proxies can only be exercised by registered shareholders of the
Company Nominoled Persons may have a nght under an agreement with the registered shareholder who hold shares on ther behalf to
be apponted lor to have someone else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively, if Nominated Persons do not have such a nght, or do not
wish fo exercise W, they may have a nght under such an agreement 1o give instructions to the person holding the shares as to the exercise
of voting nghts

The Company, pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securdies Regulations 2001, specifies that only those shareholders on the
register orrnembers of the Company os at 12 00 noon on 8 September 2014 [or, if the AGM 1s adjourned, shoreholders on the register
of members not later than 48 hours lexcluding any parl of a day which 15 not & working doy) before the time fixed for the adjourned
meehng) are entiled to attend and/or vole al the AGM [or any edjournment thereof} in respect of the number of shares registered m therr
name at thot hme  Subsequent changes to the register of secunties shall be disregarded 1n determining the nghts of any person to attend
and vote at the AGM [or any adjournment thereof)

Copies of controcts of service and letters of appointment between the Directars and the Company will be available for inspection at the
registered offices of the Company and the offices of Berwin Leighton Paisner (LP at Adelatde House, London Bndge, ECAR 9HA dunng
normal business hours on any weekdoy (Saturdays, Sundays ond public hohdays excluded) kom the date of this Notce untl the
conclusion of the AGM, ard at the place of the AGM for at least 15 minules prior jo the AGM until its conclusion

Any corporation which 15 o member can oppoint one or more corporate representalives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers
as a member provided that they do nol do so in relation to the same shares

10 In order to faciliate voiing by corparate representatives at the AGM, arrangements will be put in Elcce af the meeting so that ) f o

78

corporate member has appointed the Charman of the meeting as its corporate representative wilh instiuctions 1o vote on a poll in
accordance with the directions of all of the other corporate represeniatives for that member at the meeling, then on a poll those
corporate represeniatives will give vohng directions to the Charman and the Chairman will vote [or withhold @ vate] as corporate
representative in accordance with those directions, and [n) if more than one corporate represenative for the same corporate member
aitends the meeting bul the corporale member has not o{ppomted the Chairman of the meetng as iis corporole representative, @
designated corporate representative will be nominated, from those corporate representatives who attend, who W||}|Dvole on a poll and
the other corporate reprasentatives will give voting directions to that designated corporate representative Corporale members are
referred to the guidonce issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretanes and Administrators on proxies and corporate representatives —
hiip //www icsa org uk/ for further detoils of this procedure The guidance includes a sample form of representation letier if the
Chairman 1s being appointed as descnbed in {i} above
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1

Under section 527 Companies Act 2006 members meeting the threshald requirements set oul in thot sechion hove the nght to require the
Company to publish on s websie o sictement sething out any matter relating to 4] the audit of the Company’s accounts (including the
ouditer's report and the conduct of the oudi} that cre ta be laid befcre the AGM, or {i} ony aircumsiances connecied with an cugnor of
the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meefing at which annual accounts cnd reports were laid i sccordance with
section 437 Componies Act 2006 The Company may not require the members requesting any such website publication to poy s
expenses n camplying with sections 527 or 528 Companies Act 2006 Where the Company s required to place o slatemeni on a
website under section 527 Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement 1o the Company's auditor not later than the hime when il
makes the statement availcble on the websile The business which may be declt with of the AGM includes any statement that the
Company has been required under sechien 527 Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

A CopK of this Notice, and other information regarding the meeting, as required by section 311A Companies Act 2006, 15 ovailable from
www hornby com

You may not use cny electronic address provided in this Notice or in any related documents {including the form of proxy) 1o communicate
with the Company for any purpeses other than those expressly stated

Any member cltending the meehng has the nght to ask questions The Company must cause to be answered any such question relating
to the business being dealt with ot the meeting but no such answer need be given if (g} to do so would interfere unduly with the
preparahon for the meeting or nvolve the disclosure of confidential information, (b the answer has already been given on o website in
the form of an answer to o question, or [c] it 15 undesirable in the snterests of the Company or the good order of the meeting thet the
question be answered

As at 25 June 2014 (bemE the latest practicable date prior Ic the publication of this Nohce), the Company's 1ssued share capital cansists
of 39,164,100 crdinary shares, camying one vele eocE Therefcre, the tolal voling nghts m the Company as ot 26 June 2014 ore
39.164,100
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Five Year Summary (Unaudited)

2014 2013 2012 201 2010
£000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000

Revenue 51,557 57,395 64,447 63,372 63,863
[Loss)/Proht on ordinary cctivilies before toxation 4,557} (3,387] 3,989 4,129 5,215
Taxalion 112 886 {825} {1,274} (1,530}
[Loss)/Prolit on ordinary activihes affer taxation 4,445) (2,507) 3,164 2,855 3,685
Assets employed
Non-current assets 24,340 26,338 27969 28,500 28,803
MNel current assets 7408 12037 16,673 16,623 18,653
Nan-current borrowings {242) [1,815] {4,888] {B,026) [10,547)
Delerred tax abilities {138) {159} 1573) {337} {281)
Nel cssets 31,370 36,401 39,181 36,769 36,628
Total capital employed 31,370 36,4017 39,181 30,769 36,628
Eainings per share
- basi: (11.35)p {6 4)p 82p 7 5p Q@ 8p
- diluled (11.35)p {6 dip 81p 7 4p Q@ Op
Divdend per share [nei) - - 37p 50p 50p
Nel assels per share 80.0p 2% 1000p Q5 7p Q6 2p

Shareholders’ Information Service

Homby welcomes contact with its shareholders

If you have questions or enquines about the Group or iis products, please contact

N P Stone, Finance Director

Homby Plc
Westwood

Margate
Kent CTQ 4JX
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